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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K includes “forward-looking statements.” All statements, other than statements of historical fact
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, regarding our strategy, future operations, financial position, estimated revenues and losses, projected costs,
prospects, plans and objectives of management are forward-looking statements. When used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the words “could,” “believe,”
“anticipate,” “intend,” “estimate,” “expect,” “project” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements, although not all forward-
looking statements contain such identifying words. These forward-looking statements are based on our current expectations and assumptions about future
events and are based on currently available information as to the outcome and timing of future events. When considering forward-looking statements, you
should keep in mind the risk factors and other cautionary statements described under the heading “Risk Factors,” “Business,” and “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. These forward-looking statements are based on

management’s current belief, based on currently available information, as to the outcome and timing of future events.

99 ¢ 99 ¢,

Forward-looking statements may include statements about:

*  general economic conditions, including changes in employment levels, rates of inflation, consumer demand and preferences, consumer confidence
levels, fuel prices, levels of discretionary income, and consumer spending patterns, and tariff, duty rates or other uncertainties with respect to trade
policies;

* economic conditions in certain geographic regions in which we primarily generate our revenue;

» credit markets and the availability and cost of borrowed funds;

*  our business strategy, including acquisitions and Dealership same-store growth;

e  our ability to integrate acquisitions or conduct dispositions;

e competition;

e our ability to maintain our relationships with manufacturers, including meeting the requirements of our dealer agreements and receiving the benefits of
certain manufacturer incentives;

* changes in industry seasonality and changes in demand for our products and our ability to maintain acceptable pricing for our products and services,
including financing, insurance and extended service contracts;

» effects of an inflationary environment on the cost of the products we sell and personnel and other expenses that are incurred within our operations;
*  our ability to finance working capital and capital expenditures;

*  our operating cash flows, the availability of capital and our liquidity;

*  our future revenue, Dealership same-store sales, income, financial condition, and operating performance;

*  our ability to sustain and improve our utilization, revenue and margins;

* seasonality and inclement weather such as hurricanes, tornadoes, other severe storms, fire and floods, generally and in certain geographic regions in
which we primarily generate our revenue;

* any potential tax savings we may realize as a result of our organizational structure prior to the Final Redemption (defined below);
*  our future operating results and profitability; and

* plans, objectives, expectations and intentions contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are not historical.
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We caution you that these forward-looking statements are subject to all of the risks and uncertainties, most of which are difficult to predict and many of
which are beyond our control. Should one or more of the risks or uncertainties occur, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, our actual results and
plans could differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements. These risks include, but are not limited to:

*  decline in demand for our products and services;

+ the seasonality and volatility of the boat industry;

» general domestic and international political and regulatory conditions, including changes in tax, foreign, or fiscal policy;
*  general economic conditions, including uncertainties regarding trade policies, such as the imposition of tariffs;

* environmental conditions and real or perceived environmental, human health and safety risks;

*  our acquisition strategies and our ability to integrate additional marine retailers;

+ effects of industry-wide supply chain challenges and our ability to manage our inventory;

* any global public health concerns, including, for example, our ability to safely operate our locations, access to inventory and customer demand;
*  our ability to retain key personnel and the effects of labor shortages;

* the inability to comply with the financial and other covenants and metrics in our credit facilities;

*  cash flow and access to capital;

+ the timing of development expenditures; and

» the other risks described under “Risk Factors” and discussed elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30,
2025.

All forward-looking statements, expressed or implied, included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are expressly qualified in their entirety by this
cautionary statement. This cautionary statement should also be considered in connection with any subsequent written or oral forward-looking statements that
we or persons acting on our behalf may issue.

Any forward-looking statement that we make in this Annual Report on Form 10-K speaks only as of the date of such statement. Except as otherwise
required by applicable law, we disclaim any duty to update any forward-looking statements, all of which are expressly qualified by the statements in this
section, to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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PART 1
Item 1. Business.

OneWater Marine Inc. (“OneWater Inc.”) is a holding company and the sole managing member of One Water Marine Holdings, LLC (“OneWater LLC”),
which became the principal operating subsidiary of OneWater Inc. on February 11, 2020 in the corporate reorganization (the “Reorganization”) completed in
connection with OneWater Inc.'s initial public offering (the “IPO”), which closed on February 11, 2020.

Except as otherwise indicated or required by the context, all references in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to the “Company,” “OneWater,” “we,” “us”
or “our” relate to OneWater Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Overview

We believe that we are one of the largest and fastest-growing marine retailers in the United States with 95 dealership locations, 9 distribution
centers/warehouses and multiple online marketplaces as of September 30, 2025. Our retail locations are located in highly attractive markets throughout the
Southeast, Gulf Coast, Mid-Atlantic and Northeast, many of which are in the top twenty states for marine retail expenditures. We believe that we are a market
leader by volume in sales of premium boats in many of the markets in which we operate. Additionally, the acquisitions of T-H Marine Supplies, LLC (“T-H
Marine”) and Ocean Bio-Chem, LLC (f/k/a Ocean Bio-Chem, Inc. ("Ocean Bio-Chem")) significantly expanded our sales of marine-related parts and
accessories. The combination of our significant scale, diverse inventory, access to premium boat brands, access to a broad array of parts and accessories, and
meaningful group brand equity enables us to provide a consistently professional experience as reflected in the number of our repeat customers and Dealership
same-store sales growth.

We report our operations through two reportable segments: Dealerships and Distribution.

As of September 30, 2025, the Dealerships segment includes operations of 95 dealerships in 17 states including Florida, Texas, Alabama and Georgia,
among others, and represents approximately 92% of revenues for the year ended September 30, 2025. The Dealership segment engages in the sale of new and
pre-owned boats, arranges financing and insurance products, performs repairs and maintenance services, offers marine related parts and accessories and offers
slip and storage accommodations in certain locations. In fiscal year 2025, we sold over 9,500 new and pre-owned boats, many of which were sold to customers
who had a trade-in or with whom we otherwise had established relationships. We offer a wide array of new boats at various price points through relationships
with over 35 manufacturers covering more than 50 brands. We believe we are currently a top-three customer for 24 of our brands and the single largest
customer for each of our top five highest-selling brands. While we believe our order volume amounts to between 10% to 40% of total sales for those top five
brands, no single brand accounts for more than 7% of our total sales volume.

As of September 30, 2025, the Distribution segment includes the activity of three of our fully-owned businesses, Central Assets & Operations, LLC d/b/a
PartsVu ("PartsVu"), Ocean Bio-Chem and its subsidiaries and T-H Marine and its subsidiaries, which together operate 9 distribution centers/warehouses in
Alabama, Florida, Oklahoma, and Indiana and represents approximately 8% of revenues. The Distribution segment engages in the manufacturing, assembly
and distribution of primarily marine-related products for sale to distributors, big box retailers, online retailers and direct to consumers. We offer a wide array of
branded parts and accessories including jack plates, bilge pumps, rigging parts, plumbing components, LED lighting, storage systems, and appearance,
cleaning, and maintenance products for the marine and ancillary industries. All revenue for the Distribution segment is reported in service, parts & other in our
consolidated statements of operations.

We have a diversified revenue profile that is comprised of new boat sales, pre-owned boat sales, finance & insurance products, repair and maintenance
services, and parts and accessories. Non-boat sales were approximately 18.7% of revenue and 41.7% of gross profit in fiscal year 2025, 19.3% of revenue and
40.0% of gross profit in fiscal year 2024 and 19.5% of revenue and 35.6% of gross profit in fiscal year 2023. We believe that our diversification of revenue
streams, the strength of our industry relationships and our scale enables us to receive among the best pricing and terms available across all of the products that
we carry. We routinely evaluate our sales performance and consumer demand to ensure that the economic relationship we have in place with our manufacturers
and suppliers optimizes our profitability.

We were formed in 2014 as OneWater LLC through the combination of Singleton Marine and Legendary Marine, which created a marine retail platform
that collectively owned and operated 19 dealerships. Since the combination in 2014, we have acquired a total of 83 additional dealerships, 12 distribution
centers/warehouses and multiple online marketplaces through 35 acquisitions. Our current portfolio as of September 30, 2025, consists of multiple brands
which are recognized on a local, regional or national basis. Because of this, we believe we are one of the largest and fastest-growing marine retailers in the
United States based on number of dealerships and total boats sold. While we have opportunistically opened new dealerships in select markets, or launched
additional parts and accessory products, we believe that it is generally more effective economically and operationally to acquire existing businesses with
experienced staff and established reputations.
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Our Market and Our Customer

Consumer spending in the United States on boats, engines, services, parts, accessories and related purchases reached $55.6 billion in 2024, down 2.6%
from 2023, and has, on average, grown 5% annually since 2012. New powerboat sales have driven market growth and reached $15.5 billion in 2024, resulting
in an 10% average annual growth rate since 2012. Of the approximately 895,000 powerboats sold in the United States in 2024, 81% of total units sold
(approximately 728,000) were pre-owned. Relative demand for new and late-model boats has remained strong in recent years in part due to the continuous
evolution of boat technology and design including, but not limited to, seating configurations, power, efficiency, instrumentation and electronics, and wakesurf
gates, each of which represents a material design improvement that cannot be matched by more dated boat models. We believe the increasing pace of
innovation in technology and design will result in more frequent upgrade purchases and ultimately higher sales volumes of new and late-model, pre-owned
boat sales.

The boat dealership market is highly fragmented and is comprised of approximately 4,000 dealerships nationwide. Most competing boat retailers are
operated by local business owners who own three or fewer stores; however we do have other large competitors. We believe we are one of the largest and
fastest-growing marine retailers in the United States. Despite our size, we comprise less than 4% of total industry sales. Our scale and business model allow us
to leverage our extensive inventory to provide consumers with the ability to find a boat that matches their preferences (e.g., make, model, color, configuration
and other options) and to deliver the boat within days while providing a personalized sales experience. Our inventory and product selection allow us to cater to
a highly diverse customer base with price points and boat types that appeal to a broad spectrum of budgets and preferences. In addition to boat sales, we also
generate sales from related products including finance & insurance and service, parts & other sales. The acquisitions of T-H Marine and Ocean Bio-Chem
significantly expanded our sales of marine parts and accessories. Our strategic growth in this area has also materially expanded our addressable market in the
parts and accessories business. We are able to operate with a comparatively higher degree of profitability than other independent retailers because we allocate
support resources across our broader base, focus on high-margin service parts and accessories, utilize floor plan financing and provide core back-office
functions on a scale that many independent retailers are unable to match. We seek to be the leading marine retailer by total market share within each boating
market and within the product segments in which we participate. To the extent that we are not, we will evaluate acquiring other local retailers in order to
increase our sales, to add additional brands or to provide us with additional high-quality personnel.

Growth Strategy

Organic Growth Strategy: Our business model utilizes our unique scale to drive profitable Dealership same-store sales growth. We seek to gain market
share by delivering high-quality products and services, with customized attributes tailored to our customers’ product specifications. Additionally, we are able to
leverage our potential customer database to garner new sales. Sales growth from our existing dealerships is a core component of our current and future strategy.
We may also develop a greenfield location if an attractive acquisition is not available in a market we choose to target. We believe non-boat sales will be a driver
of our organic growth strategy in the future. We have completed acquisitions and implemented a targeted marketing strategy across our platform focused on
growing new and existing customer awareness and usage of our finance & insurance products, repair and maintenance services, and parts and accessories
products. We intend to expand our online presence and sales through digital platforms to engage in online new and pre-owned boat sales, parts and accessories
as well as financing & insurance. We believe this will further advance our long-term growth opportunity, while broadening our customer base and geographic
reach.

Acquisition Strategy: We believe there is a tremendous opportunity for us to expand in both existing and new markets, given that the industry is highly
fragmented with most boat retailers owning three or fewer stores. We seek to create value by implementing the best tested operational practices to family-
owned and operated businesses that previously lacked the resources, management experience and expertise to maximize the profitability of the acquired
standalone businesses. We believe that our dealer group branding strategy, which retains the name, logo and trademarks associated with each dealership or
dealer group at the time of acquisition, significantly differentiates us from our largest competitors who employ singular, national branding strategies. In
addition, we have and may again acquire businesses that focus on the sales of parts and accessories. We believe there is a significant opportunity for us to
expand our presence in this less cyclical and higher margin business. We are committed to maintaining local and regional branding because we believe that the
value of retaining the goodwill and long-standing customer relationships of these local businesses, many of which have been built by families over decades, far
exceeds the benefits of attempting to establish a potentially unfamiliar “OneWater” national brand. In addition, preserving this established identity maintains
the long-term engagement of former owners because their name and reputation remain figuratively and literally “on the door.” We believe that the marine
industry is underpinned by strong fundamental drivers, and that, with the implementation of operational control measures and the injection of resources, local
dealerships can significantly increase revenues and profitability. We believe our status as a consolidator of choice is based on the expertise we have developed
through completing 35 acquisitions (83 dealerships, 12 distribution centers/warehouses acquired) since the combination of Singleton Marine and Legendary
Marine in 2014, our growing cash flow and financial profile, and our footprint of retailers within prime markets. Our ability to acquire additional locations or
dealer groups at attractive multiples is further enhanced by our growing reputation for retaining the seller’s management team and keeping their branding and
legacy intact. Accordingly, the sellers remain actively involved in the business and many have remained employed with us for years beyond the closing of the
acquisition. We believe there is significant opportunity to expand our dealership footprint in regions with strong boating cultures. While we have a strong
presence in the Southeastern portion of the United States, there are several areas of opportunity in states adjacent to our current geographic footprint as well as
states in new regions in the Midwest and Western United States. We continue to strategically evaluate potential acquisitions and as a result of our reputation in
the marketplace, we expect our pipeline of potential acquisitions to remain strong.
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Industry Trends and Market Opportunity
U.S. Recreational Boating Industry

Recreational boating is a well-established American pastime that attracts millions of people each year to the water. While Florida is the leading state for
new boating sales and registrations due to its abundance of both fresh water and salt water, boating is very popular throughout the United States with Texas,
Michigan, North Carolina, and New York representing the rest of the top five states for new marine retail expenditures.

In 2024, $55.6 billion was spent on retail boating sales, which has contributed to annual growth of 5% percent since 2012. Consumer marine spending
includes purchases of new and pre-owned boats; marine products such as engines, trailers, equipment, and accessories; and related expenditures, such as fuel,
insurance, docking, storage, and repairs. New boat sales and pre-owned boat sales constituted 38% and 18% of 2024 boating retail sales, respectively, based on
industry data from the National Marine Manufacturers Association (“NMMA”). The NMMA estimates that approximately 859,000 pre-owned boats were sold
in 2024. Non-boat sales include aftermarket accessories (22% of total 2024 boating retail sales) and finance & insurance products and ancillary services, such
as insurance, maintenance and fuel (22% of total 2024 boating retail sales). The strategic acquisitions we made in our Distribution segment have increased our
presence in the significant aftermarket accessories market.

Boat sales volumes are correlated with consumer confidence and the availability of consumer credit. Innovation, including updated boat configurations,
hull designs, wake gates and other electronics, contribute to shorter boat upgrade cycles which typically results in higher unit sales volume. Pre-owned
traditional powerboat sales were approximately $9.7 billion in 2024, which represents a decrease of 5.6% compared to 2023. After the significant growth in
2020 and 2021, pre-owned traditional powerboat sales have normalized following the COVID-19 pandemic but still remain in excess of the pre-pandemic level
of $9.2 billion in 2019. With the exception of 2020 - 2022, pre-owned traditional powerboat sales have remained relatively consistent since 2006 and through
economic cycles. The boat dealership market is highly fragmented with approximately 4,000 dealerships nationwide, and the majority of retailers are owner-
operated with three stores or fewer. Independent retailers typically offer a limited selection of boat brands, and they predominantly focus on new boat sales
with less expertise and capacity to create a meaningful business from non-boat sales such as finance & insurance products.

Products and Services

We offer new and pre-owned recreational boats, yachts and related marine products, including parts and accessories, with a specific focus on premium
brands. We also provide boat repair and maintenance services, arrange boat financing and insurance and offer other ancillary services, including indoor and
outdoor storage, marina services, and rentals of boats and personal watercraft.

New and Pre-Owned Boat Sales

Our Dealership segment focuses primarily on the sale of new and pre-owned recreational boats, including saltwater fishing boats, pontoon, runabout,
wake/ski boats, and yachts. We offer products from a broad variety of manufacturers and brands without relying on any one manufacturer or brand in particular.
No single brand accounted for more than 7% of our total sales volume in fiscal year 2025. We also sell pre-owned versions of the brands we offer and pre-
owned boats of other brands we take as trade-ins or acquire. During fiscal year 2025, new boat sales accounted for approximately $1,158.2 million or 61.9% of
our consolidated revenue, and pre-owned boat sales accounted for approximately $363.9 million or 19.4% of our consolidated revenue.

We offer new and pre-owned recreational boats in a broad range of product categories. We believe that the product lines and brands we offer are among the
highest quality within their respective market categories, with well-established brand recognition and reputations for quality, performance, styling and
innovation.

Fishing Boats. Revenue from fishing boats comprised 37% of our new boat revenue for fiscal year 2025. The fishing boats we offer range from entry-level
models to advanced models, from brands such as Everglades, Grady-White, Pursuit, Sportsman, Cobia and World Cat, each designed for fishing and water
sports in lakes, bays and off-shore waters, with cabins with limited live-aboard capability. The fishing boats we offer typically feature livewells, in-deck
fishboxes, rodholders, rigging stations, cockpit coaming pads and fresh and saltwater washdowns.

Pontoon Boats and Runabouts. Revenue from pontoon boats and runabouts comprised 28% of our new boat revenue for fiscal year 2025. We offer a
variety of some of the most innovative, luxurious, and premium pontoon models to fit boaters’ needs, from brands such as Bennington and Barletta. Our
runabouts, such as Cobalt, Regal and Yamaha, target the family recreational boating markets and come in a variety of configurations to suit each customer’s
particular recreational boating style. The models we offer may include amenities such as advanced navigation electronics and sound systems, a variety of hull,
deck, and cockpit designs that can include a swim platform, bow pulpit and raised bridges, and swivel bucket helm seats, lounge seats, sun pads, wet bars,
built-in ice chests, and refreshment centers. With a variety of designs and options, the pontoon boats and runabouts we ofter appeal to a broad audience of boat
enthusiasts and existing customers.
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Wake/Ski Boats. Revenue from wake/ski boats comprised 3% of our new boat revenue for fiscal year 2025. The ski boats we offer range from entry-level
models to advanced models, from brands such as Axis and Malibu, all of which are designed to generate specific wakes for optimal skiing, surfing and
wakeboarding performance and safety. With a broad range of designs and options, the ski boats we offer appeal to both competitive and recreational users.

Yachts. Revenue from yachts comprised 27% of our new boat revenue for fiscal year 2025. The yachts we offer range from traditional models to advanced
models, from brands such as Absolute, Riviera, Tiara, HCB and Sunseeker. The yacht product lines typically include state-of-the-art designs with live-aboard
luxuries, offering amenities such as flybridges with extensive guest seating; covered aft deck, which may be fully or partially enclosed, providing the boater
with additional living space; an elegant salon; and multiple staterooms for accommodations.

Motors, Trailers, Personal Water Crafts (“PWC”), Wholesale and Other. Revenue from motors, trailers, PWC, wholesale and other sales comprised 5% of
our new boat revenue for fiscal year 2025. The motors and trailers we offer range in size, horsepower, length and style dependent upon the type of boat our
customers may own. We offer PWC, primarily including models from Yamaha and Sea Doo, which appeal to a broad audience of customers. Wholesale sales
primarily consist of transactions with other dealers and other sales include the remaining new inventory products we offer.

Finance & Insurance Products

At each of our dealerships, our customers have the ability to finance their new or pre-owned boat purchase, purchase a third-party extended service
contract and arrange insurance covering boat property, disability, gel sealant, fabric protection and casualty insurance coverage (collectively, “finance &
insurance”). Our relationships with various national marine product lenders allow buyers to purchase retail installment contracts originated by us in accordance
with existing pre-sale agreements between us and the lenders. These retail installment contracts provide us with a portion of the expected finance charges based
on a variety of factors, including the buyer’s credit rating, the annual percentage rate of the contract and the lender’s then-existing minimum required annual
percentage rate. These contracts are subject to repayment by us upon buyer prepayment or default within a designated time period (typically within 180 days).
To the extent required by applicable state law, our dealer groups are licensed to originate and sell retail installment contracts financing the sale of boats and
other marine products.

We offer our customers third-party extended service contracts, which allow us to extend customers’ new boat coverage beyond the time frame or scope of
the manufacturer’s standard hull and engine warranty. We also offer purchasers of pre-owned boats the ability to purchase a third-party extended service
contract, even if the applicable boat is no longer covered by the manufacturer’s warranty. We also provide the related repair services, when needed by our
customers, pursuant to the service contract guidelines during the contract term at no additional charge to the customer above a deductible. Generally, we
receive a fee for arranging these extended service contracts and most of the required services under the contracts are provided by us and paid for by the third-
party contract holder.

We also assist our customers with obtaining property and casualty insurance. Property and casualty insurance covers loss or damage to their boat. We do
not act as an insurance broker or agent or issue insurance policies on behalf of insurers. We provide marketing activities and other related services to insurance
companies and brokers for which we receive marketing fees. One of our strategies is to generate increased marketing fees by offering more competitive
insurance products.

Fee income generated from finance & insurance products accounted for approximately $55.0 million or 2.9% of our revenue during fiscal year 2025. We
believe that our customers’ ability to obtain competitive, prompt and convenient financing at our dealerships strengthens our ability to sell new and pre-owned
boats and gives us an advantage over many of our competitors, particularly our smaller competitors that lack the resources to arrange boat financing at their
dealerships or that do not generate enough finance & insurance product volume to attract the broad range of financing sources that are available to us.

Service, Parts & Other

Service, parts & other accounted for approximately $295.3 million or 15.8% of our revenue during fiscal year 2025 and is comprised of revenues
generated from our Dealerships and Distribution reporting segments.

Dealerships

We provide repair and maintenance services at most of our dealerships. We believe that our repair and maintenance services help strengthen our customer
relationships and that our quality service and emphasis on preventative maintenance increases the quality and supply of well-maintained boats available for our
pre-owned boat business. We perform both warranty and non-warranty repair services, with the cost of warranty work reimbursed by the manufacturer in
accordance with the manufacturer’s warranty reimbursement program. For any warranty work we perform, most of our manufacturers reimburse a percentage
of the dealership’s posted service labor rates, with the percentage varying depending on the dealership’s customer satisfaction index rating and attendance at
service training courses. Certain other of our manufacturers reimburse warranty work at a fixed amount per repair. Because boat manufacturers require that
warranty work be performed at authorized dealerships, our dealerships receive substantially all of the warrantied repair and maintained work required for
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the boats we offer. We also offer third-party extended warranty contracts, which result in a continuous demand for our repair and maintenance services for the
term of the extended warranty contract.

We offer engine parts, oils, lubricants, steering and control systems, electronics, safety products, water sport accessories (such as tubes, wakeboards,
surfboards, lines, and lifejackets), products relating to docking and anchoring, boat covers, trailer parts, and a complete line of other boating accessories at our
dealerships and online, primarily to retail customers to repair their current engines or other marine related parts and equipment.

At certain of our dealerships, we offer marina and boat rental services, which are generally recurring in nature and create additional opportunities to
connect with potential buyers. We maintain a small fleet of rental boats, and, after one season, the rental boats are repurposed for pre-owned sales. Additionally,
we operate 20 marina locations that provide fueling, docking and indoor and outdoor storage.

Our focus on customer service, which we believe is one of our core competitive advantages in the retail marine industry, is critical to our efforts in creating
and maintaining long-term customers.

Distribution
We offer the sale of marine related parts and accessories along with appearance and maintenance products for the marine and other ancillary markets.

The acquisitions of T-H Marine and PartsVu expanded our sale of marine related parts and accessories, including general boat accessories, electronics
(GPS, radar, sonar, etc.), original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) marine parts, boat performance items, access hatches, jack plates, deck plates, deck
hardware, live well aeration, bilge pumps, plumbing fittings, battery trays, fishing rod holders, boat lights, rigging accessories, trolling motor accessories, and
safety equipment. These products are sold to boat manufacturers, distributors, big box retailers, boat dealerships and after-market customers.

The acquisition of Ocean Bio-Chem further expanded our Distribution segment. Ocean Bio-Chem is principally engaged in the manufacture, marketing,
and distribution of a broad line of appearance, performance and maintenance products for the marine, automotive, power sports, recreational vehicle, home care
and outdoor power equipment markets, under the Star brite® and Star Tron® brand names. In addition, Ocean Bio-Chem produces private label formulations
of many of its products for various customers and provide custom blending and packaging services for these and other products. Ocean Bio-Chem also
manufactures, markets and distributes chlorine dioxide-based deodorizing disinfectant, and sanitizing products under the Star brite® and Performacide® brand
names, utilizing a patented delivery system for use with products containing chlorine dioxide.

This segment has advanced our strategic growth and diversification strategies and has expanded our addressable market in the parts and accessories
business. We believe that the expansion will allow us to drive deeper customer engagements through the offer of private label consumable products and may
help partially offset the industry cyclicality of boat sales.

Locations

In our Dealership segment, we offer new and pre-owned recreational boats and other related marine products and boat services through 95 dealerships in
17 states as of September 30, 2025. Each dealership generally includes an indoor showroom and an outside display area for our new and pre-owned boat
inventories, along with a business office to facilitate finance & insurance products and repair and maintenance services facilities. We also have 9 locations
spanning 4 states in our Distribution segment. The use of these facilities varies and primarily includes manufacturing facilities, distribution centers,
warehouses, administrative and product testing centers.

Operations
Operations and Management

The operational management of our retail locations are decentralized, with certain administrative functions centralized at the corporate level and the
primary responsibility of day-to-day operations localized at the dealership. Each location is managed by a general manager, often a former owner, who oversees
the day-to-day operations and financial performance of that particular individual location. Each retail location also has a staff typically consisting of sales
representatives, a finance & insurance manager, a service manager, a parts manager, maintenance and repair technicians and additional support personnel.
Distribution centers/warehouses typically have an on-site management team and warehouse workers. Sales, administrative functions and marketing for
distribution centers/warehouses are primarily at a centralized level.

We provide employees with ongoing training, career advancement opportunities and favorable benefit packages as a part of our strategy to attract and
retain high quality employees. Sales training sessions are held at various locations, including the manufacturers’ facilities, and cover a broad array of topics
from technical product details, features and benefits, to general sales techniques. Our highly-trained professional sales teams recognize the importance of
building relationships with customers, assisting them in selecting the boat that
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best fits their needs and making the entire sales process enjoyable, all of which are critical to our successful sales efforts. The overall focus of our training
program is to provide exemplary customer service.

Members of our sales teams receive compensation primarily on a commission basis. Additionally, each manager within a dealership receives a salary along
with incentive compensation based on the performance of the managed location or their respective departments.

Sales and Marketing

Our sales strategy focuses on highlighting the joys of the boating lifestyle while also providing convenient repair and maintenance services to maintain a
stress-free boating experience. Our sales strategy is built on our high levels of customer service, hassle-free sales approach, appealing dealership layouts,
highly-trained sales teams and the ability of our sales teams to educate customers and their families on boating. We constantly aim to provide the highest levels
of customer service and support before, during and after each sale.

Each of our dealerships offers our customers the opportunity to evaluate a variety of new and pre-owned boats in an environment that is convenient,
comfortable and professional. Our dealerships provide a full-service purchasing process, which includes attractive finance & insurance packages and extended
third-party service agreements. We have a number of waterfront dealerships, most of which include marina-type facilities and docks at which we display our
new and pre-owned boats. These waterfront dealerships and marinas are easily accessible to boating customers, operate as in-water showrooms and enable our
sales team to give potential customers impromptu in-water demonstrations of our various boat models. Our sales team members are providing certain
customers with the option of in-person or virtual walkthroughs of inventory and/or private, at home or on water showings. We continue to expand our online
presence and sales through digital platforms to engage in online new and pre-owned boat sales, parts and accessories as well as finance & insurance products.
We continue to launch tools for our customer relationship management system, our websites and online sales portals, which we expect to be further enhanced
by our continued investments in digital initiatives.

We provide customers a diverse offering of boat brands, which span across a multitude of sizes, uses and activities, including leisure, fishing, watersports,
luxury and vacation. We believe this diverse offering of brands allows us to reach a broad expanse of customers and maximizes our ability to provide high
quality service to each customer that walks into one of our dealerships.

An important part of our sales strategy is our participation in boat shows and specialized events in areas with high levels of boating activity. These shows
and events help drive sales during and after the show or event and are typically held in January, February, March and toward the end of the boating season at
convention centers or marinas that have been rented out by area dealers. Additionally, we focus on customer education through personalized education by our
sales representatives and other professionals, before, during and after a sale through product demonstrations on the use and operation of their boat. Typically,
one of our delivery professionals or the sales representative delivers the customer’s boat to the customer’s boating location and thoroughly instructs the
customer about the operation of the boat, including hands-on instructions for docking and trailering the boat.

With the addition of T-H Marine and Ocean Bio-Chem, we sell our manufactured and assembled products through national retailers, direct to OEM
manufacturers and online. Our branded and private label products are sold through national retailers such as Wal-Mart, Tractor Supply, West Marine and Bass
Pro Shops. Additionally, we market our products via online retailers such as Amazon. We also sell to national and regional distributors that resell our products
to specialized retail outlets.

Suppliers and Inventory Management

We purchase substantially all of our new boat inventory directly from manufacturers. Manufacturers typically allocate new boats to dealerships or dealer
groups based on the amount of boats sold by the dealership or dealer group and their market share. We exchange new boats with other dealers to maintain
flexibility, meet customer demand and balance inventory. We also display a select number of boats and yachts through consignment agreements, including with
related parties.

We offer a wide array of new boats at various price points through relationships with over 35 manufacturers covering more than 50 brands. We believe we
are currently a top-three customer for 24 of our brands and the single largest customer for each of our top five highest-selling brands. While we believe our
order volume amounts to between 10% to 40% of total sales for those top five brands, no single brand accounts for more than 7% of our total sales volume.
Additionally, our top brand only accounts for approximately 11% of new boat sales. However, sales of new boats from the top ten brands represent
approximately 41% of our total sales volume for fiscal year 2025.

As part of our business, we enter into renewable annual dealer agreements with boat manufacturers. Provided that we are in compliance with the material
obligations of such dealer agreements, they designate an exclusive geographical territory for our dealership to sell a particular boat brand and typically do not
restrict our right to sell any other product lines or competing products.

We are able to transfer boats between our dealerships to maintain flexibility, meet customer demand and balance inventories. This flexibility reduces
delays in delivery, helps us maximize inventory turnover and assists in minimizing potential overstock or out-of-stock situations. We actively monitor our
inventory levels to maintain levels appropriate to meet current anticipated market demands. We are not
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bound by contractual agreements governing the amount of inventory that we must purchase in any year from any manufacturer; however, the failure to
purchase at agreed upon levels may result in the loss of certain manufacturer incentives or dealership rights.

We also maintain diverse relationships with domestic and international suppliers of products and raw materials that are used in our Distribution segment.
Our sophisticated sourcing model allows us to acquire products and materials at competitive prices. We believe that these relationships, many of which have
been in place for 10+ years, allows for industry leading delivery times, flexible capacity to support growth, and category expansion. These relationships also
allow us to reduce capital expenditure requirements to produce core components but allows us to assemble the components or systems our customers need.

Our inventory turnover ratio, which is calculated as cost of goods sold for the period divided by the average inventory over the same period, was 2.6x and
2.2x for fiscal years 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Inventory Financing

Boat manufacturers customarily provide various levels of interest assistance programs to retailers, which may include periods of free financing or reduced
interest rate programs. The interest assistance may be paid directly to the retailer or the financial institution depending on the arrangements the manufacturer
has established. We believe that our financing arrangements with manufacturers are standard within the industry.

We are party to our Inventory Financing Facility (as defined below). For the years ended September 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023, interest on new boats and
for rental units was calculated using the Adjusted 30-Day Average SOFR (as defined in the Inventory Financing Facility section below). Our Inventory
Financing Facility requires us to pay the benchmark rate plus an applicable margin of 2.75% to 5.00% depending on the age of the inventory. The interest rate
for pre-owned boats is calculated using the new boat rate set forth above plus 0.25%.

The collateral for the Inventory Financing Facility consists primarily of our inventory that is financed through the Inventory Financing Facility and related
assets, including accounts receivable, bank accounts, and proceeds of the foregoing, and excludes the collateral that underlies our A&R Credit Facility (as
defined below). For additional information relating to the terms of our Inventory Financing Facility, please see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Debt Agreements—Inventory Financing Facility.”

Customers

We are not dependent on any one customer or group of customers, and no individual customer, or together with its affiliates, contributed on an aggregate
basis 10% or more to our revenues.

Seasonality

Our business, along with the entire retail marine industry, is highly seasonal, and such seasonality varies by geographic market. With the exception of
Florida, we generally realize lower sales and higher levels of inventories, and related floor plan borrowings, in the quarterly periods ending December 31 and
March 31. Revenue generated from our dealerships in Florida serves to offset generally lower winter revenue in our other states and enables us to maintain a
more consistent revenue stream. Over the three-year period ended September 30, 2025, the average revenue for the quarters ended December 31, March 31,
June 30 and September 30 represented approximately 20%, 27%, 30%, and 23%, respectively, of our average annual revenues. Every January, the onset of
consumer boat and recreation shows generally marks the beginning of an increase in boat sales which allows us to begin to reduce our inventory levels and
related short-term borrowings for the remainder of the fiscal year.

Our limited ability to participate in boat shows in our existing target markets, including cancellation of boat shows for any reason, including weather
events or a global health crisis, could have an impact on our seasonality. To the extent boat shows may be delayed or cancelled, we intend to hold
complementary sales events on a smaller, more personalized scale.

Our business is also sensitive to weather patterns, such as unseasonably cool weather, prolonged winter conditions, drought conditions (or merely reduced
rainfall levels) or excessive rain, which may shorten the selling season, limit access to certain locations for boating or render boating hazardous or
inconvenient, thereby curtailing customer demand for our products and services and adversely affecting our results of operations. Additionally, hurricanes,
tornadoes and other storms have and in the future may cause disruptions to our business operations or damage to our inventories and facilities. We believe our
geographic diversity is likely to reduce the overall impact to us of adverse weather conditions in any one market area.

Environmental and Other Regulatory Issues
Our business operations, along with the entire retail marine industry, are subject to numerous environmental and occupational health and safety laws and

regulations that may be imposed in the United States at the federal, state and local levels. Federal agencies that implement and enforce these laws and
regulations include the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) and the U.S. Occupational
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Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”). The more significant of these environmental and occupational health and safety laws and regulations include the
following federal legal standards that currently exist in the United States, as amended from time to time:

e the Clean Air Act (“CAA”), which restricts the emission of air pollutants from many sources, including outboard marine engines and chemical
manufacturing operations, and imposes various pre-construction, operational, monitoring, and reporting requirements, and that the EPA has relied
upon as authority for adopting climate change regulatory initiatives relating to greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions;

* the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (the “Clean Water Act”), which regulates discharges of pollutants from facilities to state and federal waters
and establishes the extent to which waterways are subject to federal jurisdiction and rulemaking as protected waters of the United States;

* the Oil Pollution Act (“OPA”), which subjects owners and operators of vessels, onshore facilities, and pipelines, as well as lessees or permittees of
areas in which offshore facilities are located, to liability for removal costs and damages arising from an oil spill in waters of the United States;

* the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (“CERCLA”), which imposes liability on generators, transporters,
disposers and arrangers of hazardous substances at sites where hazardous substance releases have occurred or are threatening to occur;

* the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRA”), which governs the generation, treatment, storage, transport, and disposal of solid wastes,
including hazardous wastes;

e the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act, which requires facilities to implement a safety hazard communication program and
disseminate information to employees, local emergency planning committees, and fire departments on toxic chemical uses and inventories; and

* the Occupational Safety and Health Act, which establishes workplace standards for the protection of the health and safety of employees, including the
implementation of hazard communications programs designed to inform employees about hazardous substances in the workplace, potential harmful
effects of these substances, and appropriate control measures.

Additionally, state and local jurisdictions in the United States where we operate also have, or are developing or considering developing, similar
environmental and occupational health and safety laws and regulations governing many of these same types of activities, which requirements may impose
additional, or more stringent, conditions or controls than required under federal law and that can significantly alter, delay or cancel the permitting,
development, or expansion of operations or substantially increase the cost of doing business. Environmental and occupational health and safety laws and
regulations, including new or amended legal requirements that may arise in the future to address potential environmental concerns such as air and water
impacts or to address perceived human health or safety-related concerns, including a global or national health crisis, are expected to continue to have a
considerable impact on our operations.

As with companies in the marine retail industry generally, and parts and service operations in particular, our business involves the use, handling, storage
and contracting for recycling or disposal of petroleum-based products and wastes, as well as other hazardous and toxic substances and wastes, including
gasoline, diesel fuels, motor oil, waste motor oil and filters, transmission fluid, antifreeze, freon, waste paint and lacquer thinner, batteries, solvents, lubricants,
and degreasing agents. Environmental and occupational health and safety laws and regulations generally impose requirements for the use, storage,
management, handling, transport and disposal of these materials, and restrict the level of pollutants emitted into the environment, including into ambient air,
discharges to surface water, and disposal or other releases to surface and below-ground soils and ground water. Failure to comply with these laws and
regulations may result in the assessment of sanctions, including administrative, civil, and criminal penalties or liabilities to third parties; the imposition of
investigatory, remedial, and corrective action obligations or the incurrence of capital expenditures; the occurrence of restrictions, delays or cancellations in the
permitting, development, or expansion of projects; and the issuance of injunctions restricting or prohibiting some or all of our activities in a particular area.
Moreover, there exist environmental laws that provide for citizen suits, which allow individuals or organizations to act in the place of the government and sue
operators for alleged violations of environmental law.

Additionally, like other manufacturers, the manufacturing operations of Ocean Bio-Chem are subject to extensive federal, state and local environmental
laws and requirements concerning emissions to the air, discharges onto land or surface waters, and the generation, handling, storage, transportation, treatment,
disposal and remediation of hazardous substances and waste materials. Many of these laws and regulations provide for substantial fines or penalties. Existing or
future regulations may restrict our operations, increase our costs of operations or require us to make additional capital expenditures.

We are also subject to laws and regulations governing the investigation and remediation of contamination at the facilities we currently or formerly own or
operate, as well as at third-party sites to which we send hazardous substances or wastes for treatment, recycling or disposal. Some environmental laws, such as
CERCLA and similar state statutes, impose strict joint and several liability for the entire cost of investigation and remediation of a contaminated property and
for any related damages to natural resources, upon current or former site
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owners or operators, as well as persons who arranged for the transportation, treatment or disposal of hazardous substances. We may also be subject to third-
party claims alleging property damage and/or personal injury in connection with releases of, or exposure to, hazardous substances at our current or former
properties or off-site waste disposal sites or from the products we sell.

Additionally, certain of our locations utilize underground storage tanks (“USTs”) and aboveground storage tanks (“ASTs”), primarily for storing and
dispensing petroleum-based products. The USTs and ASTs are generally subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations that require obtaining financial
assurance to own or operate USTs and ASTs, testing and upgrading of tanks and remediation of contaminated soils and groundwater resulting from leaking
tanks. Moreover, if leakage from our USTs or ASTs migrates onto the property of others, we may be liable to third parties for remediation costs, natural
resource damages or other damages.

Increasingly strict environmental, health and safety laws, regulations and enforcement policies could affect the handling, manufacture, use, emission or
disposal of products, other materials or hazardous and non-hazardous waste and could result in increased operating costs or capital expenditures to comply with
such laws and regulations. Additionally, we are required to have permits for our businesses and are subject to licensing regulations. From time to time, these
permits and licenses are subject to renewal, modification, and in some circumstances, revocation.

For additional information relating to environmental protection, including releases, discharges and emissions into the environment, as well as worker
health and safety requirements, please see “Risk Factors— Risks Related to Environmental and Geographic Factors—Climatic events may adversely impact
our operations, disrupt the business of our third party vendors on whom we rely upon for products and services, and may not be adequately covered by our
insurance,” “—Environmental and other regulatory issues impact our operations from time to time” and “Our operations are subject to risks arising out of the
threat of climate change, which could result in increased operating costs and reduced demand for the products that we and the retail recreational boat industry
provide.” Historically, our environmental compliance costs have not had a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations;
however, there can be no assurance that such costs will not be material in the future or that such future compliance will not have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Product Liability

Our sale and servicing of boats and other watercraft as well as the sale of parts and accessories which we manufacture may expose us to potential liabilities
for personal injury or property damage claims relating to the use of such products. Historically, product liability claims have not materially affected our
business. Our manufacturers generally maintain product liability insurance, and we maintain third-party liability insurance with respect to the sale and servicing
of boats and other watercraft. In addition, for products we manufacture, we maintain product liability insurance. We believe all such insurance coverage to be
adequate. However, we may experience legal claims in excess of our insurance coverage, and those claims may not be covered by insurance. Furthermore, any
significant claims against us, or an increase in insurance premiums resulting from excessive insurance claims, could adversely affect our business, financial
performance and results of operations and result in negative publicity.

Competition

We operate in a highly competitive and fragmented environment. We face competition from businesses relating to recreational activities, which businesses
compete for consumers’ leisure time and discretionary spending dollars. We face intense competition within the highly fragmented marine retail industry for
customers, quality products, boat show space and suitable dealership locations. We rely to a certain extent on boat shows to generate sales. Our inability to
participate in boat shows in our existing or targeted markets could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial performance and results of
operations.

We compete primarily with local marine retailers who own three or fewer stores, as well as with a limited number of larger operators. Additionally, with
respect to sales of marine parts, accessories, and equipment, we also compete with national specialty marine parts and accessory stores, online catalog retailers,
sporting goods stores, and mass merchants. Competition within the retail marine industry is generally based on the quality and variety of available products, the
price and value of the products and services and attention to customer service. We face significant competition from our current market and will likely face
significant competition in any new markets that we may enter. We also face competition from retailers in certain markets who sell boat brands, parts and
engines that we do not currently carry in such markets. Additionally, a number of our competitors are large national or regional chains that have substantially
more financial, marketing and other resources than us, especially with regard to those that sell boating accessories. We also face competition from private
sellers of pre-owned boats and online merchants entering the resale boating industry. However, we believe that our integrated corporate infrastructure,
marketing and sales capabilities, cost structure, industry expertise and customer experience enable us to compete effectively against these competitors.

Intellectual Property
We are the registered holder of a U.S. trademark and a domain name that include our primary brand name “OneWater”. Additionally, we have obtained
registered trademarks for Star brite®, Star Tron®, Performacide® and other trade names used on our products. We also rely on a number of trade names with

respect to the regional dealer groups that we have acquired, which we do not re-brand under our “OneWater” mark, and most of these regional brand names are
also trademarked. We view our trademarks as significant assets because
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they provide product recognition. We believe that our trademarks provide protection in the geographic markets we serve, but we cannot assure that our
intellectual property rights can be maintained or successfully asserted in the future or will not be invalidated, circumvented or challenged. We cannot give any
assurance that any trade name and trademark applications that we may file in the future will be granted.

We own several patents, the most significant of which relate to a delivery system for use with products containing chlorine dioxide. In 2021, we were
issued a new patent for our ClO, delivery system that expires on July 8, 2039. See “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Operations—We may be unable to
adequately maintain, enforce, and protect our intellectual property rights and we may be accused of infringing the intellectual property rights of third parties,
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial conditions, and operations,” in Item 1A of this report for additional information.

Human Capital Resources

As of September 30, 2025, we had 2,231 employees, 1,973 of whom were in location-level operations and 258 of whom were in corporate administration
and management. We are not a party to any collective bargaining agreements. We consider our relations with our employees to be excellent.

Throughout our operations, we are focused on recruiting, developing and retaining the best talent in the industry. We devote substantial efforts to train
employees on utilizing our proprietary technology, systems and processes for success. We have developed a robust curriculum covering multiple retail
strategies, products and system knowledge, which our employees must develop a proficiency in, prior to working with retail customers. We believe this
differentiates us from others in the marine industry and provides our customers with a differentiated experience when dealing with our team.

We generally believe in paying our employees based on their performance. This philosophy runs deep within the organization, from executive
management, location management, sales consultants, department management and select individuals within a department. We design compensation packages
for these employees by providing a competitive base salary and an incentive component where they can earn additional compensation based on the
performance of their area of responsibility or individual sales. As a result of our performance-based compensation philosophy, pay levels may vary
significantly from year to year and among our various team members.

Our overall philosophy is to pay competitive wages to all team members, which helps us to attract, motivate, and retain a highly qualified team and reduce
turnover. Cash incentive plans and other bonuses may also be paid and are designed to reward individuals based on the achievement of personal and/or
corporate objectives, which contribute to our long-term success. Grants of stock-based awards under our 2020 Omnibus Incentive Plan are intended to align
compensation with increasing long-term shareholder value. The Company also provides an employee stock purchase plan which enables eligible employees to
purchase shares of the Company’s Class A common stock at a discount through participation in discrete offering periods. The employee stock purchase plan is
intended to qualify as an employee stock purchase plan under section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Our Offices

Our principal executive offices are located at 6275 Lanier Islands Parkway, Buford, Georgia 30518, and our telephone number at that address is 678-541-
6300. Our website address is www.onewatermarine.com. Within the Investor Relations section of our website, the following documents are available free of
charge: the Company’s annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and any amendments to those reports that
are filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) pursuant to Sections 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”). These materials are made available through the Company’s website as soon as reasonably practicable after they are
electronically filed with, or furnished to, the SEC. In addition to its reports filed or furnished with the SEC, the Company publicly discloses material
information from time to time in its press releases, at annual meetings of shareholders, in publicly accessible conferences and investor presentations, and
through its website. References to the Company’s website in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are provided as a convenience and do not constitute, and should
not be deemed, an incorporation by reference of the information contained on, or available through, the website, and such information should not be considered
part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Our Corporate Structure

OneWater Inc. was incorporated as a Delaware corporation in April 2019 for the purpose of completing the IPO and related transactions. On February 12,
2020, in connection with the IPO, OneWater Inc. became a holding company whose sole material asset consists of units in OneWater LLC (the “OneWater LLC
Units”). OneWater LLC holds all of the equity interest in One Water Assets & Operations (“OWAQO”), which owns all of our operating assets. The remainder of
the OneWater LLC Units not held by OneWater Inc. (and its direct and indirect wholly owned subsidiaries) were held, prior to March 31, 2025, by certain
Legacy Owners, who also held one share of our Class B common stock, par value $0.01 per share (the "Class B common stock"), for each OneWater LLC Unit
such person held. References in this Form 10-K to the “Legacy Owners” refer to the owners of OneWater LLC as they existed immediately prior to the
Reorganization.

During the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025, all of the remaining OneWater LLC Units then held by the Legacy Owners were exchanged, on a one-
for-one basis and in accordance with the fourth amended and restated limited liability company agreement of
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OneWater LLC (the “OneWater LLC Agreement”), for 1,429,940 shares of our Class A common stock, par value $0.01 per share ("Class A common stock"),
together with the cancellation of all of the remaining shares of our Class B common stock (the "Final Redemption"). Accordingly, as of December 2, 2025,
OneWater Inc., directly and indirectly through its wholly owned subsidiaries, owns 100.0% of OneWater LLC.

As the sole managing member of OneWater LLC, OneWater Inc. operates and controls all of the business and affairs of OneWater LLC, and through
OneWater LLC and its subsidiaries, conducts its business. As a result, we consolidate the financial results of OneWater LLC and its subsidiaries. Prior to the
Final Redemption, we reported temporary equity related to the portion of OneWater LLC Units not owned by us, which reduced net income (loss) attributable
to the holders of our Class A common stock.

Executive Officers and Directors

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our executive officers and directors:

Name Position Age
P. Austin Singleton Founder, Executive Chairman and Director 52
Anthony Aisquith Chief Executive Officer and Director 58
Jack Ezzell Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary 55
John F. Schraudenbach Lead Independent Director 66
Bari A. Harlam Director 64
Carmen Bauza Director 63
Christopher W. Bodine Director 70
J. Steven Roy Director 65
Jeffery B. Lamkin Director 56
John G. Troiano Director 55

Executive Officers

P. Austin Singleton has served as our Executive Chairman of the Board since August 2025, as our Chief Executive Officer from April 2019 to August
2025, as a Director since April 2019, as the Chief Executive Officer of OneWater LLC from its formation in 2014 to August 2025, and the Chief Executive
Officer of Singleton Marine, which later merged with Legendary Marine to form OneWater LLC, from 2006 to August 2025. Mr. Singleton served on the
Board of Managers of OneWater LLC since its formation in 2006 until the Reorganization. Mr. Singleton first joined Singleton Marine in 1988, shortly after his
family founded Singleton Marine in 1987. Prior to his role as the Executive Chairman of the Board, Mr. Singleton worked in substantially all positions within
the dealership from the fuel dock, to the service department, to the sales department, to general manager. Mr. Singleton studied Business and Finance at Auburn
University. Mr. Singleton was selected as a director due to his extensive management and industry experience.

Anthony Aisquith has served as our Chief Executive Officer since August 2025, as our President and Chief Operating Officer from April 2019 to August
2025 and as a Director since May 2020. Mr Aisquith has served as the Chief Executive Officer of OneWater LLC (including its predecessor entity, Singleton
Marine) since August 2025 and as the President and Chief Operating Officer from 2008 until August 2025. Mr. Aisquith served on the Board of Managers of
OneWater LLC from 2014 until the Reorganization. Mr. Aisquith has over 25 years of experience in the boating industry, and prior to joining OneWater LLC in
2008, he held several senior management positions at MarineMax (NYSE: HZO). Specifically, from 2003 to 2008, he served as Vice President, and from 2000
to 2008, he served as a Regional President, overseeing MarineMax’s operations in Georgia, North and South Carolina, Texas and California. Prior to serving as
Regional President, Mr. Aisquith held a variety of management and sales positions at MarineMax. Before joining MarineMax in June of 1995, Mr. Aisquith
worked for ten years in the auto industry. Our board of directors (the “Board of Directors™) believes Mr. Aisquith’s extensive industry experience and his
familiarity with the Company qualify him to serve as a director.
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Jack Ezzell has served as our Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer since August 2025 and as our Chief Financial Officer from April 2019 to
August 2025. Mr. Ezzell has served as the Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer of OneWater LLC since August 2025 and as the Chief Financial
Officer from 2017 until August 2025. Mr. Ezzell has over 25 years of accounting and finance experience, with over 20 years of experience in the boating
industry specifically. Immediately prior to beginning his tenure as Chief Financial Officer of OneWater LLC, Mr. Ezzell was a General Manager at MarineMax
(NYSE: HZO), where he oversaw all dealership operations at MarineMax’s Clearwater and St. Petersburg, Florida locations. From 2010 to 2015, Mr. Ezzell
served as Chief Accounting Officer of Masonite International Corporation (NYSE: DOOR), and from 1998 to 2010, he served as the Controller and as the
Chief Accounting Officer at MarineMax. Prior to joining MarineMax, Mr. Ezzell began his career as an auditor for Arthur Andersen. Mr. Ezzell is a Certified
Public Accountant and obtained his Bachelor of Science in Accounting from Western Carolina University.

Non-Employee Directors

John F. Schraudenbach has served on our Board of Directors since the closing of our IPO and has served as Lead Independent Director since August
2025. He previously served as Chairman of the Board of Directors from 2023 until August 2025 and prior to that as the Audit Committee Chair. Mr.
Schraudenbach is a partner with The Goodwin Group, an executive retained search firm. Prior to joining Goodwin, Mr. Schraudenbach held various positions
(primarily as an audit partner) at Ernst & Young for 37 years until his retirement in June 2019. He currently serves on the Board of Directors and as Chair of the
Audit Committee at Proficient Auto Logistics (NASDAQ: PAL), a leading provider of vehicle transportation and logistics solutions. In addition, Mr.
Schraudenbach serves on the Board of Directors of Printpack, Inc., a private manufacturer of packaging materials for consumer products and other industries.
Mr. Schraudenbach also serves on the University of Georgia Foundation Board as well as various other civic organizations. Mr. Schraudenbach received both a
Bachelor and Masters of Accounting from the University of Georgia. He was a Certified Public Accountant. Our Board of Directors believes Mr.
Schraudenbach is qualified to serve on our Board of Directors because of his substantial financial and business expertise.

Bari A. Harlam was appointed to our Board of Directors on May 12, 2020. Ms. Harlam is a business leader, marketer, educator and author. From April
2018 to March 2020, Ms. Harlam served as Chief Marketing Officer North America at Hudson’s Bay Company (TSX: HBC). She has also served on the Board
of Directors of Eastern Bankshares, Inc. (NASDAQ: EBC) since February 2014, of Aterian, Inc. (NASDAQ: ATER) since February 2020, and of Champion
Petfoods, LP from March 2020 to March 2023. Ms. Harlam also served on the Board of Directors of Rite Aid Corporation (formerly NYSE: RAD) from
September 2020 to August 2024. Prior to her time at Hudson’s Bay Company, she was EVP, Membership, Marketing & Analytics at BJ’s Wholesale Club
(NYSE: BJ) from July 2012 to December 2016. Before joining BJ’s Wholesale Club, she served as Chief Marketing Officer at Swipely, now called Upserve,
from August 2011 to July 2012 and prior to that, she served as SVP, Marketing at CVS Health (NYSE: CVS) from 2000 to August 2011. Early in her career,
she was a Professor at Columbia University from July 1989 to July 1992 and The University of Rhode Island from July 1992 to July 2000. In addition, she was
an Adjunct Professor at The Wharton School at The University of Pennsylvania from January 2015 to May 2018. She received a Bachelor of Science in
Marketing and Decision Sciences, a Master of Science in Econometrics and a Ph.D. in Marketing from The University of Pennsylvania, The Wharton School.
Our Board of Directors believes that Ms. Harlam is qualified to serve on our Board of Directors because of her extensive business and marketing experience as
well as her prior board experience.

Carmen Bauza was appointed to our Board of Directors on March 1, 2023. Ms. Bauza currently serves on the Board of Directors of Zumiez, Inc.
(NASDAQ: ZUMZ) and Destination XL Group, Inc. (NASDAQ: DXLG). She was previously a director at Walmart de Mexico (WALMEX) and on the board
of managers at Claire’s, Inc. Most recently, Ms. Bauza served as the Chief Merchandising Officer at Fanatics, Inc. from January 2019 until April 2021. Prior to
that, she was the Chief Merchandising Officer at HSN from November 2016 until December 2017 and the Senior Vice President, General Merchandise
Manager Consumables, Health and Wellness at Walmart, Inc. (NYSE: WMT) from June 2007 to October 2016. She previously held roles at Bath & Body
Works, Inc. (NYSE: BBWI), Five Below, Inc. (NASDAQ: FIVE) and The Walt Disney Company (NYSE: DIS). Ms. Bauza currently serves as a member of the
board of trustees at Seton Hill University and as a member of the advisory board of RoundTable Healthcare Partners Council. Ms. Bauza is a graduate of Seton
Hill University where she studied fashion merchandising and business management. Our Board of Directors believes Ms. Bauza is qualified to serve on our
Board of Directors because of her extensive business and marketing experience as well as her prior board experience.

Christopher W. Bodine has served on our Board of Directors since the closing of our IPO. Mr. Bodine retired as President, Health Care Services at CVS
Health Corp (formerly CVS Caremark Corporation) (NYSE: CVS) (“CVS”) after 24 years with CVS in 2009. During his tenure as President, Mr. Bodine was
responsible for Strategy, Business Development, Trade Relations, Sales and Account Management, Pharmacy Merchandising, Marketing, Information
Technology, and Minute Clinic. Mr. Bodine is currently Chairman and Director of Continuum RX Services, Inc. Mr. Bodine is also a Venture Partner at
NewSpring Capital and a Director of Russell Medical Center Foundation. Prior to these positions, he was a director at Allergan Plc (NYSE: AGN), Fred’s, Inc.
(NASDAQ: FRED) and Nash-Finch Company. Mr. Bodine formerly served as a Trustee for Bryant University and is active with the Juvenile Diabetes
Research Foundation and the American Heart Association. Mr. Bodine attended Troy State University and received an Honorary Doctorate Degree in Business
Administration from Johnson & Wales University. Our Board of Directors believes Mr. Bodine is qualified to serve on our Board of Directors because of his
prior leadership experience and his public company experience.

J. Steven Roy has served on our Board of Directors since August 2022. Mr. Roy has served as an independent financial advisor since 2019, managing
investment activities for a large family office. Prior to working independently, Mr. Roy was the Chief Financial Officer for AAA Cooper Transportation
(“ACT”) from 2004 to 2019, a multi-regional logistics company. Mr. Roy simultaneously served as a member of the ACT Board of Directors. Prior to that, he
was the Executive Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer of Movie Gallery,
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Inc., a Nasdag-listed video specialty retailer. Mr. Roy currently serves on the University of Alabama System Board of Trustees and previously served as a
Director at the Business Council of Alabama and the Dothan Area Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Roy earned his B.S. in Accounting from the University of
Alabama. Our Board of Directors believes that Mr. Roy is qualified to serve on our Board of Directors because of his public company experience, as well as his
financial and leadership background.

Jeffrey B. Lamkin has served on our Board of Directors since the closing of our IPO and served on the Board of Managers and on the Compensation
Committee of OneWater LLC (including its predecessor entity, Singleton Marine) from 2012 until the IPO. Mr. Lamkin currently serves as the Chief Executive
Officer of Sea Oats Group, a family office focused on luxury lifestyle businesses, and has served in this capacity since 2001. In addition to his role at Sea Oats
Group, he serves as the Chief Executive Officer of Cinnamon Shore, a beach town development in Texas, and he is involved with the development of Lively
Beach, a beach town development in Texas. Prior to his positions with Sea Oats Group and Cinnamon Shore, Mr. Lamkin spent approximately 16 years in the
advertising and marketing industry, specializing in non-traditional media solutions, where he advised many Fortune 100 companies on marketing investments.
Mr. Lamkin received a Bachelor of Science with a concentration in Management and a minor in Economics from Towson State University. Our Board of
Directors believes Mr. Lamkin is qualified to serve on our Board of Directors because of his extensive business experience and his familiarity with OneWater
LLC.

John G. Troiano has served on our Board of Directors since the closing of our IPO and served on the Board of Managers and as Chairman of the
Compensation Committee of OneWater LLC from October 2016 until the IPO. Mr. Troiano is the Managing Partner and CEO of The Beekman Group
(collectively “Beekman”), which he co-founded in 2004. Mr. Troiano spent two years at the mergers and acquisitions boutique firm Gleacher & Company, Inc.
before joining Onex Corporation (TSX: ONEX) in 1996, where he became a Managing Director in Onex Corporation’s New York office in 1999. Mr. Troiano
serves on the board and is a chairman of numerous Beekman portfolio companies. Mr. Troiano is on the board of two academic institutions and is involved with
various charitable organizations. Mr. Troiano graduated summa cum laude with a B.S. in Economics from The Wharton School of The University of
Pennsylvania with concentrations in Finance and Accounting. Mr. Troiano then earned an M.B.A. from Harvard Business School. Our Board of Directors
believes Mr. Troiano is qualified to serve on our Board of Directors because of his financial expertise and prior professional experience.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Investing in our Class A common stock involves risks. Before making any investment decision, you should carefully consider the information in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the risks described below, the matters addressed under “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements,” our
consolidated financial statements and the related notes, and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” Some
of these risks include:

*  General economic conditions and consumer spending patterns can have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

»  Severe weather events, including hurricanes, floods, and other natural disasters, can disrupt our operations, damage inventory or facilities, impact
customer demand, and materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

»  Changes in geopolitical conditions—including fluctuations in tax laws, the imposition or increase of tariffs, trade restrictions, international supply
chain disruptions, and other governmental policies—can increase our costs, limit product availability, and adversely affect consumer demand and our

overall operating performance.

e The availability and costs of borrowed funds can adversely affect our ability to obtain adequate boat inventory, the ability and willingness of our
customers to finance boat purchases and our ability to fund future acquisitions.

e Failure to implement strategies to enhance our performance could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition.

e Our success depends, in part, on our ability to continue to make successful acquisitions at attractive or fair prices and to integrate the operations of
acquired marine retailers and each marine retailer we acquire in the future.

*  We are required to obtain the consent of our manufacturers prior to the acquisition of other dealers.

e Our failure to successfully order and manage our inventory to reflect consumer demand and to anticipate changing consumer preferences and buying
trends, or the lack or excess of inventory in the industry, generally, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

e OneWater Inc. is a holding company. OneWater Inc.’s only material asset is its direct and indirect equity interest in OneWater LLC, and OneWater Inc.

is accordingly dependent upon distributions from OneWater LLC to pay taxes, make payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement and cover
OneWater Inc.s corporate and other overhead expenses.
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»  Ifwe experience any material weaknesses in the future or otherwise fail to develop or maintain an effective system of internal controls in the future,
we may not be able to accurately report our financial condition or results of operations, which may adversely affect investor confidence in us and, as
a result, the value of our Class A common stock.

e Our Legacy Owners own a significant amount of our voting stock, and their interests may conflict with those of our other stockholders.

*  In certain cases, payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement may be accelerated and/or significantly exceed the actual benefits, if any, OneWater
Inc. realizes in respect of the tax attributes subject to the Tax Receivable Agreement.

*  We may be unable to adequately maintain, enforce, and protect our intellectual property rights and we may be accused of infringing the intellectual
property rights of third parties, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operations.

*  Climatic events may adversely impact our operations, disrupt the business of our third party vendors on whom we rely upon for products and services,
and may not be adequately covered by our insurance.

Our business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected by any of these risks or uncertainties discussed herein.
The trading price of our Class A common stock could decline due to any of these risks discussed herein, and you may lose all or part of your investment.
Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial also may materially adversely affect our business,
financial condition, or future results. Certain statements made herein are forward-looking statements.

Risks Related to General Economic Conditions

General economic conditions and consumer spending patterns can have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

General economic conditions, including changes in employment levels, consumer demand, preferences and confidence levels, the availability and cost of
credit, fuel prices, levels of discretionary personal income, interest rates, periods of economic or political instability, public health crises, inflation, international
trade policies, and consumer spending patterns can negatively impact our operating results. Unfavorable local, regional, national or global economic
developments or uncertainties regarding future economic prospects could reduce or defer consumer spending in the markets we serve and adversely affect our
business. Consumer spending, including that of high net worth individuals, on discretionary goods may also decline as a result of political uncertainty and
instability, even if prevailing economic conditions are generally favorable. Economic conditions in areas in which we operate dealerships, particularly the
Southeast and Gulf Coast regions in which we generated approximately 80%, 79% and 81% of our revenue during fiscal years 2025, 2024 and 2023,
respectively, could have a major impact on our operations. Local influences, such as corporate downsizing, inclement weather such as hurricanes, wintry
conditions or other storms, environmental conditions and specific events, also could adversely affect, and in certain instances have adversely affected, our
operations in certain markets.

In an economic downturn, consumer discretionary spending levels generally decline, at times resulting in disproportionately large reductions in the sale of
discretionary goods. Consumer spending on discretionary goods also may decline as a result of lower consumer confidence levels, even if prevailing economic
conditions are favorable. Our business was significantly impacted during the recessionary period that began in 2007, and this period of weakness in consumer
spending and depressed economic conditions had a substantial negative effect on our operating results. In response to these conditions we reduced our
inventory purchases, closed certain dealerships and reduced headcount. Although we have expanded our operations and increased our focus on pre-owned
sales, parts and repair services and finance & insurance products, during periods of stagnant or modestly declining industry trends, the cyclical nature of the
retail marine industry or the lack of industry growth could lead to oversupply and weak demand, which could materially adversely affect our business, financial
condition or results of operations in the future. Any period of adverse economic conditions or low consumer confidence could have a negative effect on our
business.

Inflation could adversely affect our financial results.

The market prices of certain materials and components used by us and/or our suppliers in manufacturing the products we sell can be volatile. Significant
increases in inflation, particularly those related to wages and increases in the cost of raw materials, and the expenses associated with the distribution and
transportation of these materials and products we sell, can have an adverse impact on the business, financial condition, and results of operations of us or our
suppliers. The inflationary pressure on labor costs could lead to a reduction in profitability, as we may face challenges in maintaining our margins on boats and
other distributed products. Additionally, the increased costs in raw materials and transportation could further strain our supply chain, leading to higher
operational expenses. Our suppliers may in turn pass such increases along to us by raising the cost of our inventories and/or we may not be able to fully pass
along these increased costs onto our customers. These market dynamics may adversely impact our profitability.
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In addition, new boat buyers often finance their purchases. Inflation, along with rising interest rates, translates into an increased cost of boat ownership,
which can negatively impact our customers' ability or desire to purchase our products. Should inflation and increased rates continue to occur, prospective
consumers may choose to forego or delay their purchases or buy a less expensive boat in the event credit is not available to finance their boat purchases
affecting our profitability and margins.

Our sales may be adversely affected by a material increase in interest rates and adverse changes in fiscal policy or credit market conditions.

Since 2008, the U.S. Federal Reserve System has generally maintained policies producing a historically low-interest-rate environment. Interest rates rose
throughout 2022 and 2023 and may rise in the future, and there can be no assurance as to what actions the Federal Reserve System will take in the future. Any
change in interest rates or the market expectation of such change may result in significantly higher long-term interest rates.

Given that we sell products that are often financed, material increases in interest rates and adverse changes in fiscal policy or credit market conditions
have, from time to time, negatively impacted our customers’ ability or desire to purchase our products and may continue to do so in the future. In addition, such
an increase or adverse change could reduce the availability or increase the costs of obtaining new debt and refinancing existing indebtedness or negatively
impact the market price of our Class A common stock.

We are subject to risks associated with international trade policies, including tariffs and other restrictions, which could increase our costs, disrupt our
supply chain, or otherwise adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We source certain boats, components, and parts used in both the sale and service of boats from foreign manufacturers and suppliers, either directly or
through our manufacturer partners. This includes fully assembled boats manufactured outside of the United States, component parts integrated into boats
manufactured domestically, and parts used in post-sale servicing, warranty work, and aftermarket sales. Our Distribution segment, which includes the sale of
marine parts and accessories through our network of retail and wholesale channels, also sources a portion of its inventory from international suppliers or
contains components manufactured abroad. As a result, our business and operations are subject to risks associated with international trade, including changes in
U.S. or foreign government policies, tariffs, duties, import restrictions, export restrictions, sanctions, or other trade barriers.

Tariffs or other governmental actions that limit trade with certain foreign countries, particularly those that supply boats, components, or aftermarket parts,
could increase our procurement and manufacturing costs, delay delivery timelines, and limit the availability of critical inventory. For example, tariffs imposed
on boats manufactured in Europe or parts sourced from Asia could materially increase the cost of certain units or product categories or render specific product
lines less competitive in the U.S. market. Even where boats are manufactured in the U.S., many rely on imported components, and tariffs on those inputs could
increase costs for our manufacturing partners, which may in turn be passed on to us through price increases. Likewise, our Distribution segment could
experience similar margin compression or inventory shortfalls if costs increase or global supply chain availability declines.

Additionally, uncertainty surrounding U.S. trade policy, including the potential for retaliatory tariffs or escalating trade disputes, may create volatility in
pricing or lead to disruptions in the flow of goods. If our suppliers are unable to absorb increased costs or if we are unable to pass those costs on to customers
without negatively impacting demand, our gross margins and overall profitability could be adversely affected. Any material disruption to our ability to source
boats, components, or parts in a timely or cost-effective manner—whether for new sales, warranty obligations, or aftermarket and distribution operations—
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Risks Related to Our Industry and Competition

Our success depends to a significant extent on our manufacturers, and the loss of certain manufacturers could have an adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, and results of operations.

We depend on our manufacturers for the sale of new boats. Sales of new boats from our top ten brands represents approximately 40.8%, 41.7% and 39.4%
of total revenues for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023, respectively, making them major suppliers of our company. Of this amount,
Malibu Boats, Inc., including its brands Malibu, Axis, Cobalt, Pursuit, Maverick, Hewes, Cobia and Pathfinder accounted for 12.2%, 13.1% and 13.9% of our
total revenues for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Any adverse change in the reputation, product development efforts,
technological advancement, manufacturing capabilities, supply chain and third-party suppliers and financial condition of our manufacturers and their respective
brands, would have a substantial adverse impact on our business. Any difficulties encountered by our manufacturers resulting from economic, financial, or
other factors could also adversely affect the quality and amount of new boats and products that they are able to supply to us and the services and support they
provide to us.

Additionally, any interruption or discontinuance of the operations of our manufacturers, including due to, supply chain disruptions or shortages or
bankruptcy or insolvency, could also cause us to experience shortfalls, disruptions, or delays with respect to new boats and inventory. During the course of the
pandemic, a number of our manufacturers faced inventory shortages due to a combination of these facts as well as high demand. We also enter into renewable
annual dealer agreements with manufacturers, and there is no guarantee that we will be able to renew such dealer agreements in the future. We may not be able
to easily replace the loss of certain manufacturers or brands,
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including at the necessary quantity, quality or price, and the loss of certain manufacturers or brands may therefore have an adverse material effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

Boat manufacturers exercise control over our business.

We depend on our dealer agreements, which generally provide for renewable, one-year terms. Through dealer agreements, boat manufacturers exercise
control over their dealers, restrict them to specified locations and retain approval rights over changes in management and ownership, among other things. The
continuation of our dealer agreements with most manufacturers depends upon, among other things, our achieving stated performance goals for customer
satisfaction ratings and market share penetration in the market served by the applicable marine retailer. Failure to meet performance goals and other conditions
set forth in any existing or new dealer agreement could have various consequences, including the following:

* the termination or nonrenewal of the dealer agreement;

* the imposition of additional conditions in subsequent dealer agreements;

* limitations on boat inventory allocations;

*  reductions in reimbursement rates for warranty work performed by the dealer;

¢ loss of certain manufacturer-to-dealer incentives;

*  denial of approval of future acquisitions; or

* the loss of exclusive rights to sell in the geographic territory.

These events could have a material adverse effect on our product availability, competitive position and financial performance.

Manufacturer recall campaigns could adversely affect our business.

Manufacturer recall campaigns could adversely affect our new and pre-owned boat sales or customer residual trade-in valuations, could cause us to
temporarily remove boats from our inventory, could force us to incur increased costs and could expose us to litigation and adverse publicity related to the sale
of recalled boats, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Our business, as well as the entire retail marine industry, is highly seasonal, with seasonality varying in different geographic markets.

Over the three-year period ended September 30, 2025, the average revenue for the quarterly periods ended December 31, March 31, June 30 and
September 30 represented approximately 20%, 27%, 30% and 23%, respectively, of our average annual revenue. With the exception of Florida, we generally
realize lower sales and higher levels of inventories, and related floor plan borrowings, in the quarterly periods ending December 31 and March 31. Revenue
generated from our dealerships in Florida serves to offset generally lower winter revenue in our other states and enables us to maintain a more consistent
revenue stream. The onset of the public boat and recreation shows in January stimulates boat sales and allows us to reduce our inventory levels and related
floor plan borrowings throughout the remainder of the fiscal year. We also have various dealerships in the Northeast and Midwest region of the United States,
which typically experience colder temperatures in the winter months. The impact of seasonality on our results of operations could be materially impacted based
on the location of our acquisitions. For example, the impact of seasonality could change if we acquire additional marine retailers that operate in colder regions
of the United States, or if we acquire additional distribution businesses. Additionally, due to a global health crisis or other external factors, our seasonal trends
may also change as a result of, among other things, dealership closures, disruptions to the supply chain and inventory availability, manufacturer delays, or
cancellation of boat shows.

The failure to receive rebates and other manufacturer incentives on inventory purchases or retail sales could substantially reduce our margins.

We rely on manufacturers’ programs that provide incentives for dealers to purchase and sell particular boat makes and models or for consumers to buy

particular boat makes or models. Any eliminations, reductions, limitations or other changes relating to rebate or incentive programs that have the effect of

reducing the benefits we receive, whether relating to the ability of manufacturers to pay or our ability to qualify for such incentive programs, could increase the
effective cost of our boat purchases, reduce our margins and competitive position and have a material adverse effect on our financial performance.
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Other recreational activities, poor industry perception, real or perceived human health or safety risks, changing consumer attitudes and environmental
conditions can adversely affect the levels of boat purchases.

Demand for our products can be adversely affected by competition from other activities that occupy consumers’ time, including other forms of recreation
as well as religious, cultural and community activities. In addition, real or perceived human health or safety risks from engaging in outdoor activities generally
or boating activities specifically could deter consumers from purchasing our products. Local environmental conditions in the areas in which we operate
dealerships could also adversely affect the levels of boat purchases, including adverse weather conditions or natural disasters. Changing trends and attitudes
toward large discretionary purchases on the part of younger consumers in particular, who may prefer to share or borrow a boat rather than incur the expense of
ownership, may impact our future sales. Further, as a seller of high-end consumer products, we must compete for discretionary spending with a wide variety of
other recreational activities and consumer purchases. In addition, perceived hassles of boat ownership and customer service and customer education throughout
the retail boat industry, which has traditionally been perceived to be relatively poor, represent impediments to boat purchases. We may attempt to shift the focus
or product mix in response to changing consumer sentiments, but there is no guarantee that we will be successful.

We face intense competition.

We operate in a highly competitive and fragmented environment. In addition to facing competition generally from recreation businesses seeking to attract
consumers’ leisure time and discretionary spending dollars, the recreational boat industry itself is highly fragmented, resulting in intense competition for
customers, quality products, boat show space and suitable dealership locations. We rely to a certain extent on boat shows to generate sales. Our inability to
participate in boat shows in our existing or targeted markets, including due to cancellations of boat shows, could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

We compete primarily with local marine retailers who own three or fewer stores, as well as with a limited number of larger operators. Additionally, with
respect to sales of marine parts, accessories, and equipment, we also compete with national specialty marine parts and accessory stores, online catalog retailers,
sporting goods stores, and mass merchants. Competition within the retail marine industry is generally based on the quality and variety of available products, the
price and value of the products, and attention to customer service. There is significant competition both within markets we currently serve and in new markets
that we may enter. We compete in each of our markets with retailers of brands of boats and engines we do not sell in that market. In addition, several of our
competitors, especially those selling marine equipment and accessories, are large national or regional chains that have substantial financial, marketing, and
other resources. Private sales of pre-owned boats represent an additional source of competition.

Additional competitors, including boat clubs, may enter the businesses in which we currently operate or intend to expand. In particular, an increase in the
number of aggregator and price comparison sites for our products may negatively impact our sales of these products. If any of our competitors successfully
provides a broader, more efficient or attractive combination of services, protection plans, products and resources to our target customers, our business results
could be materially adversely affected. Our inability to compete effectively with existing or potential competitors could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Due to various matters, including environmental concerns, permitting and zoning requirements, and competition for waterfront real estate, some markets in
the United States have experienced an increased waiting list for marina and storage availability. In general, the markets in which we currently operate are not
experiencing any unusual difficulties. However, marine retail activity could be adversely affected in markets that do not have sufficient marina and storage
availability to satisfy demand.

Risks Related to Our Acquisition and Growth Strategies
Failure to implement strategies to enhance our performance could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition.

We are increasing our efforts to grow our distribution, repair and maintenance services, parts and accessories, and financing and insurance businesses to
better serve our customers and thereby increase revenue and improve profitability as a result of these comparatively higher margin businesses. These efforts are
designed to increase our revenue and reduce our dependence on the sale of new and pre-owned boats. In addition, we are pursuing strategic acquisitions to
capitalize upon the consolidation opportunities in the highly fragmented recreational boat dealer industry by acquiring additional marine retailers and related
operations and improving their performance and profitability through the implementation of our operating strategies. These business initiatives have required,
and will continue to require, us to add personnel, invest capital, enter businesses or geographic regions in which we do not have extensive experience and
encounter substantial competition. As a result, our strategies to enhance our performance may not be successful and we may increase our expenses or write off
or impair such investments if not successful.
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Our success depends, in part, on our ability to continue to make successful acquisitions at attractive or fair prices and to integrate the operations of
acquired marine retailers and each marine retailer we acquire in the future.

Since the combination of Singleton Marine and Legendary Marine in 2014, we have acquired 83 additional dealerships and 12 warehouses/distribution
centers through 35 acquisitions. Additionally, we actively evaluate and pursue acquisitions on an ongoing basis. We continue to strategically evaluate and
monitor our pipeline for potential acquisitions. Each acquired marine retailer operated independently prior to our acquisition. Our success depends, in part, on
our ability to continue to make successful acquisitions at attractive or fair prices that align with our culture and focus on customer service and to integrate the
operations of acquired marine retailers, including centralizing certain functions to achieve cost savings and pursuing programs and processes that promote
cooperation and the sharing of opportunities and resources among our companies. We may not be able to oversee the combined entity efficiently, realize
anticipated synergies or effectively implement our growth and operating strategies. To the extent that we successfully pursue our acquisition strategy, our
resulting growth will place significant additional demands on our management and infrastructure. Our failure to successfully pursue our acquisition strategies
or effectively operate the combined entity could have a material adverse effect on our rate of growth and operating performance. Further, if we acquire
businesses or products that depend on a small number of customers and we are unable to retain key customers following the acquisition, our revenues may be
adversely affected.

Unforeseen expenses, difficulties and delays frequently encountered in connection with expansion through acquisitions could inhibit our growth and
negatively impact our profitability.

Our growth strategy of acquiring additional marine businesses involves significant risks. This strategy entails reviewing and potentially reorganizing
acquired business operations, corporate infrastructure and systems, and financial controls. We continue to integrate acquired marine businesses and these
activities may require management to devote significant attention and resources to integrating acquired businesses with our business. Unforeseen expenses
(including potential environmental legacy liabilities due to spills or other releases of regulated substances on or under real properties or resulting from a failure
to comply with laws and regulations), difficulties and delays frequently encountered in connection with rapid expansion through acquisitions could inhibit our
growth and negatively impact our profitability. We may be unable to identify suitable acquisition candidates or to complete the acquisitions of candidates that
we identify. Even if we are able to integrate acquired business operations successfully, there can be no assurance that the integration will result in the
realization of the full benefit of synergies, cost savings, margin growth, insulation from cyclicality or operation effectiveness that we may expect or that any
such benefits may be achieved within an anticipated time frame. Increased competition for acquisition candidates or increased asking prices by acquisition
candidates may increase purchase prices for acquisitions to levels beyond our financial capability or to levels that would not result in expected returns required
by our acquisition criteria to be in the best interest of stockholders. Acquisitions also may become more difficult or less attractive in the future as we acquire
more of the most attractive marine businesses that best align with our culture and focus on customer service. In addition, we may encounter difficulties in
integrating the operations of acquired marine businesses with our own operations, in retaining employees, in retaining and maintaining relationships with
customers, suppliers or other business contacts, and in managing acquired marine businesses profitably without substantial costs, delays or other operational or
financial problems. As part of our growth strategy, we generally retain existing key staff, including senior management, when we complete an acquisition.
There can be no assurance that we will be able to retain marine businesses’ key staff, including senior management, when we complete an acquisition in the
future and failure to do so could adversely affect our businesses.

The size, timing, and integration of any future acquisitions may cause substantial fluctuations in operating results from quarter to quarter. Consequently,
operating results for any quarter may not be indicative of the results that may be achieved for any subsequent quarter or for a full fiscal year. These fluctuations
could adversely affect the market price of our Class A common stock.

Our ability to continue to grow through the acquisition of additional marine businesses will depend upon various factors, including the following:

» the availability of suitable acquisition candidates at attractive purchase prices;

» the ability to compete effectively for available acquisition opportunities;

» the availability of cash on hand, borrowed funds, common stock with a sufficient market price or other sources of financing to complete the
acquisitions;

» the ability to obtain any requisite manufacturer, governmental or other required approvals;

» the ability to obtain approval of our lenders under our current credit agreements; and

« the absence of one or more manufacturers attempting to impose unsatisfactory restrictions on us in connection with their approval of acquisitions.
As a part of our acquisition strategy, we frequently engage in discussions with various marine businesses regarding their potential acquisition by us. In

connection with these discussions, we and each potential acquisition candidate exchange confidential operational and financial information, conduct due
diligence inquiries and consider the structure, terms, and conditions of the potential acquisition. In
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certain cases, the prospective acquisition candidate agrees not to discuss a potential acquisition with any other party for a specific period of time, grants us an
option to purchase the prospective marine businesses for a designated price during a specific time period, and agrees to take other actions designed to enhance
the possibility of the acquisition, such as preparing audited financial information and converting its accounting system to the system specified by us. Potential
acquisition discussions frequently take place over a long period of time and involve difficult business integration and other issues, including in some cases
management succession and related matters. As a result of these and other factors, a number of potential acquisitions that from time to time appear likely to
occur do not result in binding legal agreements and are not consummated.

We are required to obtain the consent of our manufacturers prior to the acquisition of other dealers.

In determining whether to approve acquisitions, manufacturers may consider many factors, including our financial condition and ownership structure.
Manufacturers may also impose conditions on granting their approvals for acquisitions, including a limitation on the number of their dealers that we may
acquire. Our ability to meet manufacturers’ requirements for approving future acquisitions will have a direct bearing on our ability to complete acquisitions and
effect our growth strategy. There can be no assurance that a manufacturer will not terminate its dealer agreement, refuse to renew its dealer agreement, refuse to
approve future acquisitions or take other action that could have a material adverse effect on our acquisition program.

Our growth strategy also entails expanding our product lines and geographic scope by obtaining additional distribution rights from our existing and new
manufacturers. We may not be able to secure additional distribution rights or obtain suitable alternative sources of supply if we are unable to obtain such
distribution rights. The inability to expand our product lines and geographic scope by obtaining additional distribution rights could have a material adverse
effect on the growth and profitability of our business.

Our internal growth and operating strategies of opening new dealerships and offering new products involve risk.

In addition to pursuing growth by acquiring marine retailers, we intend to continue to pursue a strategy of growth through opening new dealerships and
offering new products in our existing and new territories. Accomplishing these goals for expansion will depend upon a number of factors, including the
following:

*  our ability to identify new markets in which we can obtain distribution rights to sell our existing or additional product lines;

*  our ability to lease or construct suitable facilities at a reasonable cost in existing or new markets;

e our ability to hire, train and retain qualified personnel;

* the timely and effective integration of new dealerships into existing operations;

*  our ability to achieve adequate market penetration at favorable operating margins without the acquisition of existing marine retailers; and

* our financial resources.

Our dealer agreements require manufacturer consent to open or change dealership locations that sell certain products. We may not be able to open and
operate new dealership locations or introduce new product lines on a timely or profitable basis. Moreover, the costs associated with opening new dealership
locations or introducing new product lines may adversely affect our profitability.

As a result of these growth strategies, we expect to continue to expend significant time and effort in opening and acquiring new dealership locations,
improving existing dealership locations in our current markets, and introducing new products. Our systems, procedures, controls, and financial resources may
not be adequate to support expanding operations. The inability to manage our growth effectively could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial

condition and results of operations.

Our planned growth also will impose significant added responsibilities on members of senior management and require us to identify, recruit, and integrate
additional senior level managers. We may not be able to identify, hire or train suitable additions to management.

Our growth strategy may require us to secure significant additional capital, the amount of which will depend upon the size, timing and structure of future
acquisitions and our working capital and general corporate needs.

If we finance future acquisitions in whole or in part through the issuance of common stock or securities convertible into or exercisable for common stock,
existing stockholders will experience dilution in the voting power of their common stock and earnings per share could be negatively impacted. The extent to
which we will be able and willing to use our Class A common stock for acquisitions will depend on the market value of our Class A common stock and the
willingness of potential sellers to accept our Class A common stock as full or partial consideration. Our inability to use our Class A common stock as
consideration, to generate cash from operations or to obtain additional funding through debt or equity financings in order to pursue our acquisition program
could materially limit our growth.
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Any borrowings made to finance future acquisitions or for operations could make us more vulnerable to a downturn in our operating results, a downturn in
economic conditions, or increases in interest rates on borrowings that are subject to interest rate fluctuations. If our cash flow from operations is insufficient to
meet our debt service requirements, we could be required to sell additional equity securities, refinance our obligations or dispose of assets in order to meet our
debt service requirements. In addition, our credit arrangements contain financial covenants and other restrictions with which we must comply, including
limitations on the incurrence of additional indebtedness and cash liquidity requirements. Adequate financing may not be available if and when we need it or
may not be available on terms acceptable to us. The failure to obtain sufficient financing on favorable terms and conditions could have a material adverse effect
on our growth prospects and our business, financial condition and results of operations. For additional information relating to our credit arrangements, see
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Debt Agreements” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Risks Related to Our Operations

The availability and costs of borrowed funds can adversely affect our ability to obtain adequate boat inventory, the ability and willingness of our customers
to finance boat purchases and our ability to fund future acquisitions.

OneWater LLC and certain of its subsidiaries are parties to the Inventory Financing Facility, which consists of uncommitted inventory floorplan financing
of up to $497.1 million in addition to overtrade capacity availability of up to $38.7 million as of November 17, 2025. Failure to extend or source alternative
financing arrangements could adversely impact our business. As of September 30, 2025 and 2024, we had an aggregate of $419.7 million and $443.4 million,
respectively, outstanding under the Inventory Financing Facility. We rely on the Inventory Financing Facility to purchase and maintain our inventory of boats.
For additional information relating to the terms of our Inventory Financing Facility, please see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations—Debt Agreements—Inventory Financing Facility.”

Effective August 9, 2022, we entered into the A&R Credit Facility (together with the Inventory Financing Facility, the “Credit Facilities”), which provides
for, among other things, (i) a single tranche of Revolving Commitments in an amount equal to $65.0 million (the “Revolving Facility”) and (ii) a single tranche
of Initial Term Loans in an aggregate principal amount equal to $445.0 million (the “Term Facility”). As of September 30, 2025, we had $367.1 million
outstanding under the Term Facility and $47.2 million outstanding under the Revolving Facility. For additional information, please see "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources."

Our ability to borrow under the Credit Facilities depends on our ability to continue to satisfy our covenants and other obligations under the Credit
Facilities. In particular, our ability to borrow under our Inventory Financing Facility depends on the ability of our manufacturers to be approved vendors under
our Inventory Financing Facility. The aging of our inventory limits our borrowing capacity as defined curtailments under the Inventory Financing Facility
reduce the allowable advance rate as our inventory ages. Depressed economic conditions, weak consumer spending, turmoil in the credit markets and lender
difficulties, among other potential reasons, could interfere with our ability to maintain compliance with our debt covenants and to utilize the Credit Facilities to
fund our operations. Accordingly, under such circumstances, it may be necessary for us to close dealerships, further reduce our expense structure, liquidate
inventory below cost to free up capital, or seek to modify the covenants with our lenders. Any inability to utilize the Credit Facilities or the acceleration of
amounts owed, resulting from a covenant violation, insufficient collateral or lender difficulties, could require us to seek other sources of funding to repay
amounts outstanding under the Credit Facilities or replace or supplement the Credit Facilities, which may not be possible at all or under commercially
reasonable terms. As of September 30, 2025, we were in compliance with all of the covenants under our Credit Facilities.

The interest rates on the Credit Facilities are calculated using SOFR and Term SOFR (as further described in the Credit Facilities). SOFR and Term SOFR
will fluctuate with changing market conditions and, as SOFR and Term SOFR increase, our interest expense will mechanically increase. Although we have
entered into floating to fixed interest rate swap agreements with respect to the Credit Facilities, there can be no assurance that such agreements will be effective
at reducing our exposure to risks caused by fluctuations in interest rates, and such agreements subject us to the risk that the counterparty to one or more of these
arrangements may default on its performance under the terms of the agreement.

Similarly, decreases in the availability of credit and increases in the cost of credit could adversely affect the ability of our customers to purchase boats from
us and thereby adversely affect our ability to sell our products and impact the profitability of our finance & insurance activities.

Increases in fuel prices may adversely affect our business.
All of the recreational boats we sell are powered by gasoline or diesel engines. Consequently, a significant increase in the price or tax on the sale of fuel on

a regional or national basis could have a material adverse effect on our sales and operating results. Increases in fuel prices may negatively impact boat sales.
The price of or tax on fuels may significantly increase in the future, adversely affecting our business.
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The availability of boat insurance is critical to our success.

The ability of our customers to secure reasonably affordable boat insurance that is satisfactory to lenders that finance our customers’ purchases is critical to
our success. Historically, affordable boat insurance has been available. However, as a severe storm approaches land, insurance providers cease underwriting
until the storm passes. This loss of insurance prevents or delays lenders from lending. As a result, sales of boats can be temporarily halted making our revenue
difficult to predict and causing sales to be delayed or potentially cancelled. Any difficulty of customers to obtain affordable boat insurance could impede boat
sales and adversely affect our business.

Our failure to successfully order and manage our inventory to reflect consumer demand and to anticipate changing consumer preferences and buying
trends, or the lack or excess of inventory in the industry, generally, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Our success depends upon our ability to procure sufficient inventory for our needs and to successfully manage our inventory and to anticipate and respond
to product trends and consumer demands in a timely manner. Our products appeal to consumers across a number of states who are, or could become, boat
owners. The preferences of these consumers cannot be predicted with certainty and are subject to change. Further, the retail consumer industry, by its nature, is
volatile and sensitive to numerous economic factors, including consumer preferences, competition, market conditions, general economic conditions and other
factors outside of our control. We experienced inventory shortages in marine retail products in fiscal year 2021 during a period of high demand, and it is
possible that shortages could occur again in the future. We cannot predict consumer preferences with certainty, and consumer preferences often change over
time. We typically order product several months in advance, although such orders are not binding until the merchandise is delivered to our locations. The
extended lead times for many of our purchases may make it difficult for us to respond rapidly to new or changing product trends, increases or decreases in
consumer demand or changes in prices. If we misjudge either the market for our products or our consumers’ purchasing habits in the future, our revenues may
decline significantly and we may not have sufficient quantities of product to satisfy consumer demand or sales orders or we may be required to discount excess
inventory, either of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We depend on our ability to attract and retain customers.

Our future success depends in large part upon our ability to attract and retain customers for our boat sales, repair and maintenance services, parts and
accessories and finance & insurance products. The extent to which we achieve growth in our customer base and retain existing customers materially influences
our profitability. Any number of factors could affect our ability to grow and maintain our customer base. These factors include consumer preferences, the
frequency with which customers utilize our products, repair and maintenance services and finance & insurance products, general economic conditions, our
ability to maintain our dealership locations, weather conditions, the availability of alternative services, protection plans, products and resources, significant
increases in gasoline prices, the disposable income of consumers available for discretionary expenditures and the external perception of our brands. Any
significant decline in our customer base, or the usage of our services, protection plans or products by our customers could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

We depend on income firom financing, insurance and extended service contracts.

A portion of our income results from referral fees derived from the placement or marketing of various finance & insurance products, consisting of
customer financing, insurance products and extended service contracts, the most significant component of which is the participation and other fees resulting
from our sale of customer financing contracts.

The availability of financing for our boat purchasers and the level of participation and other fees we receive in connection with such financing depend on
the particular agreement between us and the lender and the current interest rate environment. Lenders may impose terms in their boat financing arrangements
with us that may be unfavorable to us or our customers, resulting in reduced demand for our customer financing programs and lower participation and other
fees. Laws or regulations may be enacted nationally or locally which could result in fees from lenders being eliminated or reduced, materially impacting our
operating results. If customer financing becomes more difficult to secure, it may adversely impact our business.

Changes, including the lengthening of manufacturer warranties, may reduce our ability to offer and sell extended service contracts which may have a
material adverse impact on our ability to sell finance and insurance products. Moreover, these products are subject to complex federal and state laws and
regulations. There can be no assurance that regulatory authorities in the jurisdictions in which these products are offered will not seek to regulate or restrict
these products. Failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations could result in fines or other penalties including orders by state regulators to discontinue
sales of the warranty products in one or more jurisdictions. Such a result could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Although boat dealers are generally excluded from regulatory oversight under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, future

changes in law could lead to additional, indirect regulation of boat dealers through its regulation of other financial institutions which provide such financing to
our customers.
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If interest rates rise, the fees we receive in connection with the financing may be limited or reduced as customers become more interest rate sensitive and
the spreads that we are able to charge are compressed. The reduction of profit margins on sales of finance & insurance products or the lack of demand for or the
unavailability of these products could have a material adverse effect on our operating margins.

Our operations are dependent upon key personnel and team members.

Our success depends, in large part, upon our ability to attract, train, and retain qualified team members and executive officers, as well as the continuing
efforts and abilities of team members and executive officers. Although we have employment agreements with certain of our executive officers and management
succession plans, we cannot ensure that these or other executive personnel and team members will remain with us, or that our succession planning will
adequately mitigate the risk associated with key personnel transitions. Expanding our operations may require us to add additional executive personnel and team
members in the future. As a result of our decentralized operating strategy, we also rely on the management teams of our marine retailers. In addition, we likely
will depend on the senior management of any significant businesses we acquire in the future. The loss of the services of one or more key employees before we
are able to attract and retain qualified replacement personnel could adversely affect our business. Additionally, our ability to manage our personnel costs and
operating expenses is subject to external factors such as unemployment levels, prevailing wage rates, healthcare and other benefit costs, changing
demographics and our reputation and relevance within the labor markets where we are located. Increases in the prevailing wage rates due to competitive market
pressures or other factors could increase our personnel costs and operating expenses and have a material adverse effect on our business.

The products we sell or service may expose us to potential liability for personal injury, product liability or property damage claims relating to the use of
those products.

Manufacturers of the products we sell generally maintain product liability insurance. We maintain third-party liability insurance with respect to the sale
and servicing of boats and other watercrafts along with limited product liability insurance. We may therefore experience claims that are not covered by our
insurance coverage. While we have not experienced material losses related to product liability, personal injury or property damage claims in the past, we could
be exposed to such claims or losses in the future. The institution of any significant claims against us could subject us to damages, result in higher insurance
costs and harm our business reputation with potential customers.

If we cannot dispose of pre-owned boats acquired through our trade-in or direct purchase processes at prices that allow us to recover its costs, our
profitability will be adversely affected.

The resale values of any pre-owned boats that we acquire through trade-ins or direct purchase may be lower than our estimates, which are based on
expected retail sales prices. If the resale value of the pre-owned boats we acquire is lower than our estimates and/or we are not able to resell them timely or at
all, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Additionally, certain pre-owned boats or other vehicles that we acquire through trade-ins may fail to meet our retail quality standards. Instead, we sell
these units through a wholesale process. If the prices that we receive for our pre-owned boats sold in this process are not sufficient to cover the prices paid or
credit given at trade-in for such pre-owned boats, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our sales of boats and other products produced by certain foreign manufacturers expose us to international political, economic, and other risks.

Our sales of products produced in Italy, France, Australia, China and the United Kingdom, as well as any other non-U.S. manufacturer whose products we
may sell, expose us to international political, economic and other risks. We also import certain boat components from international suppliers which could
further our exposure to such international risks. Protectionist trade legislation in the United States, the European Union, and other countries, such as changes in
current tariff structures, export or import compliance laws, or other trade policies could adversely affect our ability to import boats or boat components from
these foreign suppliers under economically favorable terms and conditions.

There have been recent changes, and future, additional changes may occur, to United States and foreign trade and tax policies, including heightened import
restrictions, import and export licenses, new tariffs, trade embargoes, government sanctions or trade barriers. Any of these restrictions could prevent or make it
difficult or more costly for us to import boats and boat components from foreign suppliers under economically favorable terms and conditions. Increased tariffs
could require us to increase our prices which likely could decrease demand for our products. In addition, other countries may limit their trade with the United
States or retaliate through their own restrictions and/or increased tariffs which would affect our ability to export products and therefore adversely affect our
sales.

Our foreign purchase of boats and boat components creates a number of logistical and communications challenges. The economic, political and other risks
we face resulting from these foreign purchases include the following:

* compliance with U.S. and local laws and regulatory requirements as well as changes in those laws and requirements;

* transportation delays or interruptions and other effects of less developed infrastructures;
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* limitations on imports and exports;

»  foreign exchange rate fluctuations;

*  imposition of restrictions on currency conversion or the transfer of funds;
e imposition of tariffs;

*  maintenance of quality standards;

* unexpected changes in regulatory requirements;

»  differing labor regulations;

* potentially adverse tax consequences;

*  possible employee turnover or labor unrest;

*  the burdens and costs of compliance with a variety of foreign laws; and
*  political or economic conflicts, instability or civil unrest.

We have established online marketplaces and a failure in such online operations, security breaches and cybersecurity risks could disrupt our business and
lead to reduced sales and growth prospects and reputational damage.

Consumers are increasingly embracing shopping online and through mobile commerce applications. However, consumer preferences and e-commerce
buying trends could change, and we may be vulnerable to additional risks and uncertainties associated with online sales, including rapid changes in technology,
website downtime and other technical failures, security breaches, cyber-attacks, consumer privacy concerns, changes in state tax regimes and government
regulation of internet activities. Online marketplaces may also increase our access to sensitive, confidential or personal data or information that is subject to
data privacy and information security laws and regulations. Our failure to successfully manage or respond to these risks and uncertainties could reduce our
online sales, increase our costs, diminish our growth prospects, damage our brands, and subject us to regulatory fines or penalties, investigations or judgments,
which could negatively impact our operations and stock price. In addition, there is no guarantee that we will be able to successfully expand our online
platforms. Our competitors may have e-commerce businesses that are substantially larger and more developed than ours, which could place us at a competitive
disadvantage. If we are unable to expand our online platforms, our growth plans could suffer, and the price of our Class A common stock could decline.

We may be unable to adequately maintain, enforce, and protect our intellectual property rights and we may be accused of infringing the intellectual
property rights of third parties, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operations.

We continue to use a number of legacy trade names in connection with marine retailers that we have acquired, which we have not re-branded under our
“OneWater” mark, including Star brite® and Star Tron®. In addition, we own patents that provide some competitive support for our Performacide® products.
If any of our or the marine retailers’ trademarks become generic, or if third parties adopt marks similar to such marks, we may need to devote additional
resources to advertising and marketing.

Despite our best efforts to protect our intellectual property, it is possible that competitors or other third parties may attempt to unlawfully copy, obtain or
otherwise use our trade names, trademarks, patents, or other intellectual property or proprietary information without our consent. We take commercially
reasonable measures designed to identify and protect our intellectual property. However, monitoring unauthorized use of our intellectual property is difficult
and costly, and the steps we have taken may not be sufficient to effectively prevent third parties from infringing, misappropriating, diluting or otherwise
violating our intellectual property rights. From time to time, we may be compelled to protect our intellectual property, which may involve litigation. Such
litigation may be time-consuming and expensive and could result in the impairment or loss of the involved intellectual property. There is no guarantee that the
steps we take to protect our intellectual property, including litigation, when necessary, will be successful.

We cannot assure that our intellectual property rights will be effectively utilized, maintained, or, if necessary, successfully enforced against third parties.
There is a risk that we will not be able to obtain and perfect our own intellectual property rights, or, where appropriate, license from others intellectual property
rights. Our intellectual property rights, and any additional rights we may obtain in the future, may be invalidated, circumvented or challenged, and the legal
costs necessary to protect our intellectual property rights could be significant. Our failure to obtain registered intellectual property rights, or maintain or
successfully assert intellectual property rights could harm our competitive position and could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows.
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We may also be subject to infringement, misappropriation, dilution, or other violation complaints from others asserting our use of intellectual property
rights owned or alleged to be owned by third parties. Litigation related to such claims, whether or not meritorious, may result in injunctions against us or the
payment of damages. Even if intellectual property claims do not result in litigation or are resolved in our favor, these claims, and the time and resources
necessary to resolve them, could divert our resources and require significant expenditures. Any of the foregoing could prevent us from competing effectively
and could have a material adverse effect on our business, operations, and financial condition.

Changes in the assumptions used to calculate our acquisition related contingent consideration liabilities could have a material adverse impact on our
financial results.

Some of our acquisitions have included, and future acquisitions may include, contingent consideration liabilities relating to payments based on the future
performance of the operations acquired. Under generally accepted accounting principles, we are required to estimate the fair value of any contingent
consideration. Our estimates of fair value are based upon assumptions believed to be reasonable but which are uncertain and involve significant judgments.
Changes in business conditions or other events could materially change the projection of future earnings used in the fair value calculations of contingent
consideration liabilities. We reassess the fair value quarterly, and increases or decreases based on the actual or expected future performance of the acquired
operations will be recorded in our results of operations. These quarterly adjustments could have a material effect on our results of operations.

An impairment in the carrying value of long-lived assets, goodwill and identifiable intangible assets or restructuring charges could negatively impact our
financial results and net worth.

Our long-lived assets, such as property and equipment, are required to be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate
that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. As of September 30, 2025, we had approximately $91.6 million of property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation, recorded on our consolidated balance sheet. Recoverability of an asset is measured by comparison of its carrying amount to
undiscounted future net cash flows the asset is expected to generate. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured
as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair market value. Estimates of expected future cash flows represent our best estimate
based on currently available information and reasonable and supportable assumptions. Our impairment loss calculations contain uncertainties because they
require us to make assumptions and to apply judgment in order to estimate expected future cash flows.

Additionally, our goodwill and identifiable intangible assets are recorded at fair value at the time of acquisition and are reviewed for impairment at least
annually or more frequently if impairment indicators arise. In evaluating the potential for impairment of goodwill and identifiable intangible assets, we make
assumptions regarding industry conditions, our future financial performance, and other factors. Uncertainties are inherent in evaluating and applying these
factors to the assessment of goodwill. While we do not believe there is currently a reasonable likelihood that there will be a change in the judgments and
assumptions used in our assessments of goodwill and long-lived assets which would result in a material effect on our operating results, we cannot predict
whether events or circumstances will change in the future that could result in non-cash impairment charges that could adversely impact our financial results and
net worth.

We have undertaken restructuring and cost-reduction initiatives in the past, and any such initiatives—whether previously implemented or undertaken in the
future—may not achieve their intended results. From time to time, we evaluate our operations and implement restructuring plans, cost-cutting measures, or
strategic realignments that may include reductions in workforce, consolidation or closure of retail locations, cancellation or modification of dealer
relationships, and the discontinuation or reprioritization of information technology or other projects. These initiatives can result in material restructuring
charges, including employee-related costs, facility exit costs, contract termination fees, and asset impairments, and may adversely affect our operating results
and financial condition. Workforce reductions and organizational changes can also temporarily disrupt operations and reduce productivity. There is no
assurance that any restructuring or cost-reduction efforts will achieve or sustain the expected cost savings, operational efficiencies, or other anticipated benefits,
or that such benefits will be realized within the expected timeframes.

We primarily lease our locations. If we are unable to maintain those leases or locate alternative sites for our locations in our target markets and on terms
that are acceptable to us, our revenues and profitability could be adversely affected.

We currently lease 100 of the real properties where we conduct operations. Most locations operate under long-term leases with an initial term of at least 10
years and one or more renewal options for an additional 5 to 10 years. Additionally, we have entered into location leases with certain related parties for which
we incurred $3.6 million in lease expense in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2025. There can be no assurance that we will be able to maintain our existing
locations as leases expire, extend the leases or be able to locate alternative sites in our target markets and on favorable terms. Any failure to maintain our
existing locations, extend the leases or locate alternative sites on favorable or acceptable terms could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Because we use various materials and substances in manufacturing our chemical products, our production facilities are subject to operating hazards that
could cause personal injury and loss of life, severe damage to, or destruction of, property and equipment.

We are dependent on the continued operation of our Kinpak facility to blend various chemicals. This facility is subject to hazards associated with the
manufacture, handling, storage and transportation of chemical materials and products, including natural disasters,
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mechanical failure, unscheduled downtime, labor difficulties, transportation interruptions, and environmental hazards, such as spills, discharges or release of
toxic or hazardous substances and remediation complications. These hazards can cause personal injury and loss of life, severe damage to, or destruction of,
property and equipment and business interruption and could adversely affect our financial condition.

We import, assemble and/or manufacturer marine parts, products and accessories, which could expose us to potential increased costs and certain
additional risks.

Our business includes the import, assembly, manufacture and sale of marine parts and accessories. We may invest considerable resources to develop,
import, warehouse and distribute new and existing parts, products and accessories, and there is no assurance that they will be successful. Consequently, we
might curtail or abandon them at any time, which could result in asset impairments and inventory write-downs.

Factors that could cause us to curtail or abandon one of such products include unexpected or increased costs or tariffs, delays in development or
manufacturing, excessive demands on management resources, legal or regulatory constraints, changes in consumer demands, preferences and shopping patterns
regarding boat parts and accessories, or a determination that consumer demand no longer supports the product. Additional risks relating to such product
offerings include product liability and product recalls for which we do not have third-party indemnification and contractual rights or remedies; increasing costs
for labor or raw materials used to manufacture products; our ability to successfully protect our proprietary rights (e.g., defending against counterfeit or
otherwise unauthorized goods) and intellectual property rights; our ability to successfully navigate and avoid claims related to the proprietary rights of third
parties; and our ability to successfully administer and comply with obligations under license agreements that we have with third-party licensors of certain
brands.

Risks Related to Environmental and Geographic Factors

Climatic events may adversely impact our operations, disrupt the business of our third party vendors on whom we rely upon for products and services, and
may not be adequately covered by our insurance.

Climatic events in the areas where we operate have caused, and future climatic events may cause, disruptions and in some cases delays or suspensions in
our operations that adversely impacted our business. For example, the physical effects of unseasonably wet weather, drought conditions, extended periods of
below freezing weather, tropical storms, hurricanes, flooding, or other natural disasters have forced and may in the future force boating areas to close or render
boating dangerous. This has resulted in and, in the future, could result in reduced customer demand for our products and services. One or more of these climatic
events has in the past and may in the future result in physical damage to, or closure of, one or more of our facilities, and disruption or reduction in the
availability of products. Concerns regarding global changes in climate could also adversely affect the levels of boat purchases.

In addition, the physical effects of climatic events, including wintry conditions, increased frequency and severity of tropical storms or hurricanes,
tornadoes, fires, floods and other natural disasters, as well as sea level rise, could result in the disruption of our operations and/or third party supply chain
vendors on whom we rely upon for products and services, including boat deliveries from manufacturers, damage to or inadvertent releases from fueling
stations, or damage to or the loss of our boat inventories and facilities as has been the case when the Southeast and Gulf Coast regions and other markets have
been affected by hurricanes, such as Hurricane Helene and Hurricane Milton in 2024. Such disruptions in our supply chain could damage our on-site inventory
at our locations, result in remedial liability or administrative penalties, or cause serious limitations or delays in the operations of our locations. We maintain
hurricane and casualty insurance, subject to deductibles, but such coverage may become significantly more expensive or impossible to procure in the future.
Our planning for normal climatic variation, insurance programs and emergency recovery plans may inadequately mitigate the effects of such climatic
conditions, and not all such effects can be predicted, eliminated, mitigated, or insured against. Accordingly, while we traditionally maintain property and
casualty insurance coverage for damage caused by climatic events, such as severe weather or other natural disasters, there can be no assurance that such
insurance coverage is adequate to cover losses that we may sustain as a result thereof or that we will be able to procure coverage on commercially reasonable
terms for such events in the future.

Environmental and other regulatory issues impact our operations from time to time.

Our operations are subject to stringent federal, state and local laws and regulations governing such matters as finance, insurance, consumer protection,
consumer privacy, escheatment, anti-money laundering, releases, discharges and emissions or other releases into the environment and environmental
protection, human health and safety, and employment practices, including wage and hour and anti-discrimination legal requirements. These laws and
regulations affect many aspects of our operations, such as requiring the acquisition and renewal of permits, licenses and other governmental approvals to
conduct regulated activities, including the retail sale of recreational boats, restricting the manner in which we use, handle, store, recycle, transport and dispose
of discarded substances and wastes, responding to and performing investigatory, remedial and corrective actions with respect to any discharges and emissions
or other release of regulated substances, requiring capital and operating expenditures to construct, maintain and upgrade pollution control and containment
equipment and facilities, imposing specific human health and safety criteria addressing worker protection, and imposing liabilities for failure to comply with
applicable environmental or other legal requirements, pollution incidents or inappropriate payment or treatment of our workers with respect to our operations.
The failure to satisfy those and other legal requirements could have a material adverse effect on our
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business, financial condition, and results of operations. In addition, failure to comply with those and other legal requirements, or with U.S. trade sanctions, the
U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and other applicable laws or regulations could result in the assessment of damages, the imposition of sanctions including
monetary penalties, changes to our processes, or a delay, suspension or cessation of our operations, as well as damage to our image and reputation, all of which
could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Numerous governmental agencies, including OSHA, the EPA and similar federal agencies as well as analogous state and local agencies regulate and
maintain enforcement authority over the operation of our locations, repair facilities, and other operations, with respect to matters such as consumer protection,
human safety and environmental protection, including any contamination of or releases into ambient air, surficial and subsurface soils, surface water and
groundwater. Marine engine manufacturers are subject to emissions standards imposed under the CAA, and the EPA has enacted a number of legal
requirements imposing more stringent emissions standards for two-cycle, gasoline outboard marine engines. It is possible that regulatory bodies such as the
EPA may impose more stringent emissions standards in the future for marine engines, including with respect to recreational use. Any increased costs of those
manufacturers producing engines resulting from current or future EPA standards could be passed on to dealers in the retail recreational boat industry, such as
ourselves, or could result in the inability of, or potential unforeseen delays by, these manufacturers to manufacture and make timely delivery of recreational
boats to such dealers, which developments could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. Moreover, we
cannot guarantee that we would be able to pass any such increased costs on to our customers, and such increased costs could deter customer interest and
otherwise adversely affect boating sales.

As with companies in the marine retail industry generally, and parts and service operations in particular, our business involves the use, handling, storage,
transportation and contracting for recycling or disposal of waste materials, including hazardous or toxic substances and wastes as well as environmentally
sensitive materials, such as motor oil, waste motor oil and filters, transmission fluid, antifreeze, freon, waste paint and lacquer thinner, batteries, solvents,
lubricants, degreasing agents, gasoline, and diesel fuels. Laws and regulations regarding the prevention of pollution or remediation of environmental
contamination generally apply regardless of whether we lease or purchase the land and facilities. Additionally, certain of our locations and/or repair facilities
utilize USTs and ASTs, primarily for storing and dispensing petroleum-based products. Storage tanks in the United States are generally subject to financial
responsibility requirements and testing, containment, upgrading and removal requirements under the RCRA, and its state law counterparts, as well as federal,
state and local legal standards relating to investigation and remediation of contaminated soils, surface water and groundwater resulting from leaking tanks and
associated inground lifts. We also may be subject to civil liability to third parties for remediation costs or other damages if our owned or operated tanks leak or
leakage migrates onto the property of others.

We are subject to regulation by federal, state, and local authorities establishing investigatory, remedial, human health and environmental quality standards
and imposing liability related thereto, which liabilities may include sanctions, including monetary penalties for violations of those standards. Certain of our
locations and/or repair facility properties have been operated in the past by third parties whose use, handling and disposal of petroleum-based products or
wastes were not under our control. Given the strict liability nature of certain environmental laws, we may be liable for the remediation of such past releases
notwithstanding that our operations did not cause or contribute to the contamination.

We also are subject to laws, ordinances, and regulations governing investigation and remediation of contamination at facilities we operate or to which we
send hazardous or toxic substances or wastes for treatment, recycling, or disposal. In particular, CERCLA, also known as the Superfund law, and analogous
state laws, impose strict joint and several liability on generators, transporters, disposers and arrangers of hazardous substances at sites where hazardous
substance releases have occurred or are threatening to occur.

A majority of states have adopted Superfund laws comparable to and, in some cases, more stringent than CERCLA. If we were to be found to be a
responsible party under CERCLA or a similar state statute, we could be held liable for all investigative and remedial costs associated with addressing such
contamination as well as for natural resource damages. In addition, claims alleging personal injury or property damage may be brought against us as a result of
alleged exposure to hazardous substances resulting from our operations. Moreover, certain of our locations are located on waterways that are subject to federal
laws, including the Clean Water Act and the OPA, as well as analogous state laws regulating navigable waters, oil pollution (including prevention and cleanup
of the same), adverse impacts to fish and wildlife, and other matters. For example, under the OPA, owners and operators of vessels and onshore facilities may
be subject to liability for removal costs and damages arising from an oil spill in waters of the United States.

We could be required to conduct remediation in the future in accordance with applicable state and federal standards in the cleanup of petroleum
hydrocarbons or other substances or wastes released on, under or from properties owned or leased by us, including some of our properties that were previously
used as gasoline service stations. For example, we are performing soil and groundwater monitoring activities as required by applicable state and federal
standards. We may also be required in the future to remove USTs, ASTs and inground lifts containing petroleum-based products and hazardous or toxic
substances or wastes should they represent a risk of release or threatened release into the environment. Historically, our costs of compliance with these
investigatory, remedial and monitoring requirements have not had a material adverse effect on our results of operations; however, there can be no assurance
that such costs will not be material in the future or that such future compliance will not have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operation and
financial condition. We also may have additional storage tank liability insurance and other insurance coverage with respect to pollution-related liabilities where
available, but such coverages may be insufficient to address such liabilities. Environmental laws and regulations are comprehensive and subject to frequent
change. Compliance with amended, new, or more stringent laws or regulations, more strict interpretations of existing
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laws, or the future discovery of environmental conditions may require additional expenditures by us, our suppliers, or our customers and such expenditures
may be material.

Additionally, certain states have imposed legal requirements or are considering the imposition of such requirements that would obligate buyers and/or
operators of recreational boats to obtain a license in order to operate such boats. These requirements could discourage potential buyers of recreational boats,
thereby limiting future sales and adversely affecting our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Furthermore, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act increased our annual employee health care costs that we fund, and significantly increased our
cost of compliance and compliance risk related to offering health care benefits.

Moreover, adverse changes in labor policy could lead to increased unionization efforts, which could lead to higher labor costs, disrupt our locations
operations, and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our operations are subject to risks arising out of the threat of climate change, which could result in increased operating costs and reduced demand for the
products that we and the retail recreational boat industry provide.

The threat of climate change continues to attract considerable attention in the United States and foreign countries. As a result, numerous proposals have
been made and are likely to continue to be made at the international, national, regional and state levels of government to monitor and limit existing emissions
of GHGs and eliminate future GHG emissions. Governmental and public concern arising from GHG emissions has resulted in increasing regulatory, political,
financial and litigation risks in the United States and globally that target predominantly fossil fuel-related energy entities or their operations, which may have
indirect adverse effects on other companies or industries, such as the retail recreational boat industry whose services or products generate GHGs or rely upon
motor fuels refined from fossil fuels, which effects could be material.

In the United States, no comprehensive federal climate change legislation has been implemented. Historically, the EPA has adopted rules that, among other
things, establish permit reviews for GHG emissions from certain large stationary sources, require the monitoring and annual reporting of GHG emissions from
specified sources in the United States, implement standards reducing emissions of methane, a form of GHG, from specified oil and gas sectors, and together
with the U.S. Department of Transportation, implement GHG emissions limits on vehicles manufactured for operation in the United States. While these rules
largely do not directly impact our operations, they do represent a concerted effort at the federal level to reduce emissions of GHGs in an effort to mitigate
adverse effects associated with climate change. However, the EPA under the Trump Administration has made efforts to repeal or otherwise modify regulation of
GHG emissions at the federal level, including issuing a proposal to revoke the EPA's GHG "Endangerment Finding," which underpins the majority of the EPA's
GHG regulations. Separately, various states and groups of states have adopted or are considering adopting legislation, regulations or other regulatory initiatives
that are focused on such areas as GHG cap and trade programs, carbon taxes, reporting and tracking programs, disclosure of climate risk management, and
restriction of emissions. We cannot predict whether such efforts will ultimately be successful or what effects they may have on our business or results of
operations.

At the international level, there exists the United Nations-sponsored “Paris Agreement,” which requires nations to submit non-binding GHG emissions
reduction goals every five years after 2020, though the United States is not currently a party to the Paris Agreement. Additionally, various agreements and
commitments have been made at the annual Conference of the Parties (“COP”) to eliminate certain fossil fuel subsidies, phase out fossil fuels in energy
systems, and pursue further action on non-carbon dioxide GHGs, though none have been legally binding. The Trump Administration has undertaken efforts to
decrease the United States’ participation in such initiatives, including the withdrawal of the United States from the Paris Agreement and all other agreements
made under the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change, and has sought other legislative and regulatory changes related to climate change.
Notwithstanding the United States' withdrawal from the Paris Agreement, various state and local governments remain committed to the Paris Agreement and,
while these agreements and commitments are non-binding, they could result in increased pressure among financial institutions and various stakeholders to
reduce demand for fossil fuels, which could have a negative impact on our business or results of operations.

Litigation risks, including lawsuits against fossil-fuel energy companies arising from the production and use of fossil fuels that contribute to global
warming effects, such as rising sea levels, erosion and damage to existing physical infrastructure, and financial risks for such entities as stockholders and
bondholders currently invested in fossil fuel energy companies concerned about the potential effects of climate change may elect in the future to shift some or
all of their investments into non-fossil fuel energy related sectors further exacerbate the potential for these indirect adverse effects. Moreover, the increased
competitiveness of alternative “clean” energy sources such as wind and solar photovoltaic could also ultimately reduce demand for fossil fuels and increase the
costs of marine motor fuels, which would lead to a reduction in our revenues. Increased focus on non-fossil fuel energy sources and related efforts could
reallocate resources or potentially disincentive the production and sale of our products that rely upon fossil fuels, which could have a negative impact on our
operations.

Certain jurisdictions are considering or implementing, or have attempted to implement, increased disclosure requirements related to climate change and

GHG emissions. For example, the SEC previously released a rule establishing a framework for reporting of climate risks, targets, and metrics. However, the
rule is currently paused pending litigation and the case is being held in abeyance until the SEC
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reconsiders, repeals or otherwise modifies the rule. Further, in October 2023 California passed climate disclosure laws that, among other requirements, will
require public and private companies that do business in California with total annual revenues exceeding certain thresholds to make disclosures including GHG
emission data and climate-related financial risks. The requirements are currently set to begin taking effect in 2026, with additional requirements phasing in
through 2030. These laws are both currently subject to ongoing legal challenges, though the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit recently issued an
injunction on the enforcement of one of the laws. Moreover, some other states in which we operate, such as New York, have attempted to or are considering
adopting climate disclosure laws. While many of the laws have been subject to legal challenges and we are still assessing the impact of these requirements,
additional reporting obligations could cause us to incur increased costs.

Focus on Sustainability matters could impact our operations and expose us to additional risks.

Societal expectations on companies to address, climate change and other environmental and social impacts, investor, regulatory and societal expectations
regarding voluntary and mandatory sustainability-related disclosures may result in increased costs, reduced profits, increased investigations and litigation,
negative impacts on our stock price and reduced access to capital.

Furthermore, public statements with respect to sustainability matters, such as emissions reduction goals or progress, other environmental targets or other
commitments addressing certain social issues, are subject to heightened scrutiny from public and governmental authorities related to the risk of potential
“greenwashing,” i.e., misleading information or false claims overstating potential sustainability benefits. Certain regulators as well as nongovernmental
organizations and other private actors have filed lawsuits under various securities and consumer protection laws alleging that certain sustainability statements,
goals or standards were misleading, false or otherwise deceptive. As a result, we may face litigation risks from private parties and regulatory enforcement from
governmental authorities related to our real or perceived sustainability efforts or lack thereof. Additionally, we could face increasing costs as we attempt to
comply with and navigate further regulatory focus and scrutiny. Furthermore, we could be criticized by various anti-sustainability stakeholders for the scope of
our climate or sustainability related goals or policies, our strategic choices regarding sustainability matters as they may impact our operations now or in the
future, or for any revisions to the same, as well as initiatives we may pursue or any public statements we may make. We could be subjected to negative
responses by governmental actors (such as anti-sustainability legislation or retaliatory legislative or administrative treatment) or consumers (such as boycotts or
negative publicity campaigns), which could adversely affect our reputation, business, financial performance, market access and growth. While we may create
and publish voluntary disclosures regarding sustainability matters from time to time, many of the statements in those voluntary disclosures as based on
hypothetical expectations and assumptions that may or may not be representative of current or actual risks or events or forecasts of expected risks or events,
including the costs associated therewith. Such expectations and assumptions are necessarily uncertain and may be prone to error or subject to misinterpretation
given the long timelines involved and the lack of an established single approach to identifying, measuring, and reporting on many sustainability matters.

Risks Related to Our Class A Common Stock

OneWater Inc. is a holding company. OneWater Inc.’s only material asset is its direct and indirect equity interest in OneWater LLC, and OneWater Inc. is
accordingly dependent upon distributions from OneWater LLC to pay taxes, make payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement and cover OneWater
Inc.’s corporate and other overhead expenses.

OneWater Inc. is a holding company and its only material asset is its equity interest in OneWater LLC, which it holds directly and through other direct
and/or indirect wholly owned subsidiaries. OneWater Inc. has no independent means of generating revenue, and its ability to pay taxes, satisfy its obligations
under the Tax Receivable Agreement (“TRA”), and fund its corporate and other overhead expenses depends on the ability of OneWater LLC to make
distributions to OneWater Inc.

Under the OneWater LLC Agreement, and subject to the terms of any current or future debt instruments and applicable law, OneWater LLC is required to
make distributions to OneWater Inc. in amounts sufficient for OneWater Inc. to satisfy its tax liabilities and its obligations under the TRA. In prior periods,
these distributions were made pro rata to OneWater Inc. and the other holders of OneWater LLC Units; however, as of March 31, 2025, OneWater Inc. is the
sole holder of all outstanding OneWater LLC Units. OneWater LLC is also required to make certain non-pro rata payments to OneWater Inc. to reimburse it for
corporate and other overhead expenses, which payments are not treated as distributions under the OneWater LLC Agreement.

The ability of OneWater LLC to make distributions to OneWater Inc. depends, in turn, on the ability of OneWater LLC’s subsidiaries to make distributions
to OneWater LLC, and may be limited by: (i) the applicable provisions of Delaware law (or other governing jurisdiction) that restrict the amount of funds
legally available for distribution; and (ii) restrictions in current or future debt instruments of OneWater LLC, its subsidiaries, or other entities in which it
directly or indirectly holds an equity interest. These limitations can restrict the amount, timing, or ability of OneWater LLC or its subsidiaries to make
distributions needed by OneWater Inc. to meet its obligations. If OneWater Inc. is unable to receive distributions from OneWater LLC or its subsidiaries when
required, OneWater Inc.’s liquidity and financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

In addition, if OneWater Inc. is unable to make payments under the TRA for any reason, such payments will be deferred and will accrue interest until paid.
Accelerated TRA payments, if triggered, are expected to be funded from the proceeds of the change-of-control transaction giving rise to such acceleration.
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If we experience any material weaknesses in the future or otherwise fail to develop or maintain an effective system of internal controls in the future, we
may not be able to accurately report our financial condition or results of operations, which may adversely affect investor confidence in us and, as a result,
the value of our Class A common stock.

Effective internal controls are necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports, prevent fraud and operate successfully as a public company. If we
cannot provide reliable financial reports or prevent fraud, our reputation and operating results would be harmed. As a result of being a public company, we are
required, under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, to furnish a report by management on, among other things, the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting. This assessment must include disclosure of any material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting identified by our
management or our independent registered public accounting firm. We continue to take additional steps to improve control processes as appropriate, validate
through testing that controls are functioning as documented, and implement a continuous reporting and improvement process for our internal control over
financial reporting. If we identify one or more material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting during the evaluation and testing process or
we are unable to comply with the requirements of Section 404 in a timely manner, we may be unable to conclude that our internal controls are effective. For
additional information, please see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Internal Controls and
Procedures.”

Our independent registered public accounting firm is required to express an opinion on the effectiveness of our internal controls. If in the future we are
unable to confirm that our internal control over financial reporting is effective, or if our independent registered public accounting firm is unable to express an
unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of our internal controls, we could lose investor confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports,
which could cause the price of our Class A common stock to decline. We cannot assure you that there will not be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in our disclosure controls or our internal controls over financial reporting in the future.

An active, liquid and orderly trading market for our Class A common stock may not be maintained, and our stock price may be volatile.

Although our Class A common stock is listed on Nasdaq, we do not know how liquid that market might be at any point in time. You may not be able to
resell your Class A common stock at or above the price at which you purchased it. Additionally, lack of liquidity may result in wide bid-ask spreads, contribute
to significant fluctuations and volatility in the market price of the Class A common stock and limit the number of investors who are able to buy the Class A
common stock.

The market price of our Class A common stock could vary significantly as a result of a number of factors, some of which are beyond our control. In the
event of a drop in the market price of our Class A common stock, you could lose a substantial part or all of your investment in our Class A common stock. You
may not be able to sell shares of our Class A common stock at prices equal to or greater than the price paid by you.

The following factors could affect our stock price:

* quarterly variations in our financial and operating results;

* the public reaction to our press releases, our other public announcements and our filings with the SEC;

*  strategic actions by our competitors or suppliers;

*  changes in revenue, Dealership same-store sales or earnings estimates, or changes in recommendations or withdrawal of research coverage, by equity
research analysts;

*  acquisitions or integration of acquired marine retailers or other businesses;

* the failure of our operating results to meet the expectations of equity research analysts and investors;

*  speculation in the press or investment community;

* the failure of research analysts to continue to cover our Class A common stock;

*  sales of our Class A common stock by us or our stockholders, or the perception that such sales may occur;
*  changes in accounting principles, policies, guidance, interpretations or standards;

* additions or departures of key management personnel;

e actions by our stockholders;

»  general market conditions, including fluctuations in commodity prices;
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*  the publication of boating industry sales data or new boat registration data;
* domestic and international economic, legal and regulatory factors unrelated to our performance; and
*  the realization of any risks described under this “Risk Factors” section.

The stock markets in general have experienced extreme volatility that has often been unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies.
These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect the trading price of our Class A common stock. Securities class action litigation has often been instituted
against companies following periods of volatility in the overall market and in the market price of a company’s securities. Such litigation, if instituted against us,
could result in very substantial costs, divert our management’s attention and resources and materially harm our business, operating results and financial
condition.

Our Legacy Owners own a significant amount of our voting stock, and their interests may conflict with those of our other stockholders.

The Legacy Owners own a significant amount of our voting stock. As a result, the Legacy Owners may be able to substantially influence matters requiring
stockholder approval, including the election of directors, approval of any potential acquisition of us, changes to our organizational documents and significant
corporate transactions. This concentration of ownership makes it unlikely that any other holder or group of holders of our Class A common stock will be able to
affect the way we are managed or the direction of our business. The interests of the Legacy Owners with respect to matters potentially or actually involving or
affecting us, such as future acquisitions, financings and other corporate opportunities and attempts to acquire us, may conflict with the interests of our other
stockholders.

For example, the Legacy Owners may have different interests from us, especially in light of the Tax Receivable Agreement, that could influence their
decisions regarding whether and when to support the disposition of assets, the incurrence or refinancing of new or existing indebtedness, or the termination of
the Tax Receivable Agreement and acceleration of our obligations thereunder. In addition, the determination of future tax reporting positions, the structuring of
future transactions and the handling of any challenge by any taxing authority to our tax reporting positions may take into consideration the Legacy Owners tax
or other considerations which may differ from the considerations of us or our other stockholders. Please read “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Tax Receivable Agreement” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Certain of our executive officers and directors have significant duties with, and spend significant time serving, entities that may compete with us in seeking
business opportunities and, accordingly, may have conflicts of interest in allocating time or pursuing business opportunities.

Certain of our executive officers and directors, who are responsible for managing the direction of our operations, hold positions of responsibility with other
entities (including affiliated entities) that are in the retail boating industry. These executive officers and directors may become aware of business opportunities
that may be appropriate for presentation to us as well as to the other entities with which they are or may become affiliated. Due to these existing and potential
future affiliations, they may present potential business opportunities to other entities prior to presenting them to us, which could cause additional conflicts of
interest. They may also decide that certain opportunities are more appropriate for other entities with which they are affiliated, and as a result, they may elect not
to present those opportunities to us. These conflicts may not be resolved in our favor.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, as well as Delaware law, contain provisions that could discourage acquisition bids or merger proposals, which
may adversely affect the market price of our Class A common stock and could deprive our investors of the opportunity to receive a premium for their
shares.

Our certificate of incorporation authorizes our Board of Directors to issue preferred stock without stockholder approval in one or more series, designate the
number of shares constituting any series, and fix the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions thereof, including dividend rights, voting rights, rights and
terms of redemption, redemption price or prices and liquidation preferences of such series. If our Board of Directors elects to issue preferred stock, it could be
more difficult for a third party to acquire us. In addition, some provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws could make it more difficult for a third
party to acquire control of us, even if the change of control would be beneficial to our stockholders. These provisions include:

*  providing that all vacancies, including newly created directorships, may, except as otherwise required by law or, if applicable, the rights of holders of a
series of preferred stock, only be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of directors then in office, even if less than a quorum;

e permitting any action by stockholders to be taken only at an annual meeting or special meeting rather than by a written consent of the stockholders,
subject to the rights of any series of preferred stock with respect to such rights;

*  permitting special meetings of our stockholders to be called only by our Chief Executive Officer, the chairman of our Board of Directors and our

Board of Directors pursuant to a resolution adopted by the affirmative vote of a majority of the total number of authorized directors whether or not
there exist any vacancies in previously authorized directorships;
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*  subject to the rights of the holders of shares of any series of our preferred stock, requiring the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority in
voting power of all then outstanding common stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a single class, to remove
any of all of the directors from office at any time;

*  prohibiting cumulative voting in the election of directors;

»  establishing advance notice provisions for stockholder proposals and nominations for elections to the Board of Directors to be acted upon at meetings
of stockholders; and

*  providing that the Board of Directors is expressly authorized to adopt, or to alter or repeal our bylaws.

In addition, certain change of control events have the effect of accelerating the payment due under the Tax Receivable Agreement, which could be
substantial and accordingly serve as a disincentive to a potential acquirer of our company. Please see “—In certain cases, payments under the Tax Receivable
Agreement may be accelerated and/or significantly exceed the actual benefits, if any, OneWater Inc. realizes in respect of the tax attributes subject to the Tax
Receivable Agreement.”

Our certificate of incorporation designates the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware as the sole and exclusive forum for certain types of actions and
proceedings that may be initiated by our stockholders and our bylaws designate the federal district courts of the United States shall be the sole and
exclusive forum for the resolution of causes of action arising under the Securities Act of 1933 (the "Securities Act"). These designations could limit our
stockholders’ ability to obtain a favorable judicial forum for disputes with us or our directors, officers, employees or agents.

Our certificate of incorporation provides that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the Court of Chancery of the State of
Delaware will, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, be the sole and exclusive forum for (i) any derivative action or proceeding brought on our
behalf, (ii) any action asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any of our directors, officers, employees or agents to us or our stockholders, (iii)
any action asserting a claim against us or any director or officer or other employee of ours arising pursuant to any provision of the Delaware General
Corporation Law, our certificate of incorporation or our bylaws, or (iv) any action asserting a claim against us or any director or officer or other employee of
ours that is governed by the internal affairs doctrine, in each such case subject to such Court of Chancery having personal jurisdiction over the indispensable
parties named as defendants therein. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the exclusive forum provision will not apply to suits brought to enforce any liability or
duty created by the Exchange Act, the Securities Act or any other claim for which the federal courts have exclusive jurisdiction. Further, our bylaws also
provide that the federal district courts of the United States shall be the sole and exclusive forum for the resolution of any complaint asserting a cause of action
arising under the Securities Act. Although our bylaws provide for an exclusive forum for causes of action under the Securities Act, its stockholders will not be
deemed to have waived compliance with the federal securities laws and the rules and regulations thereunder. Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise
acquiring any interest in shares of our capital stock will be deemed to have notice of, and consented to, the provisions of our certificate of incorporation and
bylaws described herein. These choice of forum provisions may limit a stockholder’s ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that it finds favorable for
disputes with us or our directors, officers, employees or agents, which may discourage such lawsuits against us and such persons. Alternatively, if a court were
to find these provisions of our certificate of incorporation or bylaws inapplicable to, or unenforceable in respect of, one or more of the specified types of
actions or proceedings, we may incur additional costs associated with resolving such matters in other jurisdictions, which could adversely affect our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

We do not intend to pay cash dividends on our Class A common stock, and our Credit Facilities place certain restrictions on our ability to do so.
Consequently, your only opportunity to achieve a return on your investment is if the price of our Class A common stock appreciates.

We do not plan to declare cash dividends on shares of our Class A common stock in the foreseeable future. Additionally, the Credit Facilities place certain
restrictions on our ability to pay cash dividends. Any future credit agreements or financing arrangements may also contain restrictions on our ability to pay cash
dividends. Consequently, your only opportunities, while such dividend restrictions remain in place, to achieve a return on your investment in us may be to sell
your Class A common stock at a price greater than you paid for it. There is no guarantee that the price of our Class A common stock that will prevail in the
market will ever exceed the price that you paid.

Future sales or issuances of our Class A common stock in the public market, or the perception that such sales or issuances may occur, could reduce our
stock price, and any additional capital raised by us through the sale or issuance of equity or convertible securities may dilute your ownership in us.

We may sell additional shares of Class A common stock in subsequent public offerings. We may also issue additional shares of Class A common stock or
convertible securities. We have 16,527,533 outstanding shares of Class A common stock as of December 2, 2025. Certain Legacy Owners are party to a
registration rights agreement (the “Registration Rights Agreement”), which requires us to effect the registration of certain of their shares of Class A common
stock.
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On September 6, 2024, we filed a registration statement with the SEC on Form S-3 providing for the registration of an indeterminate number of shares of
Class A common stock to be offered, on a primary basis, at indeterminate prices with an aggregate offering price not to exceed $250,000,000.

On July 1, 2022, the first offering period began under the 2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”). As of September 30, 2025, the ESPP
provides for a maximum issuance of 510,145 shares of Class A common stock, subject to certain adjustments set forth in the ESPP.

We cannot predict the size of future issuances of our Class A common stock or securities convertible into Class A common stock or the effect, if any, that
future issuances and sales of shares of our Class A common stock will have on the market price of our Class A common stock. Sales of substantial amounts of
our Class A common stock (including shares issued in connection with an acquisition), or the perception that such sales could occur, may adversely affect
prevailing market prices of our Class A common stock.

OneWater Inc. is required to make payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement for certain tax benefits that it may claim, and the amounts of such
payments could be significant.

The Tax Receivable Agreement generally provides for the payment by OneWater Inc. to each holder of rights thereunder, which includes the Legacy
Owners and their permitted transferees, if any (a "TRA Holder") of 85% of the net cash savings, if any, in U.S. federal, state and local income tax and franchise
tax (computed using simplifying assumptions to address the impact of state and local taxes) that OneWater Inc. actually realizes (or is deemed to realize in
certain circumstances) in periods after the IPO as a result of certain increases in tax basis available to OneWater Inc. as a result of the redemption or exchange
of OneWater LLC Units in accordance with the OneWater LLC Agreement or that relate to prior transfers of such OneWater LLC Units that will be available to
OneWater Inc. as a result of its acquisition of those units, and certain benefits attributable to imputed interest. OneWater Inc. will retain the benefit of the
remaining net cash savings.

The terms of the Tax Receivable Agreement commenced upon completion of the IPO and will continue until all tax benefits that are subject to the Tax
Receivable Agreement have been utilized or expired, unless OneWater Inc. exercises its right to terminate the Tax Receivable Agreement (or the Tax
Receivable Agreement is terminated due to other circumstances, including OneWater Inc.’s breach of a material obligation thereunder or certain mergers or
other changes of control), and OneWater Inc. makes the termination payment specified in the Tax Receivable Agreement. In addition, payments OneWater Inc.
makes under the Tax Receivable Agreement will be increased by any interest accrued from the due date (without extensions) of the corresponding tax return.
Payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement commenced in 2022 and, in the event that the Tax Receivable Agreement is not terminated, are anticipated to
continue even after the date of the last redemption of the OneWater LLC Units.

The payment obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement are OneWater Inc.’s obligations and not obligations of OneWater LLC, and we expect that
the payments OneWater Inc. will be required to make under the Tax Receivable Agreement will be substantial. Estimating the amount and timing of OneWater
Inc.’s realization of tax benefits subject to the Tax Receivable Agreement is by its nature imprecise. The actual increases in tax basis covered by the Tax
Receivable Agreement, as well as the amount and timing of OneWater Inc.’s ability to use any deductions (or decreases in gain or increases in loss) arising
from such increases in tax basis, are dependent upon significant future events, including but not limited to the amount, character, and timing of taxable income
OneWater Inc. generates in the future, the timing and amount of any earlier payments that OneWater Inc. may have made under the Tax Receivable Agreement,
the U.S. federal income tax rate then applicable, and the portion of OneWater Inc.’s payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement that constitute imputed
interest or give rise to depreciable or amortizable tax basis. Accordingly, estimating the amount and timing of payments that may become due under the Tax
Receivable Agreement is also by its nature imprecise. For purposes of the Tax Receivable Agreement, net cash savings in tax generally are calculated by
comparing OneWater Inc.’s actual tax liability (determined by using the actual applicable U.S. federal income tax rate and an assumed combined state and local
income tax rate) to the amount OneWater Inc. would have been required to pay had it not been able to utilize any of the tax benefits subject to the Tax
Receivable Agreement. Thus, the amount and timing of any payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement are also dependent upon significant future events,
including those noted above in respect of estimating the amount and timing of OneWater Inc.’s realization of tax benefits. Payments under the Tax Receivable
Agreement could have an adverse impact on our liquidity.

The payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement are not conditioned upon a TRA Holder's having a continued ownership interest in OneWater Inc. or
OneWater LLC. In addition, certain of the TRA Holders’ rights (including the right to receive payments) under the Tax Receivable Agreement are transferable
in connection with transfers permitted under the OneWater LLC Agreement of the corresponding OneWater LLC Units or, subject to OneWater Inc.’s consent
(not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed), after the corresponding OneWater LLC Units have been exchanged or redeemed in accordance with
the OneWater LLC Agreement. For additional information regarding the Tax Receivable Agreement, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations—Tax Receivable Agreement” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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In certain cases, payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement may be accelerated and/or significantly exceed the actual benefits, if any, OneWater Inc.
realizes in respect of the tax attributes subject to the Tax Receivable Agreement.

If OneWater Inc. experiences a change of control (as defined under the Tax Receivable Agreement, which includes certain mergers, asset sales and other
forms of business combinations) or the Tax Receivable Agreement terminates early (at OneWater Inc.’s election or as a result of OneWater Inc.’s breach),
OneWater Inc. would be required to make an immediate payment equal to the present value of the anticipated future payments to be made by it under the Tax
Receivable Agreement (determined by applying a discount rate equal to the twelve-month SOFR published by CME Group Benchmark Administration Limited
plus 71.513 basis points) and such early termination payment is expected to be substantial. The calculation of anticipated future payments is based upon certain
assumptions and deemed events set forth in the Tax Receivable Agreement, including that OneWater Inc. has sufficient taxable income to fully utilize the tax
benefits covered by the Tax Receivable Agreement. Any early termination payment may be made significantly in advance of, and may materially exceed, the
actual realization, if any, of the future tax benefits to which the early termination payment relates.

If OneWater Inc. experiences a change of control (as defined under the Tax Receivable Agreement) or the Tax Receivable Agreement otherwise terminates
early (at OneWater Inc.’s election or as a result of OneWater Inc.’s breach), OneWater Inc.’s obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement could have a
substantial negative impact on our liquidity and could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing certain mergers, asset sales, or other forms of
business combinations or changes of control. For example, if the Tax Receivable Agreement were terminated immediately after the date hereof, and taking into
account any redemptions that occurred prior thereto, the estimated early termination payment would, in the aggregate, be approximately $26.7 million
(determined by applying a discount rate equal to the twelve-month SOFR published by CME Group Benchmark Administration Limited plus 71.513 basis
points, applied against an undiscounted liability of $37.5 million calculated based on certain assumptions, including but not limited to an estimated blended
statutory U.S. federal, state and local corporate income tax rate of 24.7%, no material change in U.S. federal income tax law, and that OneWater Inc. will have
sufficient taxable income to utilize such estimated tax benefits). The foregoing number is merely an estimate and the actual payment could differ materially. In
the event that OneWater Inc.’s obligation to make payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement is accelerated as a result of a change of control, where
applicable, we generally expect the accelerated payments due under the Tax Receivable Agreement to be funded out of the proceeds of the change of control
transaction giving rise to such acceleration. However, OneWater Inc. may be required to fund such payment from other sources, and as a result, any early
termination of the Tax Receivable Agreement could have a substantial negative impact on our liquidity. We do not currently expect to cause an acceleration due
to OneWater Inc.’s breach, and we do not currently expect that OneWater Inc. would elect to terminate the Tax Receivable Agreement early, except in cases
where the early termination payment would not be material. There can be no assurance that OneWater Inc. will be able to meet its obligations under the Tax
Receivable Agreement. Please read “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Tax Receivable Agreement” in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

In the event that OneWater Inc.’s payment obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement are accelerated upon certain mergers, other forms of business
combinations or other changes of control, the consideration payable to holders of OneWater Inc.’s Class A common stock could be substantially reduced.

If OneWater Inc. experiences a change of control (as defined under the Tax Receivable Agreement, which includes certain mergers, asset sales and other
forms of business combinations), OneWater Inc. would be obligated to make an immediate payment, and such payment may be significantly in advance of, and
may materially exceed, the actual realization, if any, of the future tax benefits to which the payment relates. As a result of this payment obligation, holders of
OneWater Inc.’s Class A common stock could receive substantially less consideration in connection with a change of control transaction than they would
receive in the absence of such obligation. Further, OneWater Inc.’s payment obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement are not conditioned upon the
TRA Holders’ having a continued interest in OneWater Inc. or OneWater LLC. Accordingly, the TRA Holders’ interests may conflict with those of the holders
of OneWater Inc.’s Class A common stock. Please read “— In certain cases, payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement may be accelerated and/or
significantly exceed the actual benefits, if any, OneWater Inc. realizes in respect of the tax attributes subject to the Tax Receivable Agreement.”
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OneWater Inc. will not be reimbursed for any payments made under the Tax Receivable Agreement in the event that any tax benefits are subsequently
disallowed.

Payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement are based on the tax reporting positions that OneWater Inc. determines and the IRS or another tax authority
may challenge all or part of the tax basis increase, as well as other related tax positions OneWater Inc. takes, and a court could sustain such challenge. The TRA
Holders will not reimburse OneWater Inc. for any payments previously made under the Tax Receivable Agreement if any tax benefits that have given rise to
payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement are subsequently disallowed, except that excess payments made to any TRA Holder will be netted against future
payments that would otherwise be made to such TRA Holder, if any, after OneWater Inc.’s determination of such excess (which determination may be made a
number of years following the initial payment and after future payments have been made). As a result, in such circumstances, OneWater Inc. could make
payments that are greater than its actual cash tax savings, if any, and may not be able to recoup those payments, which could materially adversely affect its
liquidity.

Changes to applicable tax laws and regulations or exposure to additional income tax liabilities could affect our business and future profitability.

We are subject to various complex and evolving U.S. federal, state and local taxes. U.S. federal, state and local tax laws, policies, statutes, rules,
regulations or ordinances could be interpreted, changed, modified or applied adversely to us, in each case, possibly with retroactive effect, and may have an
adverse effect on our business and future profitability.

In addition, we may be subject to audits of our income, sales and other taxes by U.S. federal, state, and local taxing authorities. Outcomes from these
audits could have an adverse effect on our operating results and financial condition.

Additionally, changes in federal and state tax laws, such as an imposition of luxury taxes on new boat purchases, increases in prevailing tax rates, and
removal of certain interest deductions, may influence consumers' decisions to purchase products we offer and could have a negative effect on our sales. For
example, during 1991 and 1992, the federal government imposed a luxury tax on new recreational boats with sales prices in excess of $100,000, which
coincided with a sharp decline in boating industry sales from a high of more than $17.9 billion in 1988 to a low of $10.3 billion in 1992. Any increase in tax
rates, including those on capital gains and dividends, particularly those on high-income taxpayers, could adversely affect our boat sales.

Our future tax liabilities may be greater than expected if our net operating loss ("NOL") are limited.

As of September 30, 2025, we have U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $32.0 million. Utilization of these NOL carryforwards
depends on many factors, including our future income, which cannot be assured. In addition, Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(the "Code"), generally imposes an annual limitation on the amount of NOL carryforwards that may be used to offset taxable income when a corporation has
undergone an "ownership change" (as determined under Section 382 of the Code). An ownership change generally occurs if one or more stockholders (or
groups of stockholders) who are each deemed to own at last 5% of such corporation's stock change their ownership by more than 50 percentage points over
their lowest ownership percentage within a rolling three-year period. None of our U.S. federal NOL carryforwards are currently subject to limitation under
Section 382 of the Code. In the event that we were to undergo an ownership change in the future, utilization of our NOL carryforwards would be subject to
limitation under Section 382 of the Code. Any unused annual limitation generally may be carried over to later years until they expire. Limitations similar to
those applicable under Section 382 of the Code apply for U.S. state income tax purposes. Any limitation on our ability to utilize our NOL carryforwards against
income or gain we generate in the future could increase our future tax liabilities and adversely affect our operating results and cash flows.

We may issue preferred stock whose terms could adversely affect the voting power or value of our Class A common stock.

Our certificate of incorporation authorizes us to issue, without the approval of our stockholders, one or more classes or series of preferred stock having
such designations, preferences, limitations and relative rights, including preferences over our Class A common stock respecting dividends and distributions, as
our Board of Directors may determine. The terms of one or more classes or series of preferred stock could adversely impact the voting power or value of our
Class A common stock. For example, we might grant holders of preferred stock the right to elect some number of our directors in all events or on the happening
of specified events or the right to veto specified transactions. Similarly, the repurchase or redemption rights or liquidation preferences we might assign to
holders of preferred stock could affect the residual value of the Class A common stock.

If securities or industry analysts cease publishing research or reports about our business, if they adversely change their recommendations regarding
our Class A common stock or if our operating results do not meet their expectations, our stock price could decline.

The trading market for our Class A common stock will be influenced by the research and reports that industry or securities analysts publish about us or our

business. If one or more of these analysts cease coverage of our company or fail to publish reports on us regularly, we could lose visibility in the financial
markets, which in turn could cause our stock price or trading volume to decline. Moreover, if one or

36



Table of Contents

more of the analysts who cover our company downgrades our Class A common stock or if our operating results do not meet their expectations, our stock price
could decline.

General Risk Factors

Our business operations could be negatively impacted by an outage or breach of our information or operational technology systems or a cybersecurity
event.

Our business is dependent upon the successful operation of our information and operational technology systems. Our information and operational
technology systems enhance cross-selling opportunities and integrate each level of operations on a company-wide basis, including but not limited to
purchasing, inventory, receivables, payables, financial reporting, budgeting, marketing and sales management. Our information systems are also used to
prepare our consolidated financial and operating data.

Increased global cybersecurity vulnerabilities and cyber-related attacks pose a risk to the security of our and our customers’, suppliers’ and third-party
service providers’ products, systems and networks and the confidentiality, availability and integrity of our data. Risks to our information and operational
technology systems include potential breakdowns, invasions, viruses, cyber-attacks, cyber-fraud, security breaches, and unauthorized access to, destruction or
interruption of our information or operational technology systems or data or those of third parties with whom we do business. Unauthorized parties have
attempted to gain access to our systems or facilities, or those of third parties with whom we do business, through fraud, trickery or other forms of deceiving our
team members, contractors, vendors and temporary staff. While no instances of unauthorized access have been material to date, we continue to attempt to
mitigate these risks by employing a number of measures, including employee training, systems and maintenance of protective systems. Despite the
implementation of our cybersecurity process, we remain potentially vulnerable to known or unknown threats.

We collect and store sensitive, confidential and personal data and information through the ordinary course of our business that is subject to data privacy
and information security laws and regulations. We also work with third-party partners that may in the course of their business relationship with us, collect,
store, process and transmit sensitive, confidential or personal data or information on our behalf and in connection with our products and services offerings.
Despite our efforts to protect sensitive, confidential or personal data or information, our or our third-party partners’ information or operational technology
systems may be vulnerable to security breaches, ransomware theft, cyber phishing attacks, cyber-attacks, including those created through artificial intelligence,
misplaced or lost data, programming errors, employee errors and/or malfeasance that could potentially lead to the compromising of sensitive, confidential or
personal data or information, improper use of our systems, inability to use our systems, unauthorized access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction of
information, and operational disruptions. While no system failures, cyberattacks or security breaches have been material to date, we may be unable to
anticipate, detect or prevent such events. Despite ongoing efforts to improve our ability to protect our information and operational technology systems and data
stored thereon or transmitted thereby from compromise, we may not be able to protect all of our information and operational technology systems or data.

Our efforts to improve security and protect data from compromise may also identify previously undiscovered instances of security breaches or other cyber-
related attacks. It is possible that we might not be aware of a successful cyber-related attack on our systems until well after the incident. Any unauthorized
access to or material failure of our information or operational technology systems, or systems used by our third-party suppliers or service providers, could
result in negative consequences, including damage to our reputation or competitiveness, compliance, remediation or increased protection costs, or litigation or
regulatory action, all of which could have a material and adverse effect on our business, financial condition, operations, or cash flows.

Certain of our employees work remotely. Remote working has increased our vulnerability to risks related to our computer and communications hardware
and software systems and exacerbated certain related risks, including risks of phishing and other cybersecurity attacks. Controls employed by our information
technology department and our customers and third-party service providers could prove inadequate.

We are subject to laws, rules, regulations and policies regarding data privacy and security, and may be subject to additional related laws and regulations in
jurisdictions in which we operate or expand. Many of these laws and regulations are subject to change and reinterpretation, and any real or perceived
failure to comply with such obligations could result in claims, changes to our business practices, monetary penalties, increased cost of operations or other
harm to our business.

We are subject to a variety of federal, state and local laws, directives, rules and policies relating to privacy and the collection, protection, use, retention,
security, disclosure, transfer and other processing of personal data and other data. The regulatory framework for data privacy and security worldwide is
continuously evolving and developing and, as a result, interpretation and implementation standards and enforcement practices are likely to remain uncertain for
the foreseeable future. In addition, new laws, amendments to or reinterpretations of existing laws, regulations, standards and other obligations may require us to
incur additional costs and restrict our business operations, and may require us to change how we use, collect, store, transfer or otherwise process certain types
of personal data, including by implementing new processes to comply with those laws and our customers’ exercise of their rights thereunder. These laws also
are not uniform, as certain laws may be more stringent or broader in scope, or offer greater individual rights, with respect to sensitive and personal information,
and such laws may differ from each other, which may complicate compliance efforts. Any real or perceived failure by us or our third-party service providers to
comply with any applicable federal, state or similar foreign law, rule, regulation,
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industry standard, policy, certification or order relating to data privacy and security, or any compromise of security that results in the theft, unauthorized access,
acquisition, use, disclosure, or misappropriation of personal data or other customer data, could result in significant awards, fines, civil or criminal penalties or
judgments, proceedings or litigation by governmental agencies or customers, including class action privacy litigation in certain jurisdictions and negative
publicity and reputational harm, one or all of which could have an adverse effect on our reputation, business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our growing use of artificial intelligence systems in our operations poses inherent risks and could adversely affect our results of operations.

We have and are continuing to incorporate artificial intelligence, including machine learning, in certain of our operations with the intent to enhance
efficiency and effectiveness. For example, we have incorporated artificial intelligence and/or generative artificial intelligence to manage inventory and assist in

creating boat listings. Flaws, breaches or malfunctions in these systems could lead to operational disruptions, data loss, or erroneous decision-making,
impacting our operations, financial condition and reputation. Legal challenges may arise, including cybersecurity incidents, non-compliance with data
protection regulations, and lack of transparency. The legal and regulatory landscape and industry standards surrounding artificial intelligence technologies is
rapidly evolving and remains uncertain, and compliance may impose significant operational costs and may limit our ability to develop, deploy or use artificial
intelligence technologies. Furthermore, the deployment of artificial intelligence systems could expose us to increased cybersecurity threats, such as data
breaches and unauthorized access leading to financial losses, legal liabilities, and reputational damage. We also face competitive risks if we fail to adopt
artificial intelligence or other machine-learning technologies in a timely manner.

We may be named in litigation, which may result in substantial costs and reputational harm and divert management’s attention and resources.

We face legal risks in our business, including claims from disputes with our employees and our former employees and claims associated with general
commercial disputes, product liability, personal injury and other matters. Risks associated with legal liability often are difficult to assess or quantify and their
existence and magnitude can remain unknown for significant periods of time. While we maintain insurance of the types and in the amounts that we believe are
customary and adequate, the amount of insurance coverage may not be sufficient to cover a claim and the continued availability of certain insurance cannot be
assured. Additionally, we may be named in the future as defendants of class action lawsuits. Negative publicity from litigation, whether or not resulting in a
substantial cost, could materially damage our reputation. We may in the future be the target of litigation and this litigation may result in substantial costs and
reputational harm and divert management’s attention and resources. Costs, harm to our reputation and diversion could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

Changes in accounting standards could significantly affect our results of operations and the presentation of those results.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board, the SEC, or other accounting organizations or governmental entities frequently issue new pronouncements or
new interpretations of existing accounting standards. Changes in accounting standards, how the accounting standards are interpreted, or the adoption of new
accounting standards can have a significant effect on our reported results, and could even retroactively affect previously reported transactions, and may require
that we make significant changes to our systems, processes and controls. Changes resulting from these new standards may result in materially different
financial results and may require that we change how we process, analyze and report financial information and that we change financial reporting controls.
Such changes in accounting standards may have an adverse effect on our business, financial position, and income, which may negatively impact our financial
results.

Our business could be materially adversely impacted by the widespread outbreak of a contagious disease.

In response to the widespread outbreak of a contagious disease, national, state and local governments in affected regions have, and may again, implement
safety precautions, including shelter in place orders, travel restrictions, business closures, cancellations of public gatherings, including boat shows, and other
measures. These measures have affected our ability to sell and service boats and may again require us to temporarily close or partially close certain locations.
Organizations and individuals may take additional steps to avoid or reduce infection, including limiting travel, staying home, working from home and limiting
participation in certain activities, or other measures, which may also affect our ability to operate our marine retailer locations or our manufacturing facilities.

If the negative economic effects of a widespread contagious disease continue for a prolonged period of time, it could lead to a reduction in demand for our
products, which would adversely affect our results of operations. Additionally, disruptions in the capital markets, as a result of a global pandemic, may also
adversely affect our ability to access capital and additional liquidity. The COVID-19 pandemic's effects led to disruptions in our supply chain, including our
ability to obtain boats and parts from our suppliers. A similar contagious disease outbreak could have a similar effect on our supply chain that could adversely
affect our results of operations.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.
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Item 1C. Cybersecurity.
Description of Processes for Assessing, Identifying, and Managing Cybersecurity Risks
We seek to assess, identify and manage cybersecurity risks through the processes described below:

*  Risk Assessment: A multi-layered system designed to protect and monitor data and cybersecurity risk has been implemented. Assessments of our
cybersecurity safeguards are conducted by independent cybersecurity vendors. Our internal Information Systems team conducts regular evaluations
designed to assess, identify and manage material cybersecurity risks, and we endeavor to update cybersecurity infrastructure, procedures, policies, and
education programs in response. We use firewalls and cyber security software protection, and we additionally rely on a third-party vendor for alerts
regarding suspicious activity.

*  Incident Identification and Response: A monitoring and detection system has been implemented to help promptly identify cybersecurity incidents. In
the event of any breach or cybersecurity incident, we have an incident response plan that is designed to provide for action to contain the incident,
mitigate the impact, and restore normal operations efficiently.

»  Cybersecurity Training and Awareness: All employees and contractors are required to complete semi-annual cybersecurity awareness training. We also
conduct periodic drills and simulated attacks—including simulated phishing exercises and other social-engineering tests—to reinforce training,
evaluate user response, and assess the effectiveness of our cybersecurity controls. Employees who do not successfully complete these exercises are
required to undergo additional, targeted training to address identified gaps and strengthen overall security readiness.

e Access Controls: We endeavor to limit users' access to no more than necessary to complete their job functions. A multi-factor authentication process
has been implemented for employees accessing company information.

*  Encryption_and Data Protection: We endeavor to use appropriate encryption methods to protect sensitive data. This includes the encryption of
customer data, financial information, and other confidential data. We also have programs in place to monitor our retained data with the goal of
identifying personal identifiable information and taking appropriate actions to secure the data.

We incorporate external expertise and reviews as part of our cybersecurity program. For example, we have engaged an independent cybersecurity advisor
to review, assess, and make recommendations regarding our information security program and information technology strategic plan. We recognize that third-
party service providers introduce cybersecurity risks. In an effort to mitigate these risks, before engaging with any third-party service provider, we conduct due
diligence to evaluate their cybersecurity capabilities. Additionally, we endeavor to include cybersecurity requirements in our contracts with these providers and
endeavor to require them to adhere to security standards and protocols. Further, we request that third-party service providers with access to personally
identifiable information enter into data processing services agreements and adhere to our policies and standards.

The above cybersecurity risk management processes are integrated into the Company’s overall enterprise risk management program. Cybersecurity risks
are understood to be significant business risks, and as such, are considered an important component of our enterprise-wide risk management approach.

Impact of Risks from Cybersecurity Threats

As of the date of this report, though the Company and its third-party service providers have experienced certain cybersecurity incidents, we are not aware
of any cybersecurity threats that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our business, financial condition, results of operations or
cash flows. However, we acknowledge that cybersecurity threats are continually evolving, and the possibility of future cybersecurity incidents remains. Despite
the implementation of our cybersecurity processes, our security measures cannot guarantee that a significant cyberattack will not occur. A successful attack on
our information or operational technology systems could have significant consequences to the business. While we devote resources to our security measures to
protect our systems and information, these measures cannot provide absolute security. No security measure is infallible. See “Risk Factors” for additional
information about the risks to our business associated with a breach or compromise of our information or operational technology systems.

Board of Directors’ Oversight and Management’s Role

Through the Company’s enterprise risk management program, the Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing cybersecurity, information security, and
information and operational technology risks, as well as management’s actions to identify, assess, mitigate, and remediate those risks. As part of its program of
regular risk oversight, the Audit Committee assists the Board in exercising oversight of the Company’s cybersecurity, information security, and information and
operational technology risks. The Board or Audit Committee regularly reviews and discusses with management the Company’s policies, procedures and
practices with respect to cybersecurity, information security and information and operational technology, including related risks. In addition, the Company’s
Director of Information Systems is responsible for upward reporting of emerging cybersecurity incidents.
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Recognizing the importance of cybersecurity to the success and resilience of our business, the Board considers cybersecurity to be a vital aspect of
corporate governance. To facilitate effective oversight, our Information Systems team holds discussions on cybersecurity risks, incident trends, and the
effectiveness of cybersecurity measures as necessitated by emerging material cyber risks.

Management is responsible for assessing, identifying, and managing risks from cybersecurity threats. Our cybersecurity risk management efforts are led by
our Information Systems team, including our Director of Information Systems, who has worked in the information systems field for over 15 years and has lead
our Information Systems team for over 10 years. Our Director of Information Systems oversees our cybersecurity activities and is informed about and monitors
the prevention, detection, mitigation and remediation of cybersecurity incidents. Our Information Systems team is made up of highly experienced professionals
with a background in information security, risk management, and incident response. This background includes leading and developing cyber security
operations and incident response programs for business organizations, developing comprehensive cyber security strategies, and managing complex cyber
security projects across various industries.
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Item 2. Properties.

Our corporate headquarters which we lease, is located at 6275 Lanier Islands Parkway, Buford, Georgia 30518. Additionally, as part of our Dealership
segment, we own or lease the following material retail facilities as of September 30, 2025:

Dealerships Dealerships
Location & Dealer Group Leased Owned

Alabama
Harbor Point Marina
Harbor View Marine
Legendary Marine
Rambo Marine

Singleton Marine

—_ W W N = =

Sunrise Marine
California

Denison Yachting 4
Delaware

Taylor Marine Centers 1
Florida

Caribee Boat Sales

Central Marine

Denison Yachting 1

Harbor View Marine

Legendary Marine

Marina Mike’s

Naples Boat Mart

Ocean Blue Yacht Sales

Quality Boats

Sundance Marine

Sunrise Marine

Tom George Yacht Group

Walker’s Marine

Georgia

N = N A D L o—m om0 = W W —

Singleton Marine 6
Massachusetts

Bosuns Marine 2
Maryland

Bosuns Marine 1

Denison Yachting 1

Taylor Marine Centers 1
Monaco

Denison Yachting 1
North Carolina

Denison Yachting 1
New Jersey

Garden State Yacht Sales 1

Stone Harbor Marina 1
New York

Denison Yachting 1
Ohio

South Shore Marine

Spend-A-Day Marina 2
Rhode Island



Denison Yachting 1 _
South Carolina

Captain’s Choice Marine 2 —

Denison Yachting 1 _

Singleton Marine 2 _
Tennessee

Rambo Marine —
Texas

Phil Dill Boats

Slalom Shop

SMG Boats

Texas Marine

W = W =
|

Yirginia
Norfolk Marine Company 1 —
Washington

Denison Yachting 1 _

As part of our Distribution segment, we own or lease the following material warehouses and distribution facilities as of September 30, 2025:

Location & Group Locations Leased Locations Owned

Alabama

T-H Marine 3 —

Ocean Bio-Chem —
Florida

PartsVu 1 —

T-H Marine 1 —

Ocean Bio-Chem —
Indiana

T-H Marine 1 —
Oklahoma

T-H Marine 1 —

We believe that our facilities are adequate for our current operations.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

We are involved in various legal proceedings as either the defendant or plaintiff. Due to their nature, such legal proceedings involve inherent uncertainties
including, but not limited to, court rulings, negotiations between the affected parties and other actions. Management assesses the probability of losses or gains
for such contingencies and accrues a liability and/or discloses the relevant circumstances as appropriate. In the opinion of management, it is not reasonably
probable that the pending litigation, disputes or claims against the Company as of September 30, 2025, will have a material adverse effect on its financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows. However, the outcome of any matter cannot be predicted with certainty, and an unfavorable resolution of one or
more matters presently known or arising in the future could have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition, liquidity or results of
operations.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.
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PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.
Market Information

Our Class A common stock is traded on Nasdaq under the symbol “ONEW.” As of December 2, 2025, there were 16,527,533 shares of Class A common
stock and no shares of Class B common stock outstanding.

Holders of Record

As of December 2, 2025 there were 6 stockholders of record for our Class A common stock and no stockholders of record for our Class B common stock.
In the case of our Class A common stock, the actual number of holders is greater than this number of record holders, and includes stockholders who are
beneficial owners, but whose shares are held in street name by brokers or held by other nominees. The number of holders of record of Class A common stock
also does not include stockholders whose shares may be held in trust by other entities.

Performance Graph

The following graph illustrates a comparison of the total cumulative stockholder return for our Class A common stock over the five-year period ended
September 30, 2025, to two indices: the Russell 2000 Index and the S&P 500 Retail Index. The graph assumes an initial investment of $100 on September 30,
2020, in our Class A common stock, the stocks comprising the Russell 2000 Index, and the stocks comprising the S&P 500 Retail Index. The calculations of
cumulative shareholder return on our Class A common stock, the Russell 2000 Index and the S&P 500 Retail Index include reinvestment of dividends. The
comparisons in the table are required by the SEC and are not intended to forecast or be indicative of possible future performance of our Class A common stock.
This graph shall not be deemed “soliciting material” or be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or otherwise subject to the liabilities
under that section, and shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any of our filings under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, whether made
before or after the date hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation language in any such filing.

COMPARISON OF 60 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among OneWater Marine Inc., the Russell 2000 Index
and the S&P 500 Consumer Staples Distribution & Retail Index
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*$100 invested on 9/30/20 in stock and in index, including reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year
ending September 30.

Copyright© 2025 Russell Investment Group. All rights reserved.
Copyright© 2025 Standard & Poor's, a division of S&P Global. All rights reserved.
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9/30/20 9/30/21 9/30/22 9/30/23 9/30/24 9/30/25
OneWater Marine Inc. 100.00 204.92 153.45 130.56 121.85 80.72
Russell 2000 100.00 147.68 112.98 123.07 156.00 172.78
S&P 500 Retail 100.00 115.02 88.35 100.98 141.42 161.79

Dividends

We do not anticipate declaring or paying any cash dividends to holders of our Class A common stock in the foreseeable future. We currently intend to
retain future earnings, if any, to finance the growth of our business. Our future dividend policy is within the discretion of our Board of Directors and will
depend upon then-existing conditions, including our results of operations, financial condition, capital requirements, investment opportunities, statutory and
contractual restrictions on our ability to pay dividends and other factors our Board of Directors may deem relevant. See “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our
Class A Common Stock— We do not intend to pay cash dividends on our Class A common stock, and our Credit Facilities place certain restrictions on our
ability to do so. Consequently, your only opportunity to achieve a return on your investment is if the price of our Class A common stock appreciates.”

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.
Issuer’s Purchases of Equity Securities

On March 30, 2022, the Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program of up to $50 million of outstanding shares of Class A common stock.
Repurchases under the share repurchase program may be made at any time or from time to time, without prior notice, in the open market or in privately
negotiated transactions at prevailing market prices, or such other means as will comply with applicable state and federal securities laws and regulations,
including the provisions of the Exchange Act, including Rule 10b5-1 and Rule 10b-18 thereunder, and consistent with the Company’s contractual limitations
and other requirements. The Company made no repurchases during the year ended September 30, 2025. As of September 30, 2025, the Company has
repurchased and retired 73,487 shares of Class A common stock under the repurchase program for a purchase price of approximately $1.9 million. The
Company has $48.1 million remaining under the share repurchase program.

Any such share repurchases may be subject to a U.S. federal excise tax. Subject to certain exceptions and adjustments, the amount of the excise tax is
generally 1% of the aggregate fair market values of the shares of stock repurchased by the corporation during a taxable year, net of the aggregate fair market
value of certain new stock issuances by the repurchasing corporation during the same taxable year. In the past, there have been proposals to increase the
amount of the excise tax from 1% to 4%; however, it is unclear whether such a change in the amount of the excise tax will be enacted and, if enacted, how soon
any change would take effect.

Item 6. [RESERVED]

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Unless the context requires otherwise, references in this report to the “Company,” “we,” “us,” and “our” refer to OneWater Marine Inc. and its
consolidated subsidiaries. The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our
audited consolidated financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The following discussion contains
forward-looking statements that reflect our future plans, estimates, beliefs and expected performance. The forward-looking statements are dependent upon
events, risks and uncertainties that may be outside our control. Our actual results could differ materially from those discussed in these forward-looking
statements as a result of a variety of risks and uncertainties, including those described in this Annual Report on Form 10-K under “Special Note Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements” and “Risk Factors.” In light of these risk, uncertainties and assumptions, the forward-looking events discussed may not occur.
We do not undertake any obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, except as otherwise required by applicable law.

Overview

We believe that we are one of the largest and fastest-growing marine retailers in the United States with 95 dealerships, 9 distribution centers/warehouses
and multiple online marketplaces as of September 30, 2025. Our dealer groups are located within highly attractive markets throughout the Southeast, Gulf
Coast, Mid-Atlantic and Northeast, many of which are in the top twenty states for marine retail expenditures. We believe that we are a market leader by volume
in sales of premium boats in many of the markets in which we operate. In addition to boat sales, we also generate sales from related products including finance
& insurance and service, parts & other sales. The acquisitions of T-H Marine and Ocean Bio-Chem significantly expanded our sales of marine parts and
accessories. The combination of our significant scale, diverse inventory, access to premium boat brands, access to a broad array of parts and accessories, and
meaningful brand equity enables us to provide a consistently professional experience as reflected in the number of our repeat customers and Dealership same-
store sales growth.
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We were formed in 2014 as OneWater LLC through the combination of Singleton Marine and Legendary Marine, which created a marine retail platform
that collectively owned and operated 19 dealerships. Since the combination in 2014, we have acquired a total of 83 additional dealerships, 12 distribution
centers/warehouses and multiple online marketplaces through 35 acquisitions. Our current portfolio as of September 30, 2025 consists of multiple brands which
are recognized on a local, regional or national basis. Because of this, we believe we are one of the largest and fastest-growing marine retailers in the United
States based on number of dealerships and total boats sold. While we have opportunistically opened new dealerships in select markets, or launched additional
parts and accessory products, we believe that it is generally more effective economically and operationally to acquire existing businesses with experienced staff
and established reputations.

We report our operations through two reportable segments: Dealerships and Distribution.

As of September 30, 2025, the Dealerships reporting segment includes operations of 95 dealerships in 17 states including Florida, Texas, Alabama and
Georgia, among others, and represents 92% of revenues. The Dealership segment engages in the sale of new and pre-owned boats, arranges financing and
insurance products, performs repairs and maintenance services, offers marine related parts and accessories and offers slip and storage accommodations in
certain locations.

As of September 30, 2025, the Distribution reporting segment includes the activity of three of our fully-owned businesses, PartsVu, Ocean Bio-Chem and
its subsidiaries and T-H Marine and its subsidiaries, which together operate 9 distribution centers/warehouses in Alabama, Florida, Oklahoma, and Indiana and
represents 8% of revenues. The Distribution segment engages in the manufacturing, assembly and distribution of marine-related products (and adjacent
industries).

The boat dealership market is highly fragmented and is comprised of approximately 4,000 dealerships nationwide. Most competing boat retailers are
operated by local business owners who own three or fewer stores; however we do have other large competitors. We believe we are one of the largest and
fastest-growing marine retailers in the United States. Despite our size, we comprise less than 4% of total industry sales. Our scale and business model allow us
to leverage our extensive inventory to provide consumers with the ability to find a boat that matches their preferences (e.g., make, model, color, configuration
and other options) and to deliver the boat within days while providing a personalized sales experience. In addition to boat sales, we also generate sales from
related products including finance & insurance and service, parts & other sales. The acquisitions of T-H Marine and Ocean Bio-Chem have significantly
expanded our sales of marine parts and accessories. Our strategic growth in this area is also expected to materially expand our addressable market in the parts
and accessories business. We are able to operate with a comparatively higher degree of profitability than other independent retailers because we allocate
support resources across our broader base, focus on high-margin service parts and accessories, utilize floor plan financing and provide core back-office
functions on a scale that many independent retailers are unable to match. We seek to be the leading marine retailer by total market share within each boating
market and within the product segments in which we participate. To the extent that we are not, we will evaluate acquiring other local retailers in order to
increase our sales, to add additional brands or to provide us with additional high-quality personnel.

Trends and Other Factors Impacting Our Performance
Acquisitions

We have been a highly acquisitive company. Since the combination of Singleton Marine and Legendary Marine in 2014, we have acquired 83 additional
dealerships through 30 dealer group acquisitions. Our team remains focused on expanding our dealership growth in regions with strong boating cultures,
enhancing the customer experience and generating value for our shareholders. In addition to dealership acquisitions, the Company has strategically acquired
parts and accessories companies as part of our growth and diversification strategy. We have acquired 12 distribution centers and warehouses through the
acquisition of 5 parts and accessories companies. We plan to continue to strategically evaluate and complete acquisitions moving forward. For each of the years
ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, we completed 1 acquisition during the period.

We have an extensive acquisition track record within the retail marine industry and believe we have developed a reputation for treating sellers and their
staff in an honest and fair manner. We typically retain the management team and name of the acquired group. We believe this practice preserves customer
relationships and goodwill in the local marketplace. We believe our reputation and scale have positioned us as a buyer of choice for marine retailers who want
to sell their businesses. Our strategy is to acquire dealerships at attractive EBITDA multiples and then grow same-store sales while benefiting from cost-
reducing synergies. Historically, we have typically acquired dealerships for less than 4.0x EBITDA on a trailing twelve month basis and believe that we will be
able to continue to make attractive acquisitions within this range. With the addition of our Distribution segment, we may look to acquire additional parts and
accessories manufacturing and distribution companies. Historically, we have acquired manufacturing and distribution companies within a range of 5.0x — 10.0x
EBITDA on a trailing twelve-month basis, depending on the size of the business.

General Economic Conditions
General economic conditions and consumer spending patterns can negatively impact our operating results. Unfavorable local, regional, national, or global

economic developments or uncertainties, including the adverse economic effects of higher interest rates or inflation, increases to tariff or duty rates, supply
chain constraints, or a prolonged economic downturn, could reduce consumer spending and
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adversely affect our business. Consumer spending on discretionary goods may also decline as a result of lower consumer confidence levels, higher interest rates
or higher fuel costs, even if prevailing economic conditions are otherwise favorable. The imposition of tariffs on foreign goods and services, as well as any
retaliatory tariffs on U.S. goods and services, could increase the price of supplies and materials we rely on to conduct our business, and, thus, negatively impact
our operating results. Although rhetoric has de-escalated in recent months (including recent cuts to food tariffs by the U.S.), there is still a high degree of
uncertainty surrounding U.S. tariff policy, how it will be implemented, and how other countries will react to it. Economic conditions in areas in which we
operate dealerships, particularly in the Southeast, can have a major impact on our overall results of operations. Local influences, such as corporate downsizing,
inclement weather such as hurricanes, tornadoes, and other storms, environmental conditions, and global public health concerns and events have and could
adversely affect our operations in certain markets and in certain periods. Any extended period of adverse economic conditions or low consumer confidence is
likely to have a negative effect on our business.

Our business was significantly impacted during the recessionary period that began in 2007. This period of weakness in consumer spending and depressed
economic conditions had a substantial negative effect on our operating results. In response to these conditions we reduced our inventory purchases, closed
certain dealerships and reduced headcount. Additionally, in an effort to counteract the downturn, we increased our focus on pre-owned sales, parts and repair
services, and finance & insurance services. As a result, we surpassed our pre-recession sales levels in less than 24 months. While we believe the measures we
took significantly reduced the impact of the downturn on the business, we cannot guarantee similar results in the event of a future downturn. Additionally, we
cannot predict the timing or length of unfavorable economic or industry conditions, including a downturn as a result of a global health crisis, rising interest
rates, tariffs, inflation, or the extent to which they could adversely affect our operating results.

Although past economic conditions have adversely affected our operating results, we believe we are capable of responding in a manner that allows us to
substantially outperform the industry and gain market share. We believe our ability to capture such market share enables us to align our retail strategies with the
desires of customers. We expect our core strengths, including retail and acquisition strategies, will allow us to capitalize on growth opportunities as they occur,
despite market conditions.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, contingent assets and liabilities, each as of the date of the financial
statements, and revenues and expenses during the periods presented. On an ongoing basis, management evaluates their estimates and assumptions, and the
effects of any such revisions are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which they are determined to be necessary. Actual outcomes could differ
materially from those estimates in a manner that could have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements. Set forth below are the estimates that we
have identified as critical to our business operations and understanding our results of operations, based on the high degree of judgment or complexity in their
application.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The cost of new and pre-owned boat inventory is determined using the specific
identification method. New and pre-owned boat sales histories indicate that the overwhelming majority of such boats are sold for, or in excess of, the cost to
purchase those boats. In assessing the lower of cost or net realizable value, we consider the aging of the boats, historical sales of a particular product and
current market conditions. There are inherent uncertainties in assessing net realizable value as management must make assumptions and apply judgment to
changes in the market, brands and other factors that drive consumer preferences and spending.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 350, Intangibles — Goodwill and Others (“ASC 350”), we review goodwill for impairment
annually in our fourth fiscal quarter, or more often if events or circumstances indicate that impairment may have occurred. When evaluating goodwill for
impairment, if the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value, the difference would represent the amount of required goodwill impairment in
accordance with ASC 350. To the extent the reporting unit’s earnings decline significantly or there are changes in one or more of these inputs that would result
in a lower valuation, it could cause the carrying value of the reporting unit to exceed its fair value and thus require the Company to record goodwill
impairment.

Identifiable intangible assets as a result of the acquisitions we have completed consist of trade names, developed technologies and customer relationships.
We have determined that trade names have an indefinite life, as there is no economic, contractual or other factors that limit their useful lives and they are
expected to generate value as long as the trade name is utilized by the marine retailer, and therefore, are not subject to amortization. Developed technologies
and customer relationships are amortized over their estimated useful lives of ten years and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable.

Impairment testing requires the assessment of both qualitative and quantitative factors, including, but not limited to whether there has been a significant or

adverse change in the business climate that could affect the value of an asset and/or significant or adverse changes in cash flow projections or earnings
forecasts. These assessments require management to make judgments, assumptions and estimates
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regarding macroeconomic and industry conditions, our financial performance, and other factors and are often interdependent; therefore, they do not change in
isolation. Factors that management must estimate include, among others, the economic lives of the assets, sales volume, pricing, royalty rates, long-term
growth rates, tax rates, and capital spending. The estimates and assumptions used in these tests are evaluated and updated as appropriate. The variability of
these factors depends on a number of conditions, including uncertainty about future events, and thus our accounting estimates may change from period to
period. If other assumptions and estimates had been used when these tests were performed, impairment charges could have changed. As mentioned above, these
factors do not change in isolation and, therefore, we do not believe it is practicable or meaningful to present the impact of changing a single factor.
Furthermore, if management uses different assumptions in future periods or if different conditions exist in future periods, additional impairment charges could
result.

During the years ended September 30, 2025 and 2023, the Company determined that there were circumstances that indicated that impairment may have
occurred. We engaged a third-party independent valuation professional to perform a quantitative analysis of the fair values compared to the carrying value and,
as a result, recorded a loss on impairment of $145.8 million and $147.4 million, respectively. For the year ended September 30, 2024, the Company determined
that it was more likely than not that the fair value of the goodwill and identifiable intangible assets was greater than its carrying amount, and as a result, no
impairment for goodwill and identifiable intangible assets was required.

Business Combinations

We account for business combinations using the acquisition method of accounting, which requires recognition of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
fair value as of the date of the acquisition. Determination of the estimated fair value assigned to each asset acquired or liability assumed can materially impact
the net income in subsequent periods through depreciation and amortization and potential impairment charges.

The most critical areas of judgment in applying the acquisition method include selecting the appropriate valuation techniques and assumptions that are
used to measure the acquired assets and assumed liabilities at fair value, particularly for inventory, contingent consideration, trade names, developed
technologies and customer relationships. The fair value of acquired inventory is based on manufacturer invoice cost, curtailments, and market data. The
significant estimates used to value contingent consideration are future earnings and discount rates. Management estimated the fair value of the trade names and
developed technologies using the relief from royalty method and customer relationships using the multi-period excess earnings method. The fair value
determination of the trade names and developed technologies required management to make significant estimates and assumptions related to future revenues
and the selection of the royalty rate and discount rate. The fair value determination of the customer relationships require management to make significant
estimates and assumptions related to future revenues attributable to existing customers, future EBITDA margins and the selection of the customer attrition rate
and discount rate. Changes in assumptions concerning future financial results or other underlying assumptions could have a significant impact on the
determination of the fair value.

In selecting the techniques and assumptions noted above, we generally engage third-party, independent valuation professionals to assist us in developing
the assumptions and applying the valuation techniques to a particular business combination transaction. In particular, the discount rates selected are compared
to and evaluated with (i) the industry weighted-average cost of capital, (ii) the inherent risks associated with each type of asset and (iii) the level and timing of
future cash flows appropriately reflecting market participant assumptions.

Income Tax Accounting

The provision for income taxes is based upon income in our consolidated financial statements, rather than amounts reported on our income tax return.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of a change in tax rates on our deferred tax assets
and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment date. Under GAAP, a valuation allowance is required to be
recognized if it is more likely than not that a deferred tax asset will not be realized. The determination as to whether we will be able to realize the deferred tax
assets is highly subjective and dependent upon judgment concerning our evaluation of both positive and negative evidence including our forecasts of future
income, applicable tax planning strategies, and assessments of current and future economic and business conditions. Positive evidence includes the probability
that taxable income will be generated in future periods as well as positive business and economic trends, while negative evidence includes a three-year
cumulative loss. Any reduction in estimated future taxable income may require us to record a valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets. Any required
valuation allowance would result in additional income tax expense in the period and could have a significant impact on our future earnings. We believe our
deferred tax assets are properly recorded in the consolidated financial statements at September 30, 2025 and no valuation allowance is required as it is more
likely than not the amounts will be realized.

Positions taken in our tax returns may be subject to challenge by the taxing authorities upon examination. The benefit of an uncertain tax position is
initially recognized in the financial statements only when it is more likely than not the position will be sustained upon examination by the tax authorities. Such
tax positions are both initially and subsequently measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon settlement
with the tax authority, assuming full knowledge of the position and all relevant
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facts. Differences between our position and the position of tax authorities could result in a reduction of a tax benefit or an increase to a tax liability, which
could adversely affect our future income tax expense.

How We Evaluate Our Operations
Revenue

We have a diversified revenue profile that is comprised of new boat sales, pre-owned boat sales, finance & insurance products, repair and maintenance
services, and parts and accessories sales. During different phases of the economic cycle, consumer behavior may shift away from new boats; however, we are
well-positioned to generate revenue from pre-owned boats, repair and maintenance services, and parts and accessories, which have all historically increased
during periods of economic uncertainty. We generate pre-owned sales from boats traded-in for new and pre-owned boats, boats purchased from customers,
brokerage transactions, consignment sales and wholesale sales. We continue to focus on all aspects of our business including non-boat sales of finance &
insurance products, repair and maintenance services, and parts and accessories. Although non-boat sales contributed approximately 18.7%, 19.3% and 19.5% to
revenue in fiscal years 2025, 2024 and 2023, respectively, due to the higher gross margin on these product and service lines, non-boat sales contributed 41.7%,
40.0% and 35.6% to gross profit in fiscal years 2025, 2024 and 2023, respectively. We have also diversified our business across geographies, dealership types
(e.g., fresh water and salt water), and product offerings (e.g., focus on parts and accessories businesses through our Distribution segment) in order to reduce the
effects of seasonality and cyclicality of our business. In addition to seasonality, revenue and operating results may be significantly affected by quarter-to-
quarter changes in economic conditions, manufacturer incentive programs, adverse weather conditions and other developments outside of our control.

Gross Profit

We calculate gross profit as revenue less cost of sales. Cost of sales consists of actual amounts paid for products, costs of services (primarily labor),
transportation costs from manufacturers to our dealerships and vendor consideration. Gross profit excludes the majority of our depreciation and amortization,
which is presented separately in our consolidated statements of operations.

Gross Profit Margin

Our overall gross profit margin varies with our revenue mix. Sales of new and pre-owned boats, which have comparable margins, generally result in a
lower gross profit margin than our non-boat sales. As a result, when revenue from non-boat sales increases as a percentage of total revenue, we expect our
overall gross profit margin to increase.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of base salaries and incentive-based compensation, advertising, rent, insurance, utilities, and
other customary operating expenses. A portion of our cost structure is variable (such as sales commissions and incentive compensation), or controllable (such
as advertising), which we believe allows us to adapt to changes in the retail environment over the long term. We typically evaluate our variable expenses,
selling expenses and all other selling, general and administrative expenses in the aggregate as a percentage of total revenue.

Dealership Same-Store Sales

We assess the organic growth of our Dealership segment revenue on a same-store basis. We believe that our assessment on a same-store basis represents an
important indicator of comparative financial results and provides relevant information to assess our performance. New and acquired dealerships become
eligible for inclusion in the comparable dealership base at the end of the dealership’s thirteenth month of operations under our ownership and revenues are only
included for identical months in the same-store base periods. Dealerships relocated within an existing market remain in the comparable dealership base for all
periods. Additionally, amounts related to closed dealerships are excluded from each comparative base period. Because Dealership same-store sales may be
defined differently by other companies in our industry, our definition of this measure may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies,
thereby diminishing its utility.

Adjusted EBITDA

We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income (loss) before interest expense — other, income tax (benefit) expense, depreciation and amortization and other
(income) expense, further adjusted to eliminate the effects of items such as the change in fair value of contingent consideration, loss on extinguishment of debt,
transaction costs, stock-based compensation and restructuring and impairment. See “—Comparison of Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for more information
and a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net income (loss), the most directly comparable financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with
GAAP.
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Adjusted Net Income (Loss) Attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. and Adjusted Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share

We define Adjusted Net Income (Loss) Attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. as net income (loss) attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. before transaction
costs, intangible amortization, change in fair value of contingent consideration, restructuring and impairment and other (income) expense, all of which are then
adjusted for an allocation to the non-controlling interest of OneWater LLC for periods prior to the Final Redemption. Each of these adjustments are
subsequently adjusted for income tax at an estimated effective tax rate. Management also reports Adjusted Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share which presents all
of the adjustments to net income (loss) attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. on a per share basis. See "— Comparison of Non-GAAP Financial Measures" for
more information and a reconciliation of Adjusted Net Income (Loss) Attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. and Adjusted Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share to
net income (loss) and net earnings (loss) per share, respectively, the most directly comparable financial measures calculated and presented in accordance with
GAAP.

Summary of Acquisitions and Dispositions
Acquisitions

The comparability of our results of operations between the periods discussed below is naturally affected by the acquisitions we have completed during
such periods. We are also continuously evaluating and pursuing acquisitions on an ongoing basis, and such acquisitions, if completed, will continue to impact
the comparability of our financial results. While we expect continued growth and strategic acquisitions in the future, our acquisitions may have materially
different characteristics than our historical results, and such differences in economics may impact the comparability of our future results of operations to our
historical results.

Fiscal Year 2025 Acquisitions

»  Effective February 1, 2025, we acquired certain assets of American Yacht Group, a full service marine retailer with two locations in Florida.

We refer to the fiscal year 2025 acquisition described above as the “2025 Acquisition.” The 2025 Acquisition is partially reflected in our audited
consolidated statements of operations for the year ended September 30, 2025. Our 2025 Acquisition did not impact our results of operations for the years ended
September 30, 2024 and 2023.

Fiscal Year 2024 Acquisitions

*  Effective May 1, 2024, we acquired Garden State Yacht Sales, a full service marine retailer located in New Jersey.

We refer to the fiscal year 2024 acquisition described above as the “2024 Acquisition.” The 2024 Acquisition is fully reflected in our consolidated
statements of operations for the year ended September 30, 2025 and partially reflected in our consolidated statements of operations for the year ended
September 30, 2024, beginning on the date of acquisition. Our 2024 Acquisition did not impact our results of operations for the year ended September 30,

2023.

On October 31, 2023, we exercised our right to acquire the remaining 20% economic interest in Quality Assets and Operations, LLC. Subsequent to the
acquisition, the Company now owns 100% of the economic interest in Quality Assets and Operations, LLC.

Fiscal Year 2023 Acquisitions

*  Effective October 1, 2022, we acquired Taylor Marine Centers, a full service marine retailer with locations in Maryland and Delaware.

*  Effective December 1, 2022, we acquired Harbor View Marine, a full service marine retailer with locations in Florida and Alabama.

*  Effective September 1, 2023, we acquired Harbor Pointe Marina, a full service marine retailer with one location in Alabama.

We refer to the fiscal year 2023 acquisitions described above collectively as the “2023 Acquisitions.” The 2023 Acquisitions are fully reflected in our
consolidated financial statements for the years ended September 30, 2025 and 2024. Taylor Marine Centers is fully reflected in our consolidated statements of

operations for the year ended September 30, 2023. The remaining 2023 Acquisitions are partially reflected in our consolidated statements of operations for the
year ended September 30, 2023, beginning on the date of acquisition.

Dispositions

The comparability of our results of operations between the periods discussed below is naturally affected by the dispositions we have completed during
such periods. Future dispositions, if any, may impact the comparability of our future results of operations to our historical results.
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Fiscal Year 2023 Dispositions

*  Effective September 30, 2023, we sold Roscioli Yachting Center, a full-service marine and yachting facility located in Florida, including the related
real estate and in-water slips. A portion of the sold property was leased back by the Company.

«  Effective September 30, 2023 we sold Lookout Marine, a full-service marine retailer based in Kentucky with two locations.

We refer to the fiscal year 2023 dispositions described above collectively as the “2023 Dispositions.” The 2023 Dispositions are fully reflected in our
consolidated financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2023, as the transactions took place on the final day of fiscal year 2023. There were no
dispositions during the fiscal years ended September 30, 2025 and 2024.

Other Factors Affecting Comparability of Our Future Results of Operations to Our Historical Results of Operations

Our historical financial results discussed below may not be comparable to our future financial results. As we further implement controls, processes and
infrastructure applicable to companies with publicly traded equity securities, including the integration of acquired companies, it is likely that we will incur
additional selling, general, and administrative expenses relative to historical periods. Additionally, from time to time, we may consider expanding or cancelling
certain dealer agreements which could impact our future revenues and gross profit. Our future results will depend on our ability to efficiently manage our
combined operations and execute our business strategy.
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Results of Operations

Year Ended September 30, 2025, Compared to Year Ended September 30, 2024

For the Year Ended September 30,

2025 2024
% of % of
Description Amount Revenue Amount Revenue $ Change % Change
(8 in thousands)

Revenues:
New boat $ 1,158,165 61.9% $ 1,118,292 63.1 % 39,873 3.6 %
Pre-owned boat 363,906 19.4 % 312,193 17.6 % 51,713 16.6 %
Finance & insurance income 54,959 2.9 % 51,494 2.9 % 3,465 6.7 %
Service, parts & other 295,304 15.8 % 290,651 16.4 % 4,653 1.6 %
Total revenues 1,872,334 100.0 % 1,772,630 100.0 % 99,704 5.6 %
Gross Profit
New boat 183,214 9.8 % 196,886 11.1 % (13,672) -6.9 %
Pre-owned boat 65,545 3.5% 64,125 3.6 % 1,420 22 %
Finance & insurance 54,959 29 % 51,494 29 % 3,465 6.7 %
Service, parts & other 123,304 6.6 % 122,558 6.9 % 746 0.6 %
Total gross profit 427,022 22.8% 435,063 24.5% (8,041) -1.8 %
Selling, general and administrative expenses 343,285 18.3 % 332,680 18.8 % 10,605 32%
Depreciation and amortization 21,634 1.2 % 19,401 1.1% 2,233 11.5 %
Transaction costs 1,547 0.1 % 1,530 0.1 % 17 1.1%
Change in fair value of contingent
consideration (2,133) -0.1 % 4,248 0.2 % (6,381) -150.2 %
Restructuring and impairment 148,139 7.9 % 12,386 0.7 % 135,753 1,096.0 %
(Loss) income from operations (85,450) -4.6 % 64,818 3.7% (150,268) -231.8%
Interest expense — floor plan 28,469 1.5% 34,087 1.9 % (5,618) -16.5 %
Interest expense — other 36,183 1.9 % 37,050 2.1% (867) 2.3%
Other expense, net 1,429 0.1 % 14 —% 1,415 10,107.1 %
Net loss before income tax benefit (151,531) -8.1 % (6,333) -0.4 % (145,198) 2,292.7 %
Income tax benefit (35,301) -1.9% (157) — % (35,144) 22,384.7 %
Net loss (116,230) -6.2 % (6,176) -0.3 % (110,054) 1,782.0 %
Net income attributable to non-controlling
interests — (119)
Net loss attributable to non-controlling

interests of One Water Marine Holdings,

LLC 1,648 590
Net loss attributable to OneWater Marine Inc.  $ (114,582) $ (5,705)

Revenue

Overall, revenue increased by $99.7 million, or 5.6%, to $1,872.3 million for the year ended September 30, 2025 from $1,772.6 million for the year ended
September 30, 2024. Revenue generated from Dealership same-store sales increased 5.9% for the year ended September 30, 2025, as compared to the year
ended September 30, 2024, primarily due to an increase in the average selling price of new and pre-owned boats and the number of pre-owned units sold.
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New Boat Sales

New boat sales increased by $39.9 million, or 3.6%, to $1,158.2 million for the year ended September 30, 2025 from $1,118.3 million for the year ended
September 30, 2024. The increase was primarily due an increase in same-store sales and an increase in the average selling price, partially offset by a decrease
in unit sales. Additionally, the year ended September 30, 2024 was impacted by Hurricane Helene.

Pre-owned Boat Sales

Pre-owned boat sales increased by $51.7 million, or 16.6%, to $363.9 million for the year ended September 30, 2025 from $312.2 million for the year
ended September 30, 2024. We sell a wide range of brands and sizes of pre-owned boats under different types of sales arrangements (e.g., trade-ins, brokerage,
consigned and wholesale), which causes periodic and seasonal fluctuations in the average sales price. The increase in pre-owned boat sales was attributable to
both an increase in the number of units sold and average selling price resulting from a shift in customer demand towards pre-owned boats.

Finance & Insurance Income

We generate revenue from arranging finance & insurance products, including financing, insurance and extended warranty contracts, to customers through
various third-party financial institutions and insurance companies. Finance & insurance income increased by $3.5 million, or 6.7%, to $55.0 million for the
year ended September 30, 2025 from $51.5 million for the year ended September 30, 2024. The increase was primarily due to the additional new and pre-
owned boat revenues. We remain very focused on maintaining and improving sales penetration of finance & insurance products throughout our dealer network
and implementing best practices at acquired dealer groups and existing dealerships. Finance & insurance income is recorded net of related fees, including fees
charged back due to any early cancellation of loan or insurance contracts by a customer. Since finance & insurance income is fee-based, we do not incur any
related cost of sale.

Service, Parts & Other Sales

Service, parts & other sales increased by $4.7 million, or 1.6%, to $295.3 million for the year ended September 30, 2025 from $290.7 million for the year
ended September 30, 2024. This increase in service, parts & other sales is primarily due to increases in the Dealership segment, driven by ancillary sales
generated from our increase in new and pre-owned boat sales at our dealerships. The increase in our Dealership segment was partially offset by a decrease in
sales in the Distribution segment. Revenue for the Distribution segment is reported in service, parts & other sales and totaled $147.4 million and $156.1 million
for the years ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Gross Profit

Overall, gross profit decreased by $8.0 million, or 1.8%, to $427.0 million for the year ended September 30, 2025 from $435.1 million for the year ended
September 30, 2024. This decrease was mainly due to new and pre-owned boat pricing, including the impact of select brands the Company has exited, partially
offset by the increase in new and pre-owned unit sales. Overall gross margins decreased 170 basis points to 22.8% for the year ended September 30, 2025 from
24.5% for the year ended September 30, 2024 due to the factors noted below.

New Boat Gross Profit

New boat gross profit decreased by $13.7 million, or 6.9%, to $183.2 million for the year ended September 30, 2025 from $196.9 million for the year
ended September 30, 2024. This decrease was due to the decrease in new boat gross profit margin. New boat gross profit as a percentage of new boat revenue
was 15.8% for the year ended September 30, 2025 as compared to 17.6% for the year ended September 30, 2024. The decrease in new boat gross profit and
gross profit margin is due primarily to new boat pricing, including the impact of the select brands the Company has exited.

Pre-owned Boat Gross Profit

Pre-owned boat gross profit increased by $1.4 million, or 2.2%, to $65.5 million for the year ended September 30, 2025 from $64.1 million for the year
ended September 30, 2024. This increase was primarily driven by an increase in pre-owned boat sales, partially offset by the decrease in pre-owned boat gross
profit margins. Pre-owned boat gross profit as a percentage of pre-owned boat revenue was 18.0% for the year ended September 30, 2025 as compared to
20.5% for the year ended September 30, 2024. The pre-owned gross profit margin decrease was primarily due to the strategic pricing to drive sales growth and
maintain a healthy level of inventory as well as the mix shift in the components of pre-owned sales (e.g., trade-ins, brokerage, consignment and wholesale),
which can cause fluctuations in pre-owned boat gross profit margin.
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Finance & Insurance Gross Profit

Finance & insurance gross profit increased by $3.5 million, or 6.7%, to $55.0 million for the year ended September 30, 2025 from $51.5 million for the
year ended September 30, 2024. Finance & insurance income is fee-based revenue for which we do not recognize incremental cost of sales.

Service, Parts & Other Gross Profit

Service, parts & other gross profit increased by $0.7 million, or 0.6%, to $123.3 million for the year ended September 30, 2025 from $122.6 million for the
year ended September 30, 2024. The increase in gross profit was primarily the result of the increase in service, parts & other sales, partially offset by a decrease
in service, parts & other gross profit margin. Service, parts & other gross profit as a percentage of service, parts & other revenue was 41.8% and 42.2% for the
years ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The decrease in gross profit margin was primarily due to rising labor costs.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by $10.6 million, or 3.2%, to $343.3 million for the year ended September 30, 2025 from $332.7
million for the year ended September 30, 2024. This increase was primarily due to expenses incurred to support the overall increase in revenues. Selling,
general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue decreased to 18.3% from 18.8% for the years ended September 30, 2025 and 2024,
respectively. The decrease in selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue was driven by higher revenues and ongoing reductions in
the Company’s expense structure.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $2.2 million, or 11.5%, to $21.6 million for the year ended September 30, 2025 compared to $19.4
million for the year ended September 30, 2024. The increase in depreciation and amortization expense is primarily due to property and equipment additions
during the year ended September 30, 2025 to support operations.

Transaction Costs

Transaction costs remained flat at $1.5 million for the year ended September 30, 2025 compared to $1.5 million for the year ended September 30, 2024
which is attributable to similar level of acquisition activity.

Change in Fair Value of Contingent Consideration

During the year ended September 30, 2025, we recognized income of $2.1 million related to updated forecasts related to previous acquisitions, partially
offset by accretion of contingent consideration liabilities.

Restructuring and Impairment

During the year ended September 30, 2025, we recognized restructuring and impairment charges of $149.7 million, of which $145.8 million is for
impairment of goodwill and identifiable intangible assets as a result of the quantitative assessment of the fair values compared to the carrying values of
goodwill and identifiable intangible assets for the Dealerships and Distribution segments. The impairment was largely driven by a decline in margins as well as
a decrease in the Company's market capitalization. The remaining $3.9 million is due to various restructuring activities, of which $2.3 million is recorded in
restructuring and impairment and $1.6 million is recorded in new boat cost of sales in the consolidated statements of operations.

During the year ended September 30, 2024, we recognized restructuring and impairment charges of $12.4 million as a result of proactive changes to better
align our cost structure with the normalization of sales and margins which resulted in a reduction of headcount and retail locations, cancellation of certain
dealer agreements, and the cancellation of certain in-process information and technology ("IT") related projects.

(Loss) Income from Operations
(Loss) income from operations decreased $150.3 million, or 231.8%, to a loss from operations of $85.5 million for the year ended September 30, 2025
compared to income from operations of $64.8 million for the year ended September 30, 2024. The decrease was primarily attributable to the $135.8 million

increase in restructuring and impairment charges, a $10.6 million increase in selling, general and administrative expenses and a $8.0 million decrease in gross
profit, partially offset by a $6.4 million change in the change in fair value of contingent consideration during the same periods.
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Interest Expense — Floor Plan

Interest expense — floor plan decreased $5.6 million, or 16.5%, to $28.5 million for the year ended September 30, 2025 compared to $34.1 million for the
year ended September 30, 2024. The decrease in floor plan interest expense is primarily attributable to a decrease in the average inventory as well as favorable
impact of interest rate swaps for the year ended September 30, 2025 compared to the year ended September 30, 2024.

Interest Expense — Other

Interest expense — other decreased $0.9 million, or 2.3%, to $36.2 million for the year ended September 30, 2025 compared to $37.1 million for the year
ended September 30, 2024. The decrease was primarily attributable to lower interest rates for the year ended September 30, 2025 compared to the year ended
September 30, 2024.
Other Expense, Net

Other expense, net increased to $1.4 million of expense for the year ended September 30, 2025, compared to less than $0.1 million of expense for the year
ended September 30, 2024. The increase is primarily attributable to the change in expenses associated with natural disasters and their respective insurance
proceeds, which primarily had a positive impact on the year ended September 30, 2024.
Income Tax Benefit

Income tax benefit increased by $35.1 million to an income tax benefit of $35.3 million for the year ended September 30, 2025, compared to an income tax
benefit $0.2 million for the year ended September 30, 2024. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase in loss before income tax benefit. The
increase in loss before income tax benefit was primarily related to the impairment of goodwill and identifiable intangible assets for the Dealerships and
Distribution segments.

Net Loss

Net loss increased by $110.1 million to a net loss of $116.2 million for the year ended September 30, 2025, compared to net loss of $6.2 million for the
year ended September 30, 2024. The increase was primarily attributable to the $145.8 million goodwill and intangible asset impairment, partially offset by a
$35.1 million increase in income tax benefit for the year ended September 30, 2025 as compared to the year ended September 30, 2024.
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Results of Operations

Year Ended September 30, 2024, Compared to Year Ended September 30, 2023

For the Year Ended September 30,

2024 2023
% of % of
Description Amount Revenue Amount Revenue $ Change % Change
($ in thousands)

Revenues:
New boat $ 1,118,292 63.1% $ 1,223,691 63.2% $ (105,399) -8.6 %
Pre-owned boat 312,193 17.6 % 334,477 173 % (22,284) -6.7 %
Finance & insurance income 51,494 2.9 % 56,325 2.9 % (4,831) -8.6 %
Service, parts & other 290,651 16.4 % 321,817 16.6 % (31,166) -9.7%
Total revenues 1,772,630 100.0 % 1,936,310 100.0 % (163,680) -8.5%
Gross Profit
New boat 196,886 11.1% 268,469 13.9% (71,583) -26.7 %
Pre-owned boat 64,125 3.6 % 75,953 3.9% (11,828) -15.6 %
Finance & insurance 51,494 2.9% 56,325 2.9 % (4,831) -8.6 %
Service, parts & other 122,558 6.9 % 134,379 6.9 % (11,821) -8.8 %
Total gross profit 435,063 24.5% 535,126 27.6 % (100,063) -18.7%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 332,680 18.8 % 345,524 17.8 % (12,844) -3.7%
Depreciation and amortization 19,401 1.1 % 23,898 1.2 % (4,497) -18.8 %
Transaction costs 1,530 0.1 % 1,839 0.1 % (309) -16.8 %
Change in fair value of contingent
consideration 4,248 0.2 % (1,604) -0.1 % 5,852 -364.8 %
Restructuring and impairment 12,386 0.7 % 147,402 7.6 % (135,016) -91.6 %
Income from operations 64,818 3.7% 18,067 0.9 % 46,751 258.8 %
Interest expense — floor plan 34,087 1.9 % 25,080 1.3% 9,007 359%
Interest expense — other 37,050 2.1% 34,557 1.8 % 2,493 7.2 %
Other expense (income), net 14 — % 953 — % (939) -98.5%
Net loss before income tax benefit (6,333) -0.4 % (42,523) 2.2% 36,190 -85.1 %
Income tax benefit (157) —% (3,412) -0.2 % 3,255 -95.4 %
Net loss (6,176) -0.3 % (39,111) -2.0 % 32,935 -84.2 %
Net income attributable to non-controlling
interests (119) (3,810)
Net loss attributable to non-controlling

interests of One Water Marine Holdings,

LLC 590 4,329
Net loss attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. ~ $ (5,705) $ (38,592)

Revenue

Overall, revenue decreased by $163.7 million, or 8.5%, to $1,772.6 million for the year ended September 30, 2024 from $1,936.3 million for the year
ended September 30, 2023. Revenue generated from Dealership same-store sales decreased 7.4% for the year ended September 30, 2024, as compared to the
year ended September 30, 2023, primarily due to a decrease in the number of new and pre-owned boats sold and a decrease in service, parts & other sales. The
decrease was primarily attributable to softer demand within the broader recreational marine market, the impact of Hurricane Helene and the impact of the 2023

Dispositions.
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New Boat Sales

New boat sales decreased by $105.4 million, or 8.6%, to $1,118.3 million for the year ended September 30, 2024 from $1,223.7 million for the year ended
September 30, 2023. The decrease was the result of the reduction in Dealership same-store sales, driven by a drop in unit sales. We believe the decrease in sales
was primarily due to softer demand within the broader recreational marine market and the impact of Hurricane Helene.

Pre-owned Boat Sales

Pre-owned boat sales decreased by $22.3 million, or 6.7%, to $312.2 million for the year ended September 30, 2024 from $334.5 million for the year
ended September 30, 2023. We sell a wide range of brands and sizes of pre-owned boats under different types of sales arrangements (e.g., trade-ins, brokerage,
consigned and wholesale), which causes periodic and seasonal fluctuations in the average sales price. The decrease in pre-owned boat sales was attributable to
both a decrease in the number of units sold and average selling price which was driven by the continued normalization of consumer demand following the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Finance & Insurance Income

We generate revenue from arranging finance & insurance products, including financing, insurance and extended warranty contracts, to customers through
various third-party financial institutions and insurance companies. Finance & insurance income decreased by $4.8 million, or 8.6%, to $51.5 million for the
year ended September 30, 2024 from $56.3 million for the year ended September 30, 2023. The decrease was primarily due to the reduction in new and pre-
owned boat revenues. We remain very focused on maintaining and improving sales penetration of finance & insurance products throughout our dealer network
and implementing best practices at acquired dealer groups and existing dealerships. Finance & insurance income is recorded net of related fees, including fees
charged back due to any early cancellation of loan or insurance contracts by a customer. Since finance & insurance income is fee-based, we do not incur any
related cost of sale.

Service, Parts & Other Sales

Service, parts & other sales decreased by $31.2 million, or 9.7%, to $290.7 million for the year ended September 30, 2024 from $321.8 million for the year
ended September 30, 2023. This decrease in service, parts & other sales is primarily due to a reduction in parts and accessories sold to OEMs as boat
manufacturers reduced production. Revenue for the Distribution segment is reported in service, parts & other sales and totaled $156.1 million and $181.1
million for the years ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Excluding the impact from the 2023 Dispositions, Dealership segment service, parts &
other sales were positive.

Gross Profit

Overall, gross profit decreased by $100.1 million, or 18.7%, to $435.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2024 from $535.1 million for the year
ended September 30, 2023. This decrease was mainly due to moderated boat pricing as a result of the industry normalization following the COVID-era
environment. Overall gross margins decreased 310 basis points to 24.5% for the year ended September 30, 2024 from 27.6% for the year ended September 30,
2023 due to the factors noted below.

New Boat Gross Profit

New boat gross profit decreased by $71.6 million, or 26.7%, to $196.9 million for the year ended September 30, 2024 from $268.5 million for the year
ended September 30, 2023. This decrease was due to the decrease in both new boat sales and new boat gross profit margin. New boat gross profit as a
percentage of new boat revenue was 17.6% for the year ended September 30, 2024 as compared to 21.9% in the year ended September 30, 2023. The decrease
in new boat gross profit and gross profit margin is due primarily to the continued normalization of new boat pricing and consumer demand following the
COVID-19 pandemic. Additionally, we have made strategic efforts to ensure inventory levels are healthy as we transition to our non-peak season.

Pre-owned Boat Gross Profit

Pre-owned boat gross profit decreased by $11.8 million, or 15.6%, to $64.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2024 from $76.0 million for the year
ended September 30, 2023. This decrease was primarily driven by a decrease in both pre-owned boat sales and pre-owned boat gross profit margin. Pre-owned
boat gross profit as a percentage of pre-owned boat revenue was 20.5% for the year ended September 30, 2024 as compared to 22.7% for the year ended
September 30, 2023. The pre-owned gross profit margin primarily decreased as a result of the normalization of pre-owned boat pricing following the COVID-
19 pandemic and a mix shift in the components of pre-owned sales including a reduction in brokerage sales. We sell a wide range of brands and sizes of pre-
owned boats under different types of sales arrangements (e.g., trade-ins, brokerage, consignment and wholesale), which may cause periodic and seasonal
fluctuations in pre-owned boat gross profit as a percentage of revenue.
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Finance & Insurance Gross Profit

Finance & insurance gross profit decreased by $4.8 million, or 8.6%, to $51.5 million for the year ended September 30, 2024 from $56.3 million for the
year ended September 30, 2023. Finance & insurance income is fee-based revenue for which we do not recognize incremental cost of sales.

Service, Parts & Other Gross Profit

Service, parts & other gross profit decreased by $11.8 million, or 8.8%, to $122.6 million for the year ended September 30, 2024 from $134.4 million for
the year ended September 30, 2023. The decrease in gross profit was primarily the result of the decrease in sales in our Distribution segment and our 2023
Dispositions, specifically Roscioli Yachting Center. Service, parts & other gross profit as a percentage of service, parts & other revenue was 42.2% and 41.8%
for the years ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The increase in gross profit margin was due to a slight shift in the mix of revenue towards
service labor which has a higher gross profit percentage.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased by $12.8 million, or 3.7%, to $332.7 million for the year ended September 30, 2024 from $345.5
million for the year ended September 30, 2023. This decrease was primarily due to our variable cost structure, which resulted in a decrease in commissions as a
result of declining gross margins, and cost savings from the 2024 restructuring activities. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of
revenue increased to 18.8% from 17.8% for the years ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The increase in selling, general and administrative
expenses as a percentage of revenue was primarily due to the reduction of revenues, which resulted in a lower cost leverage for the year ended September 30,
2024.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased $4.5 million, or 18.8%, to $19.4 million for the year ended September 30, 2024 compared to $23.9
million for the year ended September 30, 2023. The decrease in depreciation and amortization expense is primarily due to a reduction in intangible assets due to
the prior year impairment charge as well as a reduction in property and equipment related to the 2023 Dispositions. These decreases were partially offset by the
increase in property and equipment during the year ended September 30, 2024 to support operations.
Transaction Costs

The decrease in transaction costs of $0.3 million, or 16.8%, to $1.5 million for the year ended September 30, 2024 compared to $1.8 million for the year
ended September 30, 2023 was primarily attributable to the reduction in acquisition activity during the year ended September 30, 2024 compared to the year
ended September 30, 2023.

Change in Fair Value of Contingent Consideration

During the year ended September 30, 2024, we recognized a loss of $4.2 million related to updated forecasts and accretion of contingent consideration
liabilities related to previous acquisitions.

Restructuring and impairment

During the year ended September 30, 2024, we recognized restructuring and impairment charges of $12.4 million as a result of proactive changes to better
align our cost structure with the normalization of sales and margins which resulted in a reduction of headcount and retail locations, cancellation of certain
dealer agreements, and the cancellation of certain in-process information and technology ("IT") related projects.

During the year ended September 30, 2023, we recognized a loss on impairment of $147.4 as a result of the quantitative assessment of the fair values
compared to the carrying values of goodwill and identifiable intangible assets for the Dealerships and Distribution segments. The impairment was largely
driven by a decline in the Distribution segment's results as well as a decrease in the Company's market capitalization.

Income from Operations
Income from operations increased $46.8 million, or 258.8%, to $64.8 million for the year ended September 30, 2024 compared to $18.1 million for the

year ended September 30, 2023. The increase was primarily attributable to the $135.0 million decrease in restructuring and impairment charges and a $12.8
million decrease in selling, general and administrative expenses, partially offset by a $100.1 million decrease in gross profit during the same periods.
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Interest Expense — Floor Plan

Interest expense — floor plan increased $9.0 million, or 35.9%, to $34.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2024 compared to $25.1 million for the
year ended September 30, 2023. The increase in floor plan interest expense is primarily attributable to an increase in interest rates and the average inventory for
the year ended September 30, 2024 compared to the year ended September 30, 2023.

Interest Expense — Other

Interest expense — other increased $2.5 million, or 7.2%, to $37.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2024 compared to $34.6 million for the year
ended September 30, 2023. The increase was primarily attributable to an increase in interest rates.

Other Expense (Income), Net

Other expense (income), net decreased by $0.9 million to less than $0.1 million of expense for the year ended September 30, 2024, compared to $1.0
million of expense for the year ended September 30, 2023. The decrease is primarily attributable to the change in expenses associated with natural disasters and
their respective insurance proceeds.
Income Tax (Benefit) Expense

Income tax benefit decreased by $3.3 million, or 95.4%, to an income tax benefit of $0.2 million for the year ended September 30, 2024, compared to an
income tax benefit $3.4 million for the year ended September 30, 2023. The decrease was primarily attributable to the 85.1% decrease in loss before income tax
benefit. The change in loss before income tax benefit was primarily related to the decrease in restructuring and impairment charges.
Net Loss

Net loss decreased by $32.9 million to a net loss of $6.2 million for the year ended September 30, 2024, compared to net loss of $39.1 million for the year

ended September 30, 2023. The decrease was primarily attributable to the decrease in restructuring and impairment charges and selling, general and
administrative expenses, partially offset by the decrease in gross profit and increase in interest expense — floor plan during the same periods.
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Comparison of Non-GAAP Financial Measures
Adjusted EBITDA

We view Adjusted EBITDA as an important indicator of performance. We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income (loss) before interest expense — other,
income tax (benefit) expense, depreciation and amortization and other (income) expense, further adjusted to eliminate the effects of items such as the change in
fair value of contingent consideration, restructuring and impairment, stock-based compensation and transaction costs.

Our Board, management team and lenders use Adjusted EBITDA to assess our financial performance because it allows them to compare our operating
performance on a consistent basis across periods by removing the effects of our capital structure (such as varying levels of interest expense), asset base (such as
depreciation and amortization) and other items (such as the change in fair value of contingent consideration, income tax (benefit) expense, restructuring and
impairment, stock-based compensation and transaction costs) that impact the comparability of financial results from period to period. We present Adjusted
EBITDA because we believe it provides useful information regarding the factors and trends affecting our business in addition to measures calculated under
GAAP. Adjusted EBITDA is not a financial measure presented in accordance with GAAP. We believe that the presentation of this non-GAAP financial measure
will provide useful information to investors and analysts in assessing our financial performance and results of operations across reporting periods by excluding
items we do not believe are indicative of our core operating performance. Net income (loss) is the GAAP measure most directly comparable to Adjusted
EBITDA. Our non-GAAP financial measure should not be considered as an alternative to the most directly comparable GAAP financial measure. You are
encouraged to evaluate each of these adjustments and the reasons we consider them appropriate for supplemental analysis. In evaluating Adjusted EBITDA,
you should be aware that in the future we may incur expenses that are the same as or similar to some of the adjustments in such presentation. Our presentation
of Adjusted EBITDA should not be construed as an inference that our future results will be unaffected by unusual or non-recurring items. There can be no
assurance that we will not modify the presentation of Adjusted EBITDA in the future, and any such modification may be material. Adjusted EBITDA has
important limitations as an analytical tool and you should not consider Adjusted EBITDA in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of our results as reported
under GAAP. Because Adjusted EBITDA may be defined differently by other companies in our industry, our definition of this non-GAAP financial measure
may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies, thereby diminishing its utility.

The following tables present a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to our net income (loss), which is the most directly comparable GAAP measure for the
periods presented.

Year Ended September 30, 2025, Compared to Year Ended September 30, 2024.

Years Ended September 30,

Description 2025 2024 Change
($ in thousands)

Net loss $ (116,230) $ (6,176) $ (110,054)
Interest expense — other 36,183 37,050 (867)
Income tax benefit (35,301) (157) (35,144)
Depreciation and amortization 24,440 22,187 2,253
Stock-based compensation 10,499 8,443 2,056
Change in fair value of contingent consideration (2,133) 4,248 (6,381)
Transaction costs 1,547 1,530 17
Restructuring and impairment 149,678 15,318 134,360
Other expense, net 1,429 14 1,415
Adjusted EBITDA $ 70,112 $ 82,457 $ (12,345)

Adjusted EBITDA was $70.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2025 compared to $82.5 million for the year ended September 30, 2024. The
decrease in Adjusted EBITDA resulted from the decrease in gross profit and the increase in selling, general, and administrative expenses, partially offset by the
decrease in interest expense - floor plan for the year ended September 30, 2025 as compared to the year ended September 30, 2024.
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Year Ended September 30, 2024, Compared to Year Ended September 30, 2023.

Years Ended September 30,

Description 2024 2023 Change
($ in thousands)

Net loss $ 6,176) $ 39,111) $ 32,935

Interest expense — other 37,050 34,557 2,493

Income tax benefit (157) (3,412) 3,255

Depreciation and amortization 22,187 26,788 (4,601)
Stock-based compensation 8,443 8,961 (518)
Change in fair value of contingent consideration 4,248 (1,604) 5,852

Transaction costs 1,530 1,839 (309)
Restructuring and impairment 15,318 147,402 (132,084)
Other expense, net 14 953 (939)
Adjusted EBITDA $ 82,457 $ 176,373  $ (93,916)

Adjusted EBITDA was $82.5 million for the year ended September 30, 2024 compared to $176.4 million for the year ended September 30, 2023. The
decrease in Adjusted EBITDA resulted from the decrease in gross profit and the increase in interest expense - floor plan, partially offset by the decrease in
selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended September 30, 2024 as compared to the year ended September 30, 2023.

Adjusted Net Income (Loss) Attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. and Adjusted Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share

We view Adjusted Net Income (Loss) Attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. and Adjusted Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share as important indicators of
performance. We define Adjusted Net Income (Loss) Attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. as net income (loss) attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. before
transaction costs, intangible amortization, change in fair value of contingent consideration, restructuring and impairment and other expense (income), all of
which are then adjusted for an allocation to the non-controlling interest of OneWater LLC for periods prior to the Final Redemption. Each of these adjustments
are subsequently adjusted for income tax at an estimated effective tax rate. Management also reports Adjusted Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share which
presents all of the adjustments to net income (loss) attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. noted above on a per share basis.

Our Board, management team and lenders use Adjusted Net Income (Loss) Attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. and Adjusted Diluted Earnings
(Loss) Per Share to assess our financial performance because it allows them to compare our operating performance on a consistent basis across periods by
removing the effects of unusual or one time charges and other items (such as the change in fair value of contingent consideration, intangible amortization,
restructuring and impairment and transaction costs) that impact the comparability of financial results from period to period. We present Adjusted Net Income
(Loss) Attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. and Adjusted Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share because we believe they provide useful information regarding the
factors and trends affecting our business in addition to measures calculated under GAAP. Adjusted Net Income (Loss) Attributable to OneWater Marine Inc.
and Adjusted Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share are not financial measures presented in accordance with GAAP. We believe that the presentation of these non-
GAAP financial measures will provide useful information to investors and analysts in assessing our financial performance and results of operations across
reporting periods by excluding items we do not believe are indicative of our core operating performance. Net income (loss) attributable to OneWater Marine
Inc. is the GAAP measure most directly comparable to Adjusted Net Income (Loss) Attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. and net earnings (loss) per share of
Class A common stock - diluted is the GAAP measure most directly comparable to Adjusted Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share. Our non-GAAP financial
measures should not be considered as an alternative to the most directly comparable GAAP financial measure. You are encouraged to evaluate each of these
adjustments and the reasons we consider them appropriate for supplemental analysis. In evaluating Adjusted Net Income (Loss) Attributable to OneWater
Marine Inc. and Adjusted Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share, you should be aware that in the future we may incur expenses that are the same as or similar to
some of the adjustments in such presentation. Our presentation of Adjusted Net Income (Loss) Attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. and Adjusted Diluted
Earnings (Loss) Per Share should not be construed as an inference that our future results will be unaffected by unusual or non-recurring items. There can be no
assurance that we will not modify the presentation of Adjusted Net Income (Loss) Attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. and Adjusted Diluted Earnings (Loss)
Per Share in the future, and any such modification may be material. Adjusted Net Income (Loss) Attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. and Adjusted Diluted
Earnings (Loss) Per Share have important limitations as analytical tools and you should not consider Adjusted Net Income (Loss) Attributable to OneWater
Marine Inc. or Adjusted Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of our results as reported under GAAP. Because Adjusted
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. and Adjusted Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share may be defined differently by other companies in our
industry, our definition of these non-GAAP financial measures may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies, thereby diminishing
their utility.
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The following tables present a reconciliation of Adjusted Net Income (Loss) Attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. to our net income (loss) attributable to
OneWater Marine Inc. and Adjusted Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share to our net earnings (loss) per share of Class A common stock - diluted, which are the

most directly comparable GAAP measures for the periods presented.

Year Ended September 30, 2025, Compared to Year Ended September 30, 2024.

Description

Years Ended September 30,

Net loss attributable to OneWater Marine Inc.

Transaction costs

Intangible amortization

Change in fair value of contingent consideration

Restructuring and impairment

Other expense, net

Net loss attributable to non-controlling interests of One Water Marine Holdings, LLC (1)

Adjustments to income tax benefit (2)

Adjusted net income attributable to OneWater Marine Inc.

Net loss per share of Class A common stock - diluted

Transaction costs

Intangible amortization

Change in fair value of contingent consideration

Restructuring and impairment

Other expense, net

Net loss attributable to non-controlling interests of One Water Marine Holdings, LLC (1)
Adjustments to income tax benefit (2)

Adjustment for dilutive shares (3)

Adjusted earnings per share of Class A common stock - diluted

2025 2024 Change
($ in thousands, except per share data)

(114,582) $ (5,705) $ (108,877)
1,547 1,530 17
8,067 7,842 225

(2,133) 4,248 (6,381)
149,678 15,318 134,360
1,429 14 1,415
(568) (2,606) 2,038
(36,345) (6,060) (30,285)
7,093 14,581 (7,488)
(7.22) $ (0.39) $ (6.83)
0.10 0.10 —
0.51 0.54 (0.03)
(0.13) 0.29 (0.42)
9.43 1.05 8.38
0.09 — 0.09
(0.04) (0.18) 0.14
(2.29) (0.42) (1.87)
(0.01) (0.01) —
044 $ 098 § (0.54)

(1) Represents an allocation of the impact of reconciling items to our non-controlling interest prior to the Final Redemption.

(2) Represents an adjustment of all reconciling items at an effective tax rate.

(3) Represents an adjustment for shares that are anti-dilutive for GAAP earnings per share but are dilutive for adjusted earnings per share.

Adjusted Net Income Attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. and Adjusted Diluted Earnings Per Share were $7.1 million and $0.44, respectively, for the
year ended September 30, 2025, compared to Adjusted Net Income Attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. and Adjusted Diluted Earnings Per Share of $14.6
million and $0.98, respectively, for the year ended September 30, 2024. The decrease in Adjusted Net Income Attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. resulted
from the decrease in gross profit, the increase in selling, general, and administrative expenses, and the increase in depreciation, partially offset by the decrease
in interest expense - floor plan for the year ended September 30, 2025 as compared to the year ended September 30, 2024. The decrease in Adjusted Diluted
Earnings Per Share resulted from the decrease in Adjusted Net Income Attributable to OneWater Marine Inc.

60



Table of Contents

Year Ended September 30, 2024, Compared to Year Ended September 30, 2023.

Description

Years Ended September 30,

Net loss attributable to OneWater Marine Inc.
Transaction costs

Intangible amortization

Change in fair value of contingent consideration
Restructuring and impairment

Other expense (income), net

Net income attributable to non-controlling interests of One Water Marine Holdings, LLC
)
Adjustments to income tax expense (2)

Adjusted net income attributable to OneWater Marine Inc.

Net loss per share of Class A common stock - diluted

Transaction costs

Intangible amortization

Change in fair value of contingent consideration

Restructuring and impairment

Other expense (income), net

Net income attributable to non-controlling interests of One Water Marine Holdings, LLC
)

Adjustments to income tax expense (2)

Adjustment for dilutive shares (3)

Adjusted earnings per share of Class A common stock - diluted

2024 2023 Change
($ in thousands, except per share data)

(5,705) $ (38,592) $ 32,887
1,530 1,839 (309)
7,842 13,436 (5,594)
4,248 (1,604) 5,852

15,318 147,402 (132,084)

14 953 (939)

(2,606) (14,744) 12,138

(6,060) (33,875) 27,815

14,581 74,815 (60,234)
0.39) $ (2.69) $ 2.30

0.10 0.13 (0.03)
0.54 0.94 (0.40)
0.29 (0.11) 0.40
1.05 10.29 (9.24)
— 0.07 (0.07)
(0.18) (1.03) 0.85
(0.42) (2.36) 1.94
(0.01) (0.14) 0.13
098 § 510 $ 4.12)

(1) Represents an allocation of the impact of reconciling items to our non-controlling interest prior to the Final Redemption.

(2) Represents an adjustment of all reconciling items at an effective tax rate.

(3) Represents an adjustment for shares that are anti-dilutive for GAAP earnings per share but are dilutive for adjusted earnings per share.

Adjusted Net Income Attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. and Adjusted Diluted Earnings Per Share were $14.6 million and $0.98, respectively, for the
year ended September 30, 2024 compared to $74.8 million and $5.10, respectively, for the year ended September 30, 2023. The decrease in Adjusted Net
Income Attributable to OneWater Marine Inc. resulted from the decrease in gross profit and the increases in interest expense - floor plan, partially offset by the
decrease in selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended September 30, 2024, each as compared to the year ended September 30, 2023. The
decrease in Adjusted Diluted Earnings Per Share resulted from the decrease in Adjusted Net Income Attributable to OneWater Marine Inc.
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Seasonality

Our business, along with the entire boating industry, is highly seasonal, and such seasonality varies by geographic market. With the exception of Florida,
we generally realize lower sales and higher levels of inventories, and related floor plan borrowings, in the quarterly periods ending December 31 and March 31.
Revenue generated from our dealerships in Florida serves to offset generally lower winter revenue in our other states and enables us to maintain a more
consistent revenue stream. The onset of the public boat and recreation shows in January stimulates boat sales and typically allows us to reduce our inventory
levels and related floor plan borrowings throughout the remainder of the fiscal year. The impact of seasonality on our results of operations could be materially
impacted based on the location of our acquisitions. For example, our operations could be substantially more seasonal if we acquire dealer groups that operate in
colder regions of the United States. Our business is also subject to weather patterns, which may adversely affect our results of operations. For example,
prolonged winter conditions, reduced rainfall levels or excessive rain, may limit access to boating locations or render boating dangerous or inconvenient,
thereby curtailing customer demand for our products and services. In addition, unseasonably cool weather and prolonged winter conditions may lead to a
shorter selling season in certain locations. Hurricanes, tornadoes, and other storms have and could result in disruptions of our operations or damage to our boat
inventories and facilities, as has been the case when Florida, Texas, and other markets were affected by hurricanes. We believe our geographic diversity is
likely to reduce the overall impact to us of adverse weather conditions in any one market area. For more information, see “Risk Factors—Risks Related to
Industry and Competition—Our business, as well as the entire retail marine industry, is highly seasonal, with seasonality varying in different geographic
markets” and “Business—Seasonality.”

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

OneWater Inc. is a holding company with no operations and is the sole managing member of OneWater LLC. OneWater Inc.’s principal asset consists of
common units of OneWater LLC. Our earnings and cash flows and ability to meet our obligations under the A&R Credit Facility, and any other debt
obligations will depend on the cash flows resulting from the operations of our operating subsidiaries, and the payment of distributions by such subsidiaries. Our
A&R Credit Facility and Inventory Financing Facility (described below) contain certain restrictions on distributions or transfers from our operating subsidiaries
to their members or unitholders, as applicable, as described in the summaries below under “—Debt Agreements—A&R Credit Facility” and “—Inventory
Financing Facility.” Accordingly, the operating results of our subsidiaries may not be sufficient for them to make distributions to us. As a result, our ability to
make payments under the A&R Credit Facility and any other debt obligations or to declare dividends could be limited.

Our cash needs are primarily for debt service, growth through acquisitions and working capital to support our operations, including new and pre-owned
boat and related parts inventories and off-season liquidity. We routinely monitor our cash flow to determine the amount of cash available to complete
acquisitions. We monitor our inventories, inventory aging and current market trends to determine our current and future inventory and related floorplan
financing needs. Based on current facts and circumstances, including our current maturities of long-term debt as reflected in the balance sheet, we plan to
dispose of certain operations of the Distribution reporting segment (as discussed in Note 22) or explore alternative sources of cash proceeds in order to make
payments required under our A&R Credit Facility by March 31, 2026. We believe we will otherwise have adequate cash flow from operations, borrowings
under our Credit Facilities, and proceeds from any future public or private issuances of debt or equity to fund our current operations, make other required debt
repayments and to fund essential capital expenditures and acquisitions for the next twelve months and beyond.

Cash needs for acquisitions have historically been financed with our Credit Facilities and cash generated from operations. Our ability to utilize the A&R
Credit Facility to fund acquisitions depends upon Adjusted EBITDA and compliance with covenants of the A&R Credit Facility. Cash needs for inventory have
historically been financed with our Inventory Financing Facility. Our ability to fund inventory purchases and operations depends on the collateral levels and
our compliance with the covenants of the Inventory Financing Facility. For the reporting period ended September 30, 2025, we were in compliance with all
covenants under the A&R Credit Facility and the Inventory Financing Facility.
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Cash Flows
Analysis of Cash Flow Changes Between the Year Ended September 30, 2025 and 2024

The following table summarizes our cash flows for the periods indicated:

Year Ended September 30,

($ in thousands) 2025 2024 Change

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 91,753 $ 34,839 $ 56,914
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (11,604) 13,318 (24,922)
Net cash (used in) financing activities (42,614) (114,112) 71,498
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and restricted cash (52) (18) (34)
Net change in cash $ 37,483 $ (65,973) $ 103,456

Operating Activities. Net cash provided by operating activities was $91.8 million for the year ended September 30, 2025 compared to net cash provided by
operating activities of $34.8 million for the year ended September 30, 2024. The $56.9 million increase in cash provided by operating activities was primarily
attributable to a $23.3 million increase in the change in inventory, a $16.7 million increase in the change in accounts receivable, a $50.1 million increase in the
change in prepaid expenses and other current assets, and a $145.3 million increase in the loss on restructuring and impairment, partially offset by a $110.1
million increase in net loss, a $35.5 million increase in the deferred income tax provision, and a $50.9 million decrease in the change in customer deposits for
the year ended September 30, 2025 as compared to the year ended September 30, 2024.

Investing Activities. Net cash used in investing activities was $11.6 million for the year ended September 30, 2025 compared to net cash provided by
investing activities of $13.3 million for the year ended September 30, 2024. The $24.9 million increase in cash used in investing activities was primarily
attributable to a $45.1 million decrease in proceeds from disposal of a business, partially offset by a $6.4 million decrease in cash used in acquisitions in
addition to $13.9 million a decrease in purchases of property and equipment and construction in progress for the year ended September 30, 2025 as compared
to the year ended September 30, 2024.

Financing Activities. Net cash used in financing activities was $42.6 million for the year ended September 30, 2025 compared to net cash used in financing
activities of $114.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2024. The $71.5 million decrease in cash used in financing activities was primarily attributable to
a $21.9 million increase in net borrowings from our Inventory Financing Facility, a $36.2 million decrease in payments on long-term debt, and an $18.8 million
payment to purchase the non-controlling interest of Quality Assets & Operations, LLC during the fiscal year September 30, 2024, partially offset by a $15.9
million decrease in proceeds of long term debt for the year ended September 30, 2025 as compared to the year ended September 30, 2024.

Analysis of Cash Flow Changes Between the Year Ended September 30, 2024 and 2023

The following table summarizes our cash flows for the periods indicated:

Year Ended September 30,

($ in thousands) 2024 2023 Change

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 34,839 $ (129,760) $ 164,599
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 13,318 (51,601) 64,919
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (114,112) 213,715 (327,827)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and restricted cash (18) 9 8 27
Net change in cash $ (65,973) $ 32,363 $ (98,336)

Operating Activities. Net cash provided by operating activities was $34.8 million for the year ended September 30, 2024 compared to net cash used in
operating activities of $129.8 million for the year ended September 30, 2023. The $164.6 million increase in cash provided by operating activities was
primarily attributable to a $256.9 million decrease in the change in inventory, a $32.9 million decrease in net loss in addition to a $26.9 million decrease in the
change in customer deposits, partially offset by a $146.9 million decrease in restructuring and impairment for the year ended September 30, 2024 as compared
to the year ended September 30, 2023.

Investing Activities. Net cash provided by investing activities was $13.3 million for the year ended September 30, 2024 compared to net cash used in
investing activities of $51.6 million for the year ended September 30, 2023. The $64.9 million increase in cash provided by investing activities was primarily
attributable to a $44.3 million increase in proceeds from disposal of a business and a $23.2 million decrease in cash used in acquisitions for the year ended
September 30, 2024 as compared to the year ended September 30, 2023.
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Financing Activities. Net cash used in financing activities was $114.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2024 compared to net cash provided by
financing activities of $213.7 million for the year ended September 30, 2023. The $327.8 million increase in cash used in financing activities was primarily
attributable to a $265.3 million decrease in net borrowing from our Inventory Financing Facility and a $60.0 million increase in payments on long-term debt,
partially offset by a $13.4 million increase in proceeds of long term debt for the year ended September 30, 2024 as compared to the year ended September 30,
2023.

Share Repurchase Program

On March 30, 2022, the Board authorized a share repurchase program of up to $50 million of outstanding shares of Class A common stock. Repurchases
under the share repurchase program may be made at any time or from time to time, without prior notice, in the open market or in privately negotiated
transactions at prevailing market prices, or such other means as will comply with applicable state and federal securities laws and regulations, including the
provisions of the Exchange Act, including Rule 10b5-1 and, to the extent practicable or advisable, Rule 10b-18 thereunder, and consistent with the Company’s
contractual limitations and other requirements. The Company made no repurchases during the year ended September 30, 2025. As of September 30, 2025, the
Company has repurchased and retired 73,487 shares of Class A common stock under the repurchase program for a purchase price of approximately $1.9
million. The Company has $48.1 million remaining under the share repurchase program.

Any such share repurchases may be subject to a U.S. federal excise tax. Subject to certain exceptions and adjustments, the amount of the excise tax is
generally 1% of the aggregate fair market value of the shares of stock repurchased by the corporation during a taxable year, net of the aggregate fair market
value of certain new stock issuances by the repurchasing corporation during the same taxable year. In the past, there have been proposals to increase the
amount of the excise tax from 1% to 4%; however, it is unclear whether such a change in the amount of the excise tax will be enacted and, if enacted, how soon
any change would take effect.

Debt Agreements
A&R Credit Facility

On August 9, 2022, we entered into the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified, the “A&R
Credit Facility”), with certain of our subsidiaries, Truist Bank and the other lenders party thereto. The A&R Credit Facility provides for, among other things, (i)
a $65.0 million revolving credit facility (including up to $5.0 million in swingline loans and up to $5.0 million in letters of credit from time to time) and (ii) a
$445.0 million term loan facility. Subject to certain conditions, the available amount under the Term Facility and the Revolving Facility may be increased by
$125.0 million plus additional amounts subject to additional conditions (including satisfaction of a consolidated leverage ratio requirement) in the aggregate
(with up to $50.0 million allocable to the Revolving Facility). As of September 30, 2025, the Revolving Facility was scheduled to mature on July 31, 2026. The
Term Facility was repayable in installments beginning on December 31, 2022, with the remainder due on the earlier of (i) July 31, 2026 or (ii) the date on
which the principal amount of all outstanding term loans have been declared or automatically have become due and payable pursuant to the terms of the A&R
Credit Facility.

On November 17, 2025 we entered into Amendment No. 7 to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and Amendment to Pledge and Security Agreement
("Amendment No. 7) to, among other things, (i) modify certain definitions, covenants, terms and conditions, (ii) adjust the minimum fixed charge coverage
ratio, (iii) adjust the maximum leverage ratio measures, (iv) adjust the minimum liquidity measure, and (v) modify the maturity date to be July 31, 2027, and in
connection therewith, the repayment schedule, including certain adjustments to applicable interest rates.

Borrowings under the A&R Credit Facility bear interest, at our option, at either (a) a base rate (the “Base Rate”) equal to the highest of (i) the prime rate
(as announced by Truist Bank from time to time), (ii) the Federal Funds Rate, as in effect from time to time, plus 0.50%, (iii) Term SOFR (as defined in the
A&R Credit Facility) for a one-month Interest Period (calculated on a daily basis after taking into account a floor equal to 0.00%) plus 1.00%, and (iv) 1.00%,
in each case, plus an applicable margin ranging from 0.75% to 2.50%, or (b) Term SOFR, plus an applicable margin ranging from 1.75% to 3.50%. Interest on
swingline loans shall bear interest at the Base Rate plus the applicable margin for Base Rate loans. All applicable interest margins are based on certain
consolidated leverage ratio measures.

The A&R Credit Facility is subject to certain financial covenants including the maintenance of a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio, a maximum
consolidated leverage ratio and a minimum liquidity measure. The A&R Credit Facility also contains non-financial covenants and restrictive provisions that,
among other things, limit the ability of the Loan Parties (as defined in the A&R Credit Facility) to incur additional debt, transfer or dispose of all of their
respective assets, make certain investments, loans or restricted payments and engage in certain transactions with affiliates. The A&R Credit Facility also
includes events of default, borrowing conditions, representations and warranties and provisions regarding indemnification and expense reimbursement. The
Company was in compliance with all covenants for the reporting period ended September 30, 2025.

Inventory Financing Facility

On November 14, 2023, we entered into the Eighth Amended and Restated Inventory Financing Agreement (as amended, restated, supplemented or
otherwise modified, the “Inventory Financing Facility”’) with certain of our subsidiaries, Wells Fargo Commercial
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Distribution Finance, LLC ("Wells Fargo") and the other lender parties thereto. Loans under the Inventory Financing Facility may be extended from time to
time to enable the Company to purchase inventory from certain manufacturers. As of September 30, 2025, the Inventory Financing Facility was scheduled to
expire on March 1, 2026 and the maximum borrowing capacity was $595.0 million.

On November 17, 2025, the Company entered into the Third Amendment to Eighth Amended and Restated Inventory Financing Agreement, Omnibus
Amendment to Collateralized Guarantees, and First Amendment to Consent Agreement to, among other things, (i) modify certain definitions, terms and
conditions, (ii) adjust the maximum funded debt to EBITDA ratio, (iii) adjust the minimum fixed charge coverage ratio, (iv) adjust the minimum liquidity
measure, (V) permit certain consignment agreements entered into in the normal course of business, (vi) modify the termination date of the Third Agreement to
be March 1, 2027, and (vii) adjust the maximum borrowing capacity to $497.1 million and permit an additional $38.7 million in availability for overtrade

capacity.

Under the Inventory Financing Facility, interest on new boats and for rental units is calculated using the Adjusted 30-Day Average SOFR plus an
applicable margin of 2.75% to 5.00% depending on the age of the inventory. Interest on pre-owned boats is calculated at the new boat rate plus 0.25%. Loans
are extended from time to time to enable us to purchase inventory from certain manufacturers and to lease certain boats and related parts to customers. The
applicable financial terms, curtailment schedule and maturity for each loan are set forth in separate program terms letters that are entered into from time to
time. The collateral for the Inventory Financing Facility consists primarily of our inventory that was financed through the Inventory Financing Facility and
related assets, including accounts receivable, bank accounts, and proceeds of the foregoing, and excludes the collateral that secures the A&R Credit Facility.

We are required to comply with certain financial and non-financial covenants under the Inventory Financing Facility, including certain provisions related
to the Funded Debt to EBITDA Ratio, the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio and the Liquidity measure (as defined in the Inventory Financing Facility). We are also
subject to additional restrictive covenants, including restrictions on our ability to (i) use, sell, rent or otherwise dispose of any collateral securing the Inventory
Financing Facility except for the sale of inventory in the ordinary course of business, (ii) incur certain liens, (iii) engage in any material transaction not in the
ordinary course of business, (iv) change our business in any material manner or our organizational structure, other than as otherwise provided for in the
Inventory Financing Facility, (v) engage in certain mergers or consolidations, (vi) acquire certain assets or ownership interests of any other person or entities,
except for certain permitted acquisitions, (vii) guarantee or indemnify or otherwise become in any way liable with respect to certain obligations of any other
person or entity, except as provided by the Inventory Financing Facility, (viii) redeem, retire, purchase or otherwise acquire, directly or indirectly, any of the
equity of our acquired marine retailers (ix) make any change in any of our marine retailers’ capital structure or in any of their business objectives or operations
which might in any way adversely affect the ability of such marine retailer to repay its obligations under the Inventory Financing Facility, (x) incur, create,
assume, guarantee or otherwise become or remain liable with respect to certain indebtedness, and (xi) make certain payments of subordinated debt. OneWater
LLC and certain of its subsidiaries are restricted from, among other things, making cash dividends or distributions without the prior written consent of Wells
Fargo. Under the Inventory Financing Facility, among other exceptions, OneWater LLC may make distributions to its members for certain permitted tax
payments subject to certain financial ratios, may make scheduled payments on certain subordinated debt, may make distributions to the Company for
repurchases of the Company's common stock subject to certain financial ratios, and is permitted to make distributions to OneWater Inc. in an amount sufficient
to allow OneWater Inc. to pay its taxes and to make payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement. OneWater LLC’s subsidiaries are generally restricted from
making loans or advances to OneWater LLC. Our Executive Chairman, Philip Austin Singleton, Jr., and our Chief Executive Officer, Anthony Aisquith,
provide certain personal guarantees of the Inventory Financing Facility.

As of September 30, 2025 and September 30, 2024, our indebtedness associated with financing our inventory under the Inventory Financing Facility
totaled $419.7 million and $443.4 million, respectively. Certain of our manufacturers enter into independent agreements with the lenders to the Inventory
Financing Facility, which results in a lower effective interest rate charged to us for borrowings related to the products by such manufacturer. As of
September 30, 2025 and September 30, 2024, the effective interest rate on the outstanding short-term borrowings under the Inventory Financing Facility was
6.2% and 6.6%, respectively. As of September 30, 2025 and September 30, 2024, our additional available borrowings under our Inventory Financing Facility
were $175.3 million and $206.6 million, respectively, based upon the outstanding borrowings and the maximum facility amount. The aging of our inventory
limits our borrowing capacity as defined curtailments reduce the allowable advance rate as our inventory ages. For the reporting period ended September 30,
2025, we were in compliance with all covenants under the Inventory Financing Facility.

Notes Payable

Acquisition Notes Payable. In connection with certain of our acquisitions of dealer groups, we have from time to time entered into notes payable
agreements with the acquired entities to finance these acquisitions. As of September 30, 2025, we have no indebtedness associated with acquisition notes
payable.

Commercial Vehicles Notes Payable. Since 2015, we have entered into multiple notes payable with various commercial lenders in connection with our
acquisition of certain vehicles utilized in our retail operations. Such notes bear interest ranging from 0.0% to 10.8% per annum, require monthly payments of
approximately $92,000, and mature on dates between October 2025 to May 2032. As of September 30, 2025, we had $1.5 million outstanding under the
commercial vehicles notes payable.
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Contractual Obligations

The table below provides estimates of the timing of future payments that we are contractually obligated to make based on agreements in place at
September 30, 2025, except as otherwise subsequently amended as noted.

Payments Due by Period (1)

Less than 1 More than 5
year 1 -3 years 3 —5Syears years Total
(in thousands)
A&R Credit Facility(1) $ 80,838 $ 333,516 $ — 3 — 3 414,354
Inventory Financing Facility(2) 419,682 — — — 419,682
Notes Payable(3) 868 615 60 6 1,549
Estimated interest payments(4) 27,314 19,689 2 — 47,005
Operating lease obligations(5) 23,233 44,488 37,209 65,440 170,370
Total $ 551,935 ' $ 398,308 $ 37,271 $ 65,446 $ 1,052,960

(1) Payments are generally made as required pursuant to the A&R Credit Facility discussed above under “—Debt Agreements—A&R Credit Facility.”
Payments are reflect of a change to the repayment schedule from Amendment No.7, entered into on November 17, 2025.

(2) Payments are generally made as required pursuant to the Inventory Financing Facility discussed above under “—Debt Agreements—Inventory Financing
Facility.” Amounts do not include estimated interest payments.

(3) Includes notes payable entered into in connection with certain of our acquisitions of dealer groups and notes payable entered into with various commercial
lenders in connection with our acquisition of certain vehicles. Payments are generally made as required pursuant to the terms of the relevant notes payable
and as discussed above under “—Debt Agreements—Notes Payable.”

(4) Estimated interest payments based on the outstanding principal and stated interest rates on the A&R Credit Facility and Notes Payable.
(5) Includes certain physical facilities and equipment that we lease under noncancelable operating leases.
Tax Receivable Agreement

The Tax Receivable Agreement generally provides for the payment by OneWater Inc. to each TRA Holder of 85% of the net cash savings, if any, in U.S.
federal, state and local income tax and franchise tax (computed using the estimated impact of state and local taxes) that OneWater Inc. actually realizes (or is
deemed to realize in certain circumstances) in periods after the IPO as a result of certain tax basis increases and certain tax benefits attributable to imputed
interest. OneWater Inc. will retain the benefit of the remaining net cash savings.

As of September 30, 2025 and 2024, our liability under the Tax Receivable Agreement was $37.5 million and $40.6 million, respectively. To the extent
OneWater LLC has available cash and subject to the terms of any current or future debt or other agreements, OneWater LLC will make cash distributions to
OneWater Inc. in an amount sufficient to allow it to pay its taxes and to make payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement. We generally expect OneWater
LLC to fund such distributions out of available cash. However, except in cases where OneWater Inc. elects to terminate the Tax Receivable Agreement early,
the Tax Receivable Agreement is terminated early due to certain mergers or other changes of control or OneWater Inc. has available cash but fails to make
payments when due, generally OneWater Inc. may elect to defer payments due under the Tax Receivable Agreement if it does not have available cash to satisfy
its payment obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement or if its contractual obligations limit its ability to make these payments. Any such deferred
payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement generally will accrue interest. In certain cases, payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement may be
accelerated and/or significantly exceed the actual benefits, if any, OneWater Inc. realizes in respect of the tax attributes subject to the Tax Receivable
Agreement. In the case of such an acceleration, where applicable, we generally expect the accelerated payments due under the Tax Receivable Agreement to be
funded out of the proceeds of the change of control transaction giving rise to such acceleration. OneWater Inc. intends to account for any amounts payable
under the Tax Receivable Agreement in accordance with ASC Topic 450, Contingencies.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have no material off balance sheet arrangements.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 3 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
Interest Rate Risk

Our Inventory Financing Facility exposes us to risks caused by fluctuations in interest rates. The interest rate on our Inventory Financing Facility for major
unit inventory is calculated using SOFR plus an applicable margin. Based on the portion of the outstanding balance under the Inventory Financing Facility that
is not covered by interest rate swaps of $219.7 million as of September 30, 2025, a change of 100 basis points in the underlying interest rate would cause a
change in interest expense of approximately $2.2 million. This hypothetical increase does not take into account a corresponding increase to the programs that
we may receive from our manufacturers or management’s ability to curtail inventory and related floor plan balances, both of which would reduce the impact of
the interest rate increase.

Our A&R Credit Facility exposes us to risks caused by fluctuations in interest rates. The interest rate on our A&R Credit Facility is calculated using Term
SOFR (with a 0.00% floor) plus an applicable margin. Based on the portion of the outstanding balance that is not covered by interest rate swaps of
$214.4 million as of September 30, 2025, a change of 100 basis points in the underlying interest rate would cause a change in interest expense of approximately
$2.1 million.

As part of our strategy to mitigate the exposure risk to fluctuations in interest rates for our Inventory Financing Facility and A&R Credit Facility, we may
enter into various interest rate swap agreements. As of September 30, 2025, we had two interest rate swap agreements with a combined notional principal
amount of $400.0 million. The swaps are designed to provide a hedge against the changes in variable cash flows regarding fluctuations in the SOFR and Term
SOFR rates which are used in calculating interest payments. All of our interest rate swaps qualify for cash flow hedge accounting. The following table provides
information regarding our interest rate swaps as of September 30, 2025:

Inception Date Hedged Rate Notional Value at Inception (in thousands) Maturity Date
September 2024 SOFR $ 200,000 September 2027
September 2024 Term SOFR 200,000 September 2027

Foreign Currency Risk

We purchase certain of our new boat and parts inventories from foreign manufacturers and some of these transactions are denominated in a currency other
than the U.S. dollar. Our business is subject to foreign exchange rate risk that may influence manufacturers’ ability to provide their products at competitive
prices in the United States. From time to time we may enter into foreign currency forward contracts to hedge certain foreign currency exposures to lessen, but
not completely eliminate, the effects of foreign currency fluctuations on our financial results. To the extent that we cannot recapture this volatility in prices
charged to customers or if this volatility negatively impacts consumer demand for our products, this volatility could adversely affect our future operating
results.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
OneWater Marine Inc.

Opinion on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of OneWater Marine Inc. (a Delaware corporation) and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
September 30, 2025 and 2024, the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended September 30, 2025, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements™). In our
opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of September 30, 2025 and 2024,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 2025, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2025, based on criteria established in the 2013 Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”), and our report dated December 15, 2025 expressed an unqualified
opinion.

Basis for opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with
respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission
and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to
assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such
procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical audit matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that were communicated or required
to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our
especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial
statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on
the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.

Impairment of Goodwill and Certain Tradenames

As described in notes 2 and 8§ to the consolidated financial statements, goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets are assessed for impairment at least
annually, or more frequently when events or circumstances indicate that impairment might have occurred. Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting
unit level. The Company first assesses qualitative factors to evaluate whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its
carrying amount as the basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform a quantitative goodwill impairment analysis and indefinite-lived (tradenames)
impairment analysis. The Company may bypass the qualitative assessment in any period and proceed directly with a quantitative analysis. For the annual
impairment testing date of August 31, 2025, management performed a qualitative assessment and then decided to prepare quantitative impairment analyses for
the reporting units and tradenames. The Company engaged a third-party valuation specialist for the estimation of the fair values of the reporting units and
tradenames. Management estimates the fair value of reporting units using a combination of income and market approaches and tradenames using the relief
from royalty approach. As a result of the Company’s annual impairment testing, the Company recorded goodwill impairment charges of $36.4 million
associated with the Dealership reporting unit and $41.3 million associated with its Distribution reporting unit. Tradename impairment charges of $11.6 million
related to the Dealership reporting unit and $12.3 million related to the Distribution reporting unit were recorded. We identified the estimation of the fair values
of the reporting units and certain tradenames as a critical audit matter.

The principal considerations for our determination that the estimation of the fair values of the reporting units and certain tradenames is a critical audit matter is
that there was high estimation uncertainty due to significant judgements with respect to assumptions used to project future cash flows, including revenue
growth rates, EBITDA (reporting units), as well as the discount rates (reporting units), royalty rates (certain tradenames), and the valuation methodologies used
by the third-party valuation specialist.
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Our audit procedures related to the estimation of the fair value of the reporting units and certain tradenames included the following, among others:

*  We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of internal controls relating to the Company’s review of the
assumptions used to project future cash flows, the selection of appropriate discount rates and royalty rates, the valuation methodologies applied by the
third-party valuation specialist and the review of the Company’s reporting units.

*  We utilized an internal valuation specialist to evaluate:

* the methodologies used and whether they were acceptable for the underlying assets or operations and applied correctly by performing
independent calculations,

* the reasonableness of the risk-adjusted discount rates by recalculating the weighted average cost of capital,

* the reasonableness of selected royalty rates for certain tradenames considering external information used in developing management’s
estimate,

* the guideline public companies and transactions utilized by the Company by examining financial metrics of the comparable public companies
and transactions within the industry and considering market participant guidance and perspective, and

* the qualifications of the third-party valuation firm engaged by the Company based on their credentials and experience.

*  We evaluated management’s determination of reporting units.

*  We tested the reconciliation of the aggregate estimated fair value of the reporting units to the market capitalization of the Company.

*  We tested the completeness and accuracy of underlying data used in the estimate by agreeing to underlying accounting records.

*  We evaluated the reasonableness of the forecasted cash flows, including revenue growth rates, EBITDA, and EBITDA margins, by assessing the
historical accuracy of management’s estimates and the reasonableness of assumptions used by management by comparing to publicly available
industry information and comparable companies, including analyzing the sensitivity of changes in significant assumptions and the resulting impact to
the estimated fair values.

Impairment of Distribution Reporting Unit Customer Relationships

As described in notes 2 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements, long-lived assets are evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. As of August 31, 2025, the Company recorded impairment charges of $40.8 million
associated with customer relationships in its Distribution reporting unit. We identified the estimation of fair value of these customer relationship intangible
assets as a critical audit matter.

The principal considerations for our determination that the estimation of fair values of the Distribution reporting unit customer relationship intangible assets is
a critical audit matter is that there was a high degree of estimation uncertainty due to significant judgements with respect to assumptions used to determine the
fair value of the customer relationships, including future revenue growth rates, EBITDA, customer attrition rates, and the discount rate used.

Our audit procedures related to the fair value of Distribution reporting unit customer relationship intangible assets included the following, among others:

*  We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design, and tested the operating effectiveness of the Company’s relevant controls over the fair value of
long-lived intangible assets, including the Company’s controls over the selection and review of the appropriateness of revenue growth rates, EBITDA,
customer attrition rates, and the discount rate used in determining fair value.

*  We utilized an internal valuation specialist to evaluate:

* the methodologies used and whether they were acceptable for the underlying assets or operations and applied correctly by performing
independent calculations,

* the reasonableness of the risk-adjusted discount rates by recalculating the weighted average cost of capital,

* the reasonableness of selected customer attrition rates considering the external information used in developing management’s estimate,

* the guideline public companies and transactions utilized by the Company by examining financial metrics of the comparable public companies
and transactions within the industry and considering market participant guidance and perspective, and

* the qualifications of the third-party valuation firm engaged by the Company based on their credentials and experience.

*  We agreed the carrying value of each asset group to the underlying accounting records.

*  We evaluated the reasonableness of the forecasted cash flows, including revenue growth rates, EBITDA, and EBITDA margins, by assessing the
historical accuracy of management’s estimates and the reasonableness of assumptions used by management by comparing publicly available industry
information and comparable companies, including analyzing the sensitivity of changes in significant assumptions and the resulting impact to the
estimated fair values.

Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets
As described in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements, deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance if, based on the evaluation of positive

and negative evidence, management judges it is more likely than not that some portion, or all, of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The assessment of
the realizability of deferred tax assets requires management to make significant estimates and
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assumptions related to forecasts of future profitability. Changes in these assumptions could materially affect the assessment of the realizability of deferred tax
assets and whether they are more likely than not to be realized in the future. During the year ended September 30, 2025, management concluded that sufficient
positive evidence exists to ensure the realizability of the net deferred tax assets that are recorded on the balance sheet. We identified the realizability of deferred
tax assets as a critical audit matter.

The principal consideration for our determination that the realizability of deferred tax assets is a critical audit matter is that management utilized significant
judgment in determining that the net deferred tax assets are more likely than not to be realized in the future. Auditing management’s judgments regarding the
future realizability of deferred tax assets involved a high degree of subjectivity due to the estimation uncertainty of management’s significant judgments.

Our audit procedures related to the realizability of deferred tax assets included the following, among others:

*  We tested the design and operating effectiveness of internal controls over income taxes, including those over management’s deferred tax asset
realizability assessment.
*  With the assistance of individuals with specialized skills and knowledge in income taxes, we tested the completeness and accuracy of the underlying
data used in management’s assessment, including the reasonableness of the method and significant assumptions used in the calculations.
*  We evaluated the prospective financial information related to future profitability, including consideration of:
* the current and past performance of the Company,
* the consistency with external market and industry data, and
» the consistency with evidence obtained in other areas of the audit.

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2017.

Atlanta, Georgia
December 15, 2025
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CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash

Restricted cash

Accounts receivable, net

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

Property and equipment, net

Operating lease right-of-use assets

Other long-term assets

Deferred tax assets, net

Intangible assets, net

Goodwill

Total assets

ONEWATER MARINE INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except par value and share data)

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Other payables and accrued expenses
Customer deposits
Notes payable — floor plan
Current portion of operating lease liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt, net
Current portion of tax receivable agreement liability
Total current liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Tax receivable agreement liability
Long-term operating lease liabilities
Long-term debt, net
Total liabilities

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 18)

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized, none issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2025

and September 30, 2024

Class A common stock, $0.01 par value, 40,000,000 shares authorized, 16,373,991 and 14,686,696 shares issued and

outstanding as of September 30, 2025 and September 30, 2024, respectively

Class B common stock, $0.01 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized, no shares and 1,429,940 shares issued and

outstanding as of September 30, 2025 and September 30, 2024, respectively

Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total stockholders’ equity attributable to OneWater Marine Inc.

Equity attributable to non-controlling interests

Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

September 30, September 30,
2025 2024

$ 52,166 $ 16,849
12,654 10,488

60,885 73,269

539,793 590,838

53,715 85,922

719,213 777,366

91,576 93,224

128,988 138,829

2,309 1,299

72,587 37,278

130,198 205,391

258,954 336,602

$ 1,403,825 $ 1,589,989
$ 43,758 § 32,106
41,429 42,116

29,280 63,955

419,682 443,386

16,615 15,704

77,895 7,874

2,637 2,578

631,296 607,719

2,544 12,563

34,858 38,019

115,977 126,001

334,197 414,934

1,118,872 1,199,236

164 147

— 14

240,478 202,921

44,954 159,625
(643) (1,897)

284,953 360,810

— 29,943

284,953 390,753

$ 1,403,825 $ 1,589,989
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ONEWATER MARINE INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands except per share data)

Revenues:

New boat

Pre-owned boat

Finance & insurance income
Service, parts & other

Total revenues

Cost of sales:

New boat

Pre-owned boat
Service, parts & other

Total cost of sales

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization

Transaction costs

Change in fair value of contingent consideration
Restructuring and impairment

(Loss) income from operations

Other expense (income):

Interest expense — floor plan

Interest expense — other

Other expense, net

Total other expense, net

Net loss before income tax benefit

Income tax benefit

Net loss

Net income attributable to non-controlling interests

Net loss attributable to non-controlling interests of One Water Marine Holdings, LLC

Net loss attributable to OneWater Marine Inc.

Net loss per share of Class A common stock — basic

Net loss per share of Class A common stock — diluted

Basic weighted-average shares of Class A common stock outstanding

Diluted weighted-average shares of Class A common stock outstanding
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For the Years Ended September 30,

2025 2024 2023
$ 1,158,165 $ 1,118,292 1,223,691
363,906 312,193 334,477
54,959 51,494 56,325
295,304 290,651 321,817
1,872,334 1,772,630 1,936,310
974,951 921,406 955,222
298,361 248,068 258,524
172,000 168,093 187,438
1,445,312 1,337,567 1,401,184
343,285 332,680 345,524
21,634 19,401 23,898
1,547 1,530 1,839
(2,133) 4,248 (1,604)
148,139 12,386 147,402
(85,450) 64,818 18,067
28,469 34,087 25,080
36,183 37,050 34,557
1,429 14 953
66,081 71,151 60,590
(151,531) (6,333) (42,523)
(35,301) (157) (3,412)
(116,230) (6,176) (39,111)
— (119) (3,810)
1,648 590 4,329
$ (114,582) $ (5,705) $ (38,592)
$ (722) $ (0.39) (2.69)
$ (722) $ 0.39) $ (2.69)
15,869 14,585 14,328
15,869 14,585 14,328
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ONEWATER MARINE INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(In thousands)

For the Years Ended September 30,

2025 2024 2023

Net loss $ (116,230) $ 6,176) $ (39,111)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustment (52) (18) 9
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps, net of reclassification adjustment 1,150 (2,066) —
Income tax benefit associated with other comprehensive income items 342 — —
Comprehensive loss (114,790) (8,260) (39,102)
Net (income) attributable to non-controlling interests — (119) (3,810)
Net loss attributable to non-controlling interests of One Water Marine Holdings, LLC 1,648 590 4,329
Foreign currency translation adjustment attributable to non-controlling interest of One Water

Marine Holdings, LLC 2) 2 (1)
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps, net of reclassification adjustment attributable to non-

controlling interest of One Water Marine Holdings, LLC (574) 184 —
Income tax expense associated with other comprehensive income items attributable to non-

controlling interest of One Water Marine Holdings, LLC $ 87 § — 3§ —
Comprehensive loss attributable to OneWater Marine, Inc. $ (113,631) $ (7,603) $ (38,584)

74



Table of Contents

ONEWATER MARINE INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In thousands)

Class A Common Stock Class B Common Stock
Accumulated
Additional Non- Other Total
Paid-in Retained controlling Comprehensive Stockholders’
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Earnings Interest Income (Loss) Equity

Balance at September 30, 2022 14,212 142 1,430 14 180,296 204,880 59,552 7 444,877
Net loss — — — — — (38,592) (519) — (39,111)
Distributions to members — — — — — (38) (3,565) — (3,603)
Establishment of liabilities under tax receivable

agreement and related changes to deferred tax assets

associated with increase in tax basis — — — — 4,402 — — — 4,402
Shares issued upon vesting of equity-based awards, net

of tax withholding 186 2 — — (1,973) — — — (1,971)
Shares issued as part of employee stock purchase plan 86 1 — — 2,091 — — — 2,092
Equity-based compensation — — — — 8,962 — — — 8,962
Repurchase and retirement of Class A common stock (64) (1) — — (760) (818) — — (1,579)
Currency translation adjustment — — — — — — 1 8 9
Balance at September 30, 2023 14,420 144 1,430 14 193,018 165,432 55,469 1 414,078
Net loss — — — — — (5,705) (471) — (6,176)
Distributions to members — — — — — (102) (5,313) — (5,415)
Establishment of liabilities under tax receivable

agreement and related changes to deferred tax assets

associated with increase in tax basis — — — — 1,868 — — — 1,868
Shares issued upon vesting of equity-based awards, net

of tax withholding 208 2 — — (2,643) — — — (2,641)
Shares issued as part of employee stock purchase plan 59 1 — — 1,519 — — — 1,520
Equity-based compensation — — — — 8,443 — — — 8,443
Purchase of non-controlling interest — — — — 716 — (19,556) — (18,840)
Currency translation adjustment — — — — — — 2) (16) (18)
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps, net of

reclassification adjustment = — — - - — (184) (1,882) (2,066)
Balance at September 30, 2024 14,687 147 1,430 14 202,921 159,625 29,943 (1,897) 390,753
Net loss — — — — — (114,582) (1,648) — (116,230)
Distributions to members — — — — — (89) (186) — (275)
Exchange of B shares for A shares 1,430 14 (1,430) (14) 28,295 — (28,598) 303 —
Establishment of liabilities under tax receivable

agreement and related changes to deferred tax assets

associated with increase in tax basis — — — — (575) — — — (575)
Shares issued upon vesting of equity-based awards, net

of tax withholding 164 2 — — (1,848) — — — (1,846)
Shares issued as part of employee stock purchase plan 93 1 — — 1,186 — — — 1,187
Equity-based compensation — — — — 10,499 — — — 10,499
Currency translation adjustment — — — — — — 2 (54) (52)
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps, net of

reclassification adjustment and $0.3 million tax

benefit = = = — — — 487 1,005 1,492
Balance at September 30, 2025 16,374 $ 164 — 3 — $ 240478 $ 44954 § — $ (643) $ 284,953
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ONEWATER MARINE INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Equity-based compensation
Loss on asset disposals
Loss on disposal of a business
Loss on restructuring and impairment
Non-cash interest expense
Deferred income tax provision
Change in fair value of contingent consideration
Loss on equity investment
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Other payables and accrued expenses
Tax receivable agreement liability
Customer deposits

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchases of property and equipment and construction in progress
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment

Cash used for additions to intangible assets

Cash received (used) in acquisitions

Proceeds from disposal of a business

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net (payments) borrowings from floor plan

Proceeds from long-term debt

Payments on long-term debt

Payments of debt issuance costs

Payments of contingent consideration

Proceeds from issuance of Class A common stock as part of employee stock purchase plan
Payments of tax withholdings for equity-based awards
Distributions to members

Purchase of non-controlling interest

Repurchase and retirement of Class A common stock

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and restricted cash

For the Years Ended September 30,

2025 2024 2023

$ (116,230) $ (6,176) '$ (39,111)
24,440 22,187 26,789
10,499 8,443 8,962
298 36 221

— — 750
145,844 539 147,402
4,623 2,099 10,129
(35,852) (334) (23,030)
(2,133) 1,763 (1,604)
61 198 446
15,215 (1,477) (10,051)
47911 24,636 (232,285)
32,147 (17,939) 10,308
(1,067) 4,574 (3,188)
11,652 233 197
(3,998) (13,381) (7,643)
(2,795) (2,602) (3,227)
(38,862) 12,040 (14,825)
91,753 34,839 (129,760)
(12,019) (25,918) (21,251)
416 757 567
(714) (909) (2,823)
713 (5,712) (28,882)

— 45,100 788
(11,604) 13,318 (51,601)
(23,704) (45,638) 219,688
27,524 43,392 30,000
(42,146) (78,381) (18,338)
(935) 2,221) —
(2,419) (5,888) (12,574)
1,187 1,520 2,092
(1,846) (2,641) (1,971)
(275) (5,415) (3,603)
— (18,840) —

— — (1,579)
(42,614) (114,112) 213,715
(52) (18) 9



Net change in cash and restricted cash
Cash and restricted cash at beginning of period

Cash and restricted cash at end of period

Supplemental cash flow disclosures
Cash paid for interest

Cash (received) paid for income taxes and income tax refunds

Noncash items

Acquisition purchase price funded by contingent consideration
Purchase of property and equipment funded by long-term debt
Acquisition purchase price funded by affiliate financing

Settlement of affiliate financing with proceeds from sale and leaseback
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37,483 (65,973) 32,363
27,337 93,310 60,947
64,820 $ 27337 $ 93,310
61,041 $ 75,957 S 49,508
(5,936) 5,495 23,322
— 2,550
219 156 1,122
— — 10,600
— — 10,600
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OneWater Marine Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Description of Company and Basis of Presentation
Description of the Business

OneWater Marine Inc. (“OneWater Inc”) was incorporated in Delaware on April 3, 2019 and was a wholly-owned subsidiary of One Water Marine
Holdings, LLC (“OneWater LLC”). Pursuant to a reorganization on February 11, 2020 into a holding company structure for the purpose of facilitating an initial
public offering (the “IPO”) and related transactions in order to carry on the business of OneWater LLC and its subsidiaries (together with OneWater Inc, the
“Company’’), OneWater Inc is the holding company and its sole material asset is the equity interest in OneWater LLC. OneWater LLC was organized as a
limited liability company under the law of the State of Delaware in 2014 and is the parent company of One Water Assets & Operations (“OWAQO?”), and its
subsidiaries.

The Company is one of the largest recreational marine retailers in the United States. The Company engages primarily in the retail sale, brokerage, and
service of new and pre-owned boats, motors, trailers, the sale of marine parts and accessories, and offers slip and storage accommodations in certain locations.
The Company also arranges related boat financing, insurance, and extended service contracts for customers with third-party lenders and insurance companies.
As of September 30, 2025, the Company operates a total of 95 retail locations, 9 distribution centers/warechouses and multiple online marketplaces in 19 states,
several of which are in the top twenty states for marine retail expenditures.

Operating results are generally subject to seasonal variations. Demand for products is generally highest during the third and fourth quarters of the fiscal
year and, accordingly, revenues are generally expected to be higher during these periods. General economic conditions, including rising interest rates, tariff and
duty rates as well as other uncertainties with respect to trade policies, and consumer spending patterns, can negatively impact the Company’s operating results.
Unfavorable local, regional, national, or global economic developments, global public health concerns, or uncertainties could reduce consumer spending and
adversely affect the Company’s business. Consumer spending on discretionary goods may also decline as a result of lower consumer confidence levels, even if
prevailing economic conditions are otherwise favorable. The imposition of tariffs on foreign goods and services, as well as any retaliatory tariffs on U.S. goods
and services, could increase the price of supplies and materials we rely on to conduct our business, and, thus, negatively impact our operating results.
Economic conditions in areas in which the Company operates, particularly in the Southeast, can have a major impact on the Company’s overall results of
operations. Local influences such as corporate downsizing, inclement weather such as hurricanes, tornadoes and other storms, environmental conditions, and
other events have and could adversely affect the Company’s operations in certain markets and in certain periods. Any extended period of adverse economic
conditions or low consumer confidence is likely to have a negative effect on the Company’s business.

Sales of new boats from the Company’s top ten brands represent approximately 40.8%, 41.7% and 39.4% of total revenues for the years ended
September 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023, respectively, making them major suppliers of the Company. Of this amount, Malibu Boats, Inc, including its brands
Malibu, Axis, Cobalt, Pursuit, Maverick, Hewes, Cobia and Pathfinder accounted for 12.2%, 13.1% and 13.9% of our total revenues for the years ended
September 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023, respectively. As is typical in the industry, the Company contracts with most manufacturers under renewable annual dealer
agreements, each of which provides the right to sell various makes and models of boats within a given geographic region. Any change or termination of these
agreements, for any reason, or changes in competitive, regulatory, or marketing practices, including rebate or incentive programs, could adversely affect results
of operations. Pre-owned boats are usually trade-ins from retail customers who are purchasing a boat from the Company.

Principles of Consolidation

As the sole managing member of OneWater LLC, OneWater Inc operates and controls all of the businesses and affairs of OneWater LLC. Through
OneWater LLC and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, whether directly or indirectly, OneWater Inc conducts its business. As a result, OneWater Inc consolidates
the financial results of OneWater LLC and its subsidiaries and, prior to the redemption of all outstanding OneWater LLC units and cancellation of the shares of
Class B common stock of OneWater Inc, historically reported non-controlling interests related to the portion of units of OneWater LLC (the “OneWater LLC
Units”) not owned by OneWater Inc, which reduced net income (loss) attributable to OneWater Inc’s Class A stockholders. As of September 30, 2025,
OneWater Inc owned 100.0% of the economic interest of OneWater LLC and, accordingly, going forward will no longer report any non-controlling interest
related to OneWater LLC Units.

Commencing December 31, 2021, the Company owned 80% of the economic interest of Quality Assets and Operations, LLC, over which the Company
exercised control and the minority interest in this subsidiary was recorded accordingly. On October 31, 2023, the Company acquired the remaining 20% of the
economic interest and, as a result, owns 100% of Quality Assets and Operations, LLC.

Basis of Financial Statement Preparation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and
pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). All adjustments,
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consisting of only normal recurring adjustments considered by management to be necessary for fair presentation, have been reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

All intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The Company operates on a fiscal year basis with the first day of the fiscal year
being October 1, and the last day of the fiscal year ending on September 30.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Cash

At times the amount of cash on deposit may exceed the federally insured limit of the bank. Deposit accounts at each of the institutions are insured up to
$250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). At September 30, 2025 and 2024, the Company exceeded FDIC limits at various institutions.
The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes there is little to no exposure to any significant credit risk. Total cash and restricted
cash shown in the consolidated statements of cash flows is comprised of the amounts reported in cash and restricted cash on the consolidated balance sheets.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash relates to amounts collected for brokerage sales, in certain states, which are held in escrow on behalf of the respective buyers and sellers
for future purchases of boats.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The cost of inventories consist of amounts paid to acquire the inventory, net of vendor
consideration received and purchase discounts, and varying by inventory type, may include the cost of reconditioning, equipment addition, transportation,
material, labor and manufacturing overhead. The cost of the new and pre-owned boat inventory is determined using the specific identification method. In
assessing lower of cost or net realizable value, the Company considers the aging of the boats, historical sales of a brand and current market conditions. The cost
of acquired, manufactured and assembled parts and accessories is determined using methods which vary by subsidiary and include the average cost method,
standard costs (which approximate average costs), and first-in, first-out (“FIFO”).

Vendor Consideration Received

Consideration received from vendors is accounted for in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards
Codification (“ASC”) 330, “Inventory” (*“‘ASC 330”"). Pursuant to ASC 330, manufacturer incentives based upon cumulative volume of sales and purchases
are recorded as a reduction of inventory cost and related cost of sales when the amounts are probable and reasonably estimable.
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation of property and equipment is calculated using the straight-line

method over the estimated useful lives. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the lease period or the estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful lives of assets are as follows:

Years
Company vehicles 5
Buildings and improvements 10-39
Machinery and equipment 5-7
Office equipment 5-7

Expenditures for major improvements that extend the useful life of assets are capitalized. Minor replacements, maintenance and repairs which do not
extend the useful life of an asset are expensed as incurred.

In accordance with FASB ASC 360-10, “Property, Plant and Equipment — Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (““ASC 360-10""), the carrying
value of property and equipment and other long-term assets (other than goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets) are evaluated for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If such an indication is present, the carrying amount of the asset is
compared to the estimated undiscounted cash flows related to that asset. The Company would conclude that an asset may be impaired if the sum of such
undiscounted expected future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the related asset. If an asset is impaired, the impairment loss would be the amount
by which the carrying amount of the related asset exceeds its fair value. We did not record an impairment of our property and equipment in fiscal years 2025,
2024 or 2023.
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Goodwill and Other Identifiable Intangible Assets

Goodwill is an asset representing operational synergies and future economic benefits arising from other assets acquired in a business combination that are
not individually identified and separately recognized. Other identifiable intangible assets primarily consist of trade names, developed technologies, and
customer relationships related to the acquisitions the Company has completed. The Company has determined that trade names have an indefinite life, as there
are no economic, contractual or other factors that limit their useful lives and they are expected to generate value as long as the trade name is utilized by the
Company, and therefore, are not subject to amortization. Developed technologies and customer relationships are amortized over their estimated useful lives of
ten years. Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets are accounted for in accordance with the FASB ASC 350, “Intangibles — Goodwill and Other”
(““ASC 350”), which provides that the excess of cost over the fair value of the net assets of businesses acquired, including other identifiable intangible assets,
is recorded as goodwill.

In accordance with ASC 350, Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets are tested for impairment at least annually, or more frequently when events or
circumstances indicate that impairment might have occurred. ASC 350 also states for annual impairment tests that if an entity determines, based on an
assessment of certain qualitative factors, that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit or indefinite-lived intangible asset is greater than its
carrying amount, then a quantitative goodwill impairment test is unnecessary. The Company performs its annual test in the fiscal fourth quarter.

In evaluating goodwill for impairment, if the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value, the difference would represent the amount of
required goodwill impairment. The Company calculates the fair value of its reporting units by considering both the income and market approach which are
Level 3 non-recurring fair value measurements. The income approach calculates the fair value of the reporting unit using a discounted cash flow method. The
cash flows used are consistent with those the Company uses in its internal planning, which reflects actual business trends experienced and its long-term
business strategy. As such, key estimates and factors used in this method include, but are not limited to, revenue, margin and operating expense growth rates, as
well as a discount rate and a terminal growth rate. Fair value under the market approach is determined for each unit by applying market multiples for
comparable public companies to the unit's financial results. In order to further validate the reasonableness of fair value as determined by the income and market
approaches described above, a reconciliation to market capitalization is then performed by estimating a reasonable control premium and other market factors.

During the year ended September 30, 2025, the Company determined that there were circumstances that indicated impairment may have occurred,
including a drop in the Company's market capitalization and declining margins, and performed a quantitative goodwill impairment analysis. As a result, the
Company recognized a $77.6 million impairment for goodwill for the year then ended. The Company elected a qualitative assessment for our fiscal fourth
quarter 2024 goodwill impairment testing and determined that it was more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting units were greater than their
carrying amounts, and as a result, no impairment for goodwill was required for the year then ended. During the year ended September 30, 2023, the Company
determined that there were circumstances that indicated impairment may have occurred, including a drop in the Company's market capitalization and declining
margins, and performed a quantitative goodwill impairment analysis. As a result, the Company recognized a $57.7 million impairment for goodwill for the year
then ended. Changes in the judgments, assumptions and estimates, including but not limited to: revenue, margin, operating expense growth rates, discount
rates, terminal growth rates, and other assumptions, that are used in the impairment testing for goodwill, could result in significantly different estimates of fair
value for our reporting units and potentially result in additional material non-cash impairment charges. See Note 8 for more information about the impairment
of goodwill.

In accordance with ASC 350, the Company first performs an annual qualitative impairment assessment for indefinite-lived intangible assets to determine if
it is more likely than not that the fair values are greater than their carrying amounts. If it is determined that it is more likely than not that the fair values of the
indefinite-lived intangible assets are less than their respective carrying amounts, the Company then performs a quantitative impairment analysis by comparing
the carrying amount of the indefinite-lived intangible assets to the fair values. To determine the fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible assets, the Company
uses a relief from royalty method for trade names. The financial projections used in the relief from royalty method reflected management's assumptions
regarding revenue growth rates, economic and market trends, royalty rates, discount rates, and other expectations about the anticipated short-term and long-
term operating results.

During the year ended September 30, 2025, the Company performed a quantitative impairment analysis for indefinite lived intangible assets. As a result,
the Company recognized a $23.9 million impairment for the year then ended. The Company elected qualitative assessments for our fiscal fourth quarter 2024
indefinite-lived intangible assets impairment testing and determined that it was more likely than not that the fair value of the Company’s indefinite-lived
intangible assets were greater than their carrying amounts, and as a result, no impairment was required for the year then ended. During the year ended
September 30, 2023, the Company performed a quantitative impairment analysis. As a result, the Company recognized a $43.0 million impairment for
indefinite-lived intangible assets for the year then ended. See Note 8 for more information about the impairment of indefinite-live intangible assets.

In accordance with ASC 360-10, the Company assesses the potential for impairment of its definite-lived intangible assets if facts and circumstances, such
as declines in sales, earnings, cash flows or adverse changes in the business climate, suggest that they may be impaired. Definite-lived intangible assets include
developed technologies and customer relationships which are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the asset may not be recoverable.
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The Company performs its assessment by comparing the book value of the asset groups to the estimated future undiscounted cash flows associated with
the asset groups. If any impairment in the carrying value of its definite-lived intangible assets is indicated, the assets would be adjusted to an estimate of fair
value. To determine the fair value of the definite-lived intangible assets, the Company uses a relief from royalty method for developed technology and
discounted cash flows method for customer relationships.

During the year ended September 30, 2025, the Company performed a quantitative impairment analysis for definite-lived intangible assets. As a result, the
Company recognized a $44.3 million impairment for the year then ended. During the year ended September 30, 2024, the Company elected a qualitative
assessment, evaluated the indicators of potential impairment for definite-lived intangible assets and did not identify any potential triggering events, and as a
result, no impairment was required for the year then ended. During the year ended September 30, 2023, the Company performed a quantitative impairment
analysis. As a result, the Company recognized a $46.7 million impairment for definite-lived intangible assets for the year then ended. See Note 8 for more
information about the impairment of definite-lived intangible assets.

Software Development

The Company capitalizes cost for software developed or obtained for internal use, including domain names and internally developed software, and
amortizes them over their estimated useful life, which is generally three to five years. The Company begins to capitalize costs incurred for computer software
during the application development stage, as long as it is probable that the project will be completed and the software will be used for its intended purpose.
Capitalization ceases when a software project is substantially complete and ready for its intended use.

Sales Tax

The Company collects sales tax on all of the Company’s sales to nonexempt customers and remits the entire amount to the states that imposed the sales tax.
The Company’s accounting policy is to exclude the tax collected and remitted to the states from revenues and cost of sales.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized from the sale of products and commissions earned on new and pre-owned boats (including used, brokerage, consignment and
wholesale) when ownership is transferred to the customer, which is generally upon acceptance or delivery to the customer. At the time of acceptance or
delivery, the customer is able to direct the use, and obtain substantially all of the benefits. We are the principal with respect to revenue from new, pre-owned
and consignment sales and such revenue is recorded at the gross sales price. With respect to brokerage transactions, we are acting as an agent in the transaction,
therefore the fee or commission is recorded on a net basis.

Revenue from parts and accessories sold directly to a customer (not on a repair order) are recognized when control of the item is transferred to the
customer, which is typically upon shipment. Revenue from parts and service operations (boat maintenance and repairs) is recorded over time as services are
performed. Satisfaction of this performance obligation creates an asset with no alternative use for which an enforceable right to payment for performance to
date exists within our contractual agreements. Each boat maintenance and repair service is a single performance obligation that includes both the parts and
labor associated with the service. Payment for boat maintenance and repairs is typically due upon the completion of the service, which is generally completed
within a period of one year or less from contract inception. The Company recorded contract assets in prepaid expenses and other current assets of $4.6 million
and $4.2 million as of September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Certain parts and service transactions require the Company to perform shipping and handling activities after the transfer of control to the customer (e.g.,
when control transfers prior to delivery). They are considered fulfillment activities and are included in selling, general and administrative expenses.

Revenue from storage and marina operations is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract as services are completed. Revenue from
arranging financing, insurance and extended warranty contracts to customers through various third-party financial institutions and insurance companies is
recognized when the related boats are sold. We do not directly finance our customers’ boat, motor or trailer purchases. We are acting as an agent in the
transaction, therefore the commissions are recorded on a net basis. Subject to our agreements and in the event of early cancellation, prepayment or default of
such loans or insurance contracts by the customer, we may be assessed a chargeback for a portion of the commission paid by the third-party financial
institutions and insurance companies. We reserve for these chargebacks based on our historical experience with repayments or defaults. Chargebacks were not
material to the consolidated financial statements for the years ended September 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023.

80




Table of Contents

Contract liabilities consist of deferred revenues from marina and storage operations and customer deposits and are classified in customer deposits in the
Company’s consolidated balance sheets. Deposits received from customers are recorded as a liability until the related sales orders have been fulfilled by us and
control of the vessel is transferred to the customer. The activity in customer deposits for the years ended September 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023 is as follows:

($ in thousands) 2025 2024 2023
Beginning contract liability $ 63,955 $ 51,649 $ 65,460
Revenue recognized from contract liabilities included in the beginning
balance (63,375) (48,642) (63,207)
Increases due to business combinations and cash received, net of

amounts recognized in revenue during the period 28,700 60,948 49,396
Ending contract liability $ 29,280 $ 63,955 $ 51,649

The following table sets forth percentages on the timing of revenue recognition for the years ended September 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023:

2025 2024 2023
Goods and services transferred at a point in time 93.8 % 93.8 % 93.8 %
Goods and services transferred over time 6.2 % 6.2% 6.2 %
Total Revenue 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

Advertising Costs

We expense advertising and promotional costs as incurred and include them in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations. Pursuant to FASB ASC 606, ““Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (““ASC 606°"), we net amounts received under
our co-op assistance programs from our manufacturers against the related advertising expenses. Total advertising costs for the years ended September 30, 2025,
2024 and 2023, were $29.3 million, $26.9 million and $24.8 million, respectively, which are net of related co-op assistance of $1.6 million, $1.6 million and
$2.2 million, respectively.

Equity-Based Compensation

Equity-based compensation plans are accounted for following the provisions of FASB ASC 718, “Compensation — Stock Compensation” (““ASC 718”).
Equity-based awards are designed to reward employees for their long-term contributions to the Company and to provide incentives for them to remain with the
Company. Valuation models and the quoted market price of our common stock are used to value all equity-based compensation. Compensation for awards is
measured at fair value on the grant date based on the number of shares expected to vest. The Company recognizes compensation cost for all awards on a graded
basis over the requisite service period of the award.

Income Taxes

OneWater Inc is a corporation and as a result, is subject to U.S. federal, state and local income taxes. We account for income taxes under the asset and
liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events included in the
consolidated financial statements. Under this method, we determine deferred tax assets and liabilities on the basis of the differences between the book value
and tax bases of assets and liabilities by using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. The effect of a change in
tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the period in which the enactment date occurs. We recognize deferred tax assets to the
extent we believe these assets are more-likely-than-not to be realized. In making such a determination, we consider all available positive and negative evidence,
including future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, projected future taxable income, tax planning strategies and recent results of operations.

OneWater LLC is treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes and therefore does not pay U.S. federal income tax on its taxable income.
Instead, the OneWater LLC members are liable for U.S. federal income tax on their respective shares of the Company’s taxable income reported on the
members’ U.S. federal income tax returns.

When there are situations with uncertainty as to the timing of the deduction, the amount of the deduction, or the validity of the deduction, the Company
adjusts the financial statements to reflect only those tax positions that are more-likely-than-not to be sustained. Positions that meet this criterion are measured
using the largest benefit that is more than 50% likely to be realized. Interest and penalties related to income taxes are included in the benefit (provision) for
income taxes in the consolidated statements of operations.
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Loan costs

The Company accounts for its loan costs in accordance with FASB Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”’) No. 2015-03, “Interest-Imputation Subtopic
(835-30): Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs”, which requires that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the
balance sheet as a direct deduction of the carrying amount of that debt liability.

Loan costs are amortized to interest expense on a straight-line basis over the life of the loan, which approximates the effective interest method.
Liquidity

As discussed in Note 22, on November 17, 2025, Company entered into Amendment No. 7 to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and Amendment to
Pledge and Security Agreement which, among other provisions, modified the repayment schedule. The amendment requires principal repayments over the next
twelve months, including a payment on March 31, 2026, in amounts that exceed the Company's cash position as of September 30, 2025. To address this
obligation, the Company is evaluating alternatives to generate the necessary liquidity, including potential dispositions of certain operations within the
Distribution reporting segment, and other financing alternatives. In addition, the Company believes it may be able to obtain a further amendment from its
lenders to further adjust the repayment schedule, if necessary.

Derivative and hedging instruments

The Company utilizes derivative financial instruments to manage its interest rate risk. The types of risks hedged are those relating to the variability of cash
flows caused by fluctuations in interest rates. The Company documents the management strategy and assesses hedge effectiveness at inception and throughout
the term of the hedging relationship. Derivatives are reported at fair value on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

The changes in fair value on the hedges is reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) on the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets, and reclassified to either interest expense — floor plan or interest expense — other in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations
based on the nature of the hedged transaction in the period during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. Cash flows from hedging instruments,
including cash receipts and payments, are classified on the consolidated statements of cash flows in the same category as the cash flows resulting from the item
being hedged.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the periods presented. Actual results could differ materially from these estimates. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically,
and the effects of any revisions are reflected in the consolidated financial statements in the period they are determined to be necessary. Significant estimates
made in the accompanying consolidated financial statements include, but are not limited to, those relating to inventory mark downs, certain assumptions related
to intangible and long-lived assets and valuation of contingent consideration.

Segment Information

We report our operations through two reportable segments, which are organized based on the types of service and product provided: Dealerships and
Distribution. The Dealership segment engages in the sale of new and pre-owned boats, arranges financing and insurance products, performs repairs and
maintenance services, offers marine related parts and accessories and offers slip and storage accommodations in certain locations. The Distribution segment
engages in the manufacturing, assembly and distribution primarily of marine related products to distributors, big box retailers and online retailers through a
network of warehouse and distribution centers. Each reporting segment has discrete financial information and is regularly reviewed by the Company’s chief
operating decision maker (“CODM?”) to assess performance and allocate resources. The Company has identified its Executive Chairman of the Board as its
CODM.

3. New Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-07, "Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures", which is
intended to improve financial reporting by requiring disclosures of incremental segment information on an annual and interim basis. The pronouncement is
effective for a public company's annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within annual reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2024. The Company adopted this standard for the year ended September 30, 2025. As a result of the new standard, the Company expanded
its reportable segment disclosures (see Note 21).

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, "Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures", which is intended to improve
the transparency, effectiveness and comparability of income tax disclosures by requiring greater disaggregation of information and additional disclosures. The
pronouncement is effective for a public company's annual reporting periods beginning after
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December 15, 2024. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that this standard will have on the consolidated financial statements. The Company plans
to adopt the pronouncement in fiscal year 2026.

In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024-03, "Income Statement — Reporting Comprehensive Income — Expense Disaggregation Disclosures
(Subtopic 220-40): Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses", which is intended to improve financial reporting by requiring disclosure of additional
information about specific expense categories in the notes to the financial statements. The pronouncement is effective for a public company's annual reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2026, and interim periods within annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2027. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact that this standard will have on the consolidated financial statements. The Company plans to adopt the pronouncement beginning in the
annual report for fiscal year 2028 and in interim reports during fiscal year 2029.

In July 2025, the FASB issued ASU 2025-05, "Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses for Accounts Receivable
and Contract Assets", which is intended to address challenges encountered when applying the guidance in Topic 326 by introducing a practical expedient for
estimating expected credit losses on current accounts receivable and contract assets. The pronouncement is effective for a public company's annual reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2025, and interim periods within those annual reporting periods. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that
this standard will have on the consolidated financial statements. The Company plans to adopt the pronouncement in fiscal year 2027.

In September 2025, the FASB issued ASU 2025-06, "Intangibles — Goodwill and Other — Internal-Use Software (Subtopic 350-40): Targeted
Improvements to the Accounting for Internal-Use Software", which is intended to modernize internal-use software accounting by removing all references to
software development stages and requires capitalization of software costs when management has committed to the software project and it is probable that the
software will be completed and perform its intended use. The pronouncement is effective for a public company's annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2027, and interim periods within those annual reporting periods. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that this standard will have on
the consolidated financial statements. The Company plans to adopt the pronouncement in fiscal year 2029.

Other than as noted above, there are no new accounting pronouncements that are expected to have a material effect on our consolidated financial
statements.

4. Acquisitions and Dispositions
Acquisitions

In the years ended September 30, 2025, 2024, and 2023, the Company completed acquisitions of multiple businesses. The results of operations of
acquisitions are included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date. The purchase price of acquisitions was allocated to
identifiable tangible assets and intangible assets acquired based on their estimated fair values at the acquisition date, with the excess being allocated to
goodwill. Under the acquisition method of accounting, the purchase price is allocated to the tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed
based on the information currently available. Any changes to the value of identifiable intangible assets are reclassified from goodwill upon the completion of
the valuations. The fair values of the trade name intangible assets as of the acquisition date were determined using the relief from royalty model.

The acquisition completed during the year ended September 30, 2025 was not material to the consolidated financial statements. Information related to the
acquisitions completed during the years ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 is as follows:
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Fiscal Year 2024
For the year ended September 30, 2024, the Company completed the following transaction:
*  On May 1, 2024, Garden State Yacht Sales, a full service marine retailer located in New Jersey
The table below summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date:

Summary of Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed

($ in thousands) Total Acquisitions

Accounts receivable $ 113
Inventories 6,676
Prepaid expenses 11
Property and equipment 478
Operating lease right-of-use assets 4,360
Accounts payable (1,263)
Accrued expenses (36)
Customer deposits (267)
Operating lease liabilities (4,360)
Aggregate acquisition date fair value $ 5,712
Consideration transferred 5,712

Included in our results for the year ended September 30, 2024, the acquisition contributed $7.0 million to our consolidated revenue and income of $0.2
million to our net loss before income tax benefit. Costs related to acquisitions are included in transaction costs and primarily relate to legal, accounting,

valuation and other fees, which are charged directly to operations in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations as incurred in the amount of $0.1
million for the year ended September 30, 2024.

On October 31, 2023, the Company exercised its right to acquire the remaining 20% economic interest in Quality Assets and Operations, LLC for
consideration totaling $18.8 million. Subsequent to the acquisition, the Company owns 100% of the economic interest in Quality Assets and Operations, LLC.

Fiscal Year 2023
For the year ended September 30, 2023, the Company completed the following transactions:

¢ On October 1, 2022, Taylor Marine Centers, a retail marine dealership with locations in Maryland and Delaware
e On December 1, 2022, Harbor View Marine, a retail marine dealership with locations in Florida and Alabama
*  On September 1, 2023, Harbor Pointe Marina, a retail marine dealership with one location in Alabama

Consideration paid for the consummated acquisitions was $42.0 million with $28.9 million paid at closing (net of cash acquired), $10.6 million in non-
cash financing and the remaining $2.6 million in estimated payments of contingent consideration. The payments of contingent consideration are part of
earnouts from the achievement of certain post-acquisition increases in adjusted EBITDA. As of September 30, 2023, the earnout period for the acquisitions was
completed and no contingent consideration payout was achieved.
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The table below summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date, including the goodwill recorded as a result
of the transactions:

Summary of Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed

($ in thousands) Total Acquisitions
Accounts receivable $ 286
Inventories 6,424
Prepaid expenses 72
Property and equipment 11,588
Operating lease right-of-use assets 3,820
Identifiable intangible assets 8,800
Goodwill 18,481
Accounts payable (17)
Accrued expenses (361)
Customer deposits (1,013)
Notes payable - floor plan (2,228)
Operating lease liabilities (3,820)
Aggregate acquisition date fair value $ 42,032
Consideration transferred 42,032

In connection with the acquisition of Harbor View Marine, an entity affiliated with the Company agreed to acquire the real estate for the two acquired
locations, in effect providing non-cash financing. The Company has accounted for this transaction as a sale and leaseback of the properties in our consolidated
financial statements. There was no gain or loss recorded as part of the transaction. The leases for the two properties include an initial term of 15 years and two,
five-year renewal options. The leases are accounted for as operating leases and are included in the operating lease right-of-use assets and operating lease
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.

Included in our results for the year ended September 30, 2023, the acquisitions contributed $60.9 million to our consolidated revenue and $6.3 million to
our net loss before income tax benefit. Costs related to acquisitions are included in transaction costs and primarily relate to legal, accounting, valuation and
other fees, which are charged directly to operations in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations as incurred in the amount of $1.2 million for the
year ended September 30, 2023.

The 2023 acquisitions have resulted in the recording of goodwill that is expected to be deductible for tax purposes of $15.9 million for the year ended
September 30, 2023. No goodwill was recorded as a result of the 2024 acquisition.

The following unaudited pro forma results of operations for the years ended September 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023 assumes that all acquisitions were
completed on October 1, 2022.

($ in thousands) 2025 2024 2023
Pro forma revenues $ 1,872,334 $ 1,779,550 $ 1,957,897
(116,230) $ (6,535) $ (38,024)

&>

Pro forma net loss

The amounts have been calculated by applying our accounting policies and estimates. Pro forma net loss has been tax affected based on the Company’s
effective tax rate in the historical periods presented.

Dispositions
During the year ended September 30, 2023, the Company completed the following dispositions of a business:
*  On September 30, 2023, Roscioli Yachting Center, which was reported in our Dealership reporting segment through the date of the sale. The sale
resulted in a pre-tax gain of $0.2 million recorded in other expense, net in the consolidated statement of operations.

*  On September 30, 2023, Lookout Marine, which included two locations and was reported in our Dealership reporting segment through the date of
sale. The sale resulted in a pre-tax loss of $1.0 million recorded in other expense, net in the consolidated statement of operations.

85



Table of Contents

In connection with the disposition of Roscioli Yachting Center, the Company sold the associated real estate. As part of the sale agreement, the Company
entered into a lease with the purchasing party for a portion of the location. The Company has accounted for this transaction as a sale and leaseback of the
property in our consolidated financial statements. There was no gain or loss recorded as part of the transaction. The lease for the property includes an initial
term of 10 years. The lease is accounted for as an operating lease and is included in the operating lease right-of-use assets and operating lease liabilities on the
consolidated balance sheet.

There were no dispositions of business entities during the years ended September 30, 2025 and 2024.
5. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable primarily consists of trade accounts receivable, contracts in transit and manufacturer receivables. Trade receivables include amounts
due from customers on the sale of boats, parts, service, and storage. Contracts in transit represent anticipated funding from the loan agreement customers
execute at the dealership when they purchase their new or pre-owned boat. These finance contracts are typically funded within 30 days. Amounts due from
manufacturers represent receivables for various manufacturer incentive programs and parts and service work performed pursuant to the manufacturers’

warranties.

The allowance for credit losses is estimated based on past collection experience, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. The annual
activity for charges and subsequent recoveries is immaterial.

Accounts receivable consisted of the following:

($ in thousands) September 30, 2025 September 30, 2024
Trade accounts receivable $ 29,642 $ 32,578
Contracts in transit 17,942 20,437
Manufacturer receivable 10,903 11,435
Income tax receivable 2,950 9,370
Total accounts receivable 61,437 73,820
Less — allowance for credit losses (552) (551)
Total accounts receivable, net $ 60,885 § 73,269

6. Inventories

Inventories consisted of the following:

($ in thousands) September 30, 2025 September 30, 2024
New vessels $ 395,300 $ 442,834
Pre-owned vessels 74,535 79,234
Parts and accessories, work in process 69,958 68,770
Total inventories $ 539,793 ' § 590,838

7. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, net consisted of the following:

($ in thousands) September 30, 2025 September 30, 2024

Land $ 6,323 $ 6,323
Buildings and improvements 24,940 24,890
Leasehold improvements 34,426 30,503
Machinery and equipment 35,979 32,637
Office equipment 17,355 16,124
Company vehicles 29,448 23,957
Construction in progress 1,965 2,637

Total property and equipment 150,436 137,071

Less accumulated depreciation (58,860) (43,847)

Total property and equipment, net $ 91,576 $ 93,224
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For the years ended September 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023, depreciation expense totaled $16.4 million, $14.3 million and $13.4 million, respectively.

8. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Our acquisitions have resulted in the recording of goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets. Goodwill is an asset representing operational synergies
and future economic benefits arising from other assets acquired in a business combination that are not individually identified and separately recognized.
Intangible assets consist of internally developed software, domain names and other identifiable intangible assets such as, trade names, developed technologies,
and customer relationships related to the acquisitions the Company has completed. The changes in goodwill and intangible assets are as follows:

Internally Total
Developed Customer Developed Intangible
(8 in thousands) Goodwill Trade Names Technologies Relationships Domain Names Software Assets, net
Unamortized Unamortized Amortized Amortized Amortized Amortized

Net balance as of September 30, 2023 $ 336,602 $ 149,921 §$ 4419 $ 52,114  § 2,387 $ 3483 $ 212,324
Acquisitions during the year ended September 30,

2024 — — — — — 909 909
Amortization expense for the year ended

September 30, 2024 — — (455) (5,711) (637) (1,039) (7,842)
Net balance as of September 30, 2024 336,602 149,921 3,964 46,403 1,750 3,353 205,391
Acquisitions during the year ended September 30,

2025 — — — — — 1,188 1,188
Impairment recorded during the year ended

September 30, 2025 (77,648) (23,913) (3,470) (40,813) — — (68,196)
Other adjustments during the year ended

September 30, 2025 — — — — (119) — (119)
Amortization expense for the year ended

September 30, 2025 — — (494) (5,590) 617) (1,365) (8,066)
Net balance as of September 30, 2025 $ 258954 | $ 126,008 $ — § — 8 1,014 § 3,176 § 130,198

During the year ended September 30, 2025 the Company recorded an impairment loss of $145.8 million related to goodwill and identifiable intangible
assets in order to adjust carrying value to estimated fair value. The impairment loss is recorded in restructuring and impairment in the consolidated statements
of operations. Of the $145.8 million impairment loss, $48.0 million and $97.8 million is reported in the Dealerships and Distribution reporting segment,
respectively. See Note 2 for more information about our annual impairment tests of goodwill and identifiable intangible assets.

No impairment loss was recorded for the year ended September 30, 2024.

During the year ended September 30, 2023 the Company recorded an impairment loss of $147.4 million related to goodwill and identifiable intangible
assets in order to adjust carrying value to estimated fair value. The impairment loss was recorded in restructuring and impairment in the consolidated
statements of operations. Of the $147.4 million impairment loss, $6.5 million and $140.9 million is reported in the Dealerships and Distribution reporting
segment, respectively.

Amortization expense was $8.1 million, $7.8 million and $13.4 million for the years ended September 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023, respectively, which
includes amortization expense of $1.4 million, $1.0 million and $0.6 million for the years ended September 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023, respectively, for
internally developed software. Amortization expense is recorded in depreciation and amortization in the consolidated statements of operations. For internally
developed software acquisitions during the year ended September 30, 2025, the weighted average useful life of total intangible assets is 3.5 years.

The following table summarizes the expected amortization expense for the fiscal years 2026 through 2030 and thereafter ($ in thousands):

2026 $ 2,108
2027 1,879
2028 96
2029 95
2030 12
Thereafter —

$ 4,190
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As of September 30, 2025, the carrying value of goodwill totaled $259.0 million, of which all $259.0 million was related to our Dealerships reporting
segment. As of September 30, 2024, the carrying value of goodwill totaled $336.6 million, of which $295.3 million was related to our Dealerships reporting
segment and $41.3 million was related to our Distribution reporting segment.

9. Other Payables and Accrued Expenses

Other payables and accrued expenses consisted of the following:

($ in thousands) September 30, 2025 September 30, 2024
Payroll accrual $ 17,381 $ 16,720
Sales tax payable 4,724 3,626
Other payables and accrued expenses 11,472 12,428
Acquisition contingent consideration 5,684 6,162
Accrued interest 2,168 3,180
Total other payables and accrued expenses $ 41,429 § 42,116

10. Notes Payable — Floor Plan

The Company maintains an ongoing wholesale marine products inventory financing program with a syndicate of banks. The program is administered by
Wells Fargo Commercial Distribution Finance, LLC (“Wells Fargo”) as set forth in the Eighth Amended and Restated Inventory Financing Agreement entered
into by the Company and certain of its subsidiaries with Wells Fargo and the other financial institutions party thereto on November 14, 2023 (as amended from
time to time, the “Inventory Financing Facility”’). On November 13, 2024, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries entered into the Consent, Waiver and
Second Amendment to the Eighth Amended and Restated Inventory Financing Agreement with Wells Fargo and other lenders party thereto which, among other
things, (i) modified certain definitions, terms and conditions, (ii) adjusted the minimum fixed charge coverage ratio, (iii) adjusted the maximum funded debt to
EBITDA ratio, (iv) established a new minimum liquidity measure, (v) allowed for certain swap transactions to mitigate risk in the ordinary course of business,
and (vi) reduced the maximum borrowing capacity from $650.0 million to $595.0 million. As of September 30, 2025, the Inventory Financing Facility was
scheduled to expire on March 1, 2026. The outstanding balance of the facility was $419.7 million and $443.4 million, as of September 30, 2025 and 2024,
respectively. On November 17, 2025, the Company entered into the Third Amendment to Eighth Amended and Restated Inventory Financing Agreement,
Omnibus Amendment to Collateralized Guarantees, and First Amendment to Consent Agreement (the "Third Amendment") as discussed in Note 22.

Interest on new boats and rental units is calculated using the Adjusted 30-Day Average SOFR (as defined in the Inventory Financing Facility) (“SOFR”)
plus an applicable margin of 2.75% to 5.00% depending on the age of the inventory. Interest on pre-owned boats in calculated at the new boat rate plus 0.25%.
Wells Fargo will finance 100.0% of the vendor invoice price for new boats, engines, and trailers. As of September 30, 2025 the interest rate on the Inventory
Financing Facility ranged from 7.17% to 9.42% for new inventory and 7.42% to 9.67% for pre-owned inventory. As of September 30, 2024 the interest rate on
the Inventory Financing Facility ranged from 8.03% to 10.28% for new inventory and 8.28% to 10.53% for pre-owned inventory. Borrowing capacity available
at September 30, 2025 and September 30, 2024 was $175.3 million and $206.6 million, respectively.

The Inventory Financing Facility has certain financial and non-financial covenants as specified in the agreement. The financial covenants include
requirements to comply with a maximum funded debt to EBITDA ratio, a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio and a minimum liquidity measure (as defined
in the Inventory Financing Facility). In addition, certain non-financial covenants could restrict the Company’s ability to sell assets (excluding inventory in the
normal course of business), engage in certain mergers and acquisitions, incur additional debt and pay cash dividends or distributions, among others. The
Company was in compliance with all covenants for the reporting period ended September 30, 2025.

The collateral for the Inventory Financing Facility consists primarily of our inventory that is financed through the Inventory Financing Facility and related
assets, including accounts receivable, bank accounts and proceeds of the foregoing, and excludes the collateral that underlies the term note payable to Truist
Bank.

11. Long-term Debt and Line of Credit

On August 9, 2022, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries entered into the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the “A&R Credit Facility”) with
Truist Bank. The A&R Credit Facility provides for a $65.0 million revolving credit facility (the “A&R Revolving Facility”’) that may be used for revolving
credit loans (including up to $5.0 million in swingline loans and up to $5.0 million in letters of credit) and a $445.0 million term loan (the “A&R Term Loan”).
Subject to certain conditions, the available amount under the revolving credit facility and term loans may be increased by $125.0 million in the aggregate. As of
September 30, 2025, The A&R Credit Facility bears interest at a rate that is equal to Term SOFR plus an applicable margin ranging from 1.75% to 3.25% based
on certain consolidated leverage ratio measures.
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On November 13, 2024, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries entered into Amendment No. 6 to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and
Waiver and Amendment No. 1 to Pledge and Security Agreement with Truist Bank to, among other things, (i) modify certain definitions, terms and conditions,
(i1) adjust the minimum fixed charge coverage ratio, (iii) adjust the maximum leverage ratio measures, (iv) adjust the minimum liquidity measure, and (v)
modify the maturity date to be July 31, 2026, and in connection therewith, the repayment schedule. As of September 30, 2025, the A&R Term Loan was
repayable in installments beginning December 31, 2022, with the remainder due on July 31, 2026. On November 17, 2025, the Company entered into
Amendment No. 7 to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and Amendment to Pledge and Security Agreement as discussed in Note 22.

The A&R Credit Facility is collateralized by certain real and personal property (including certain capital stock) of the Company and its subsidiaries. The
collateral does not include inventory and certain other assets of the Company’s subsidiaries financed under the Inventory Financing Facility. The A&R Credit
Facility is subject to certain financial covenants related to the maintenance of a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio, a maximum consolidated leverage ratio
and a minimum liquidity measure. The A&R Credit Facility also contains non-financial covenants and restrictive provisions that, among other things, limit the
ability of the Company to incur additional debt, transfer or dispose of all of its assets, make certain investments, loans or payments and engage in certain
transactions with affiliates. The Company was in compliance with all covenants for the reporting period ended September 30, 2025.

Long-term debt consisted of the following at:

($ in thousands except monthly payment amounts) September 30, 2025 September 30, 2024

Term note payable to Truist Bank, secured and bearing interest at 7.25% at September 30, 2025 and
7.85% at September 30, 2024. The note requires quarterly principal payments commencing on
December 31, 2022 and maturing with a full repayment on July 31, 2026 $ 367,125 $ 375,469

Revolving note payable for an amount up to $65.0 million to Truist Bank, secured and bearing
interest at 7.56% at September 30, 2025 and 7.75% at September 30, 2024. The note requires full
repayment on July 31, 2026 47,229 51,150

Notes payable to commercial vehicle lenders secured by the value of the vehicles bearing interest at
rates ranging from 0.0% to 10.8% per annum. The notes require monthly installment payments of

principal and interest ranging from $200 to $3,100 through May 2032 1,549 2,561
Note payable to Norfolk Marine Company, unsecured and bearing interest at 4.0% per annum. The
note was paid in full on December 1, 2024. — 1,126
Total debt outstanding 415,903 430,306
Less current portion (net of current debt issuance costs) (77,895) (7,874)
Less unamortized portion of debt issuance costs (3,811) (7,498)
Long-term debt, net of current portion and unamortized debt issuance costs $ 334,197 § 414,934

Principal repayment requirements of long-term debt at September 30, 2025 are as follows (in thousands):

Year ending September 30,

2026 $ 81,706
2027 334,052
2028 78
2029 42
2030 19
Thereafter $ 6

Total principal payments $ 415,903

Debt issuance costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the loan, which approximates the effective interest method. During the fiscal
years ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, the Company capitalized loan costs of $0.9 million and $2.2 million, respectively. Amortization for the years ended
September 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023 amounted to $4.6 million, $2.1 million and $2.2 million, respectively, and is included in interest expense - other in the
consolidated statements of operations.

As of September 30, 2025 and 2024, the Company had $2.8 million and $1.6 million, respectively, in letters of credit outstanding under the A&R
Revolving Facility.
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12. Derivative and Hedging Instruments

The Company is subject to interest rate risk as a result of required interest payments of the Inventory Financing Facility and A&R Credit Facility. The
Company has two interest rate swap agreements which are designed to provide a hedge against changes in variable rate cash flows regarding fluctuations in the
SOFR and Term SOFR rates which are used in calculating interest payments. The following table provides information on the attributes of each swap as of
September 30, 2025:

Inception Date Hedged Rate Notional Value at Inception (in thousands) Maturity Date
September 2024 SOFR $ 200,000 September 2027
September 2024 Term SOFR $ 200,000 September 2027

The fair value of the cash flow swaps is calculated using an income approach. The income approach involves using the quoted price for economically
equivalent inputs or valuation methodologies, assumptions and inputs, which in the case of projected future cash flows, discount such cash flows to a single net
present value amount. The following table provides information regarding the fair value of the interest rate swap agreements and the impact on the consolidated
balance sheets at ($ in thousands):

Balance Sheet Location September 30, 2025 September 30, 2024
Prepaid expenses and other current assets $ 532 % 1,560

Other long-term liabilities (1,448) (3,626)
Net asset (liability) $ 916) $ (2,066)

The interest rate swaps qualify for cash flow hedge accounting treatment. The interest rate swaps are marked to market each reporting date and any
unrealized gains or losses, and the related income tax effects, are included in accumulated other comprehensive loss and reclassified into earnings in the same
period during which the hedged transactions affect earnings. Information about the effect of the interest swap agreements in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations and consolidated statements of comprehensive loss, is as follows ($ in thousands):

Gain or (Loss) Recognized in Location of Gain or (Loss)
Accumulated Other Reclassified from Accumulated Gain or (Loss) Reclassified from
Comprehensive Loss (effective Other Comprehensive Loss to Accumulated Other
Year Ended September 30, Portion) Earnings Comprehensive Loss to Earnings
Interest expense — other and Interest
2025 $ 4,926 expense — floor plan $ 3,776
Interest expense — other and Interest
2024 (2,066) expense — floor plan —

Location and Amount of Gain or (Loss) Reclassified from
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss to Earnings

Year Ended September 30, Interest expense — other Interest expense — floor plan
2025 $ 1,806 $ 1,970
2024 — _

As of September 30, 2025, the amount expected to be reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive loss into earnings during the next 12 months is
a gain of $0.5 million. The ultimate amount recognized will vary based on fluctuations of interest rates through the maturity dates.
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13. Stockholders’ Equity
Equity-Based Compensation

We maintain the OneWater Marine Inc. Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “LTIP”) to incentivize individuals providing services to OneWater Inc and its
subsidiaries and affiliates. The LTIP provides for the grant, from time to time, at the discretion of the board of directors of OneWater Marine Inc. (the “Board”)
or a committee thereof, of (1) stock options, (2) stock appreciation rights, (3) restricted stock, (4) restricted stock units, (5) stock awards, (6) dividend
equivalents, (7) other stock-based awards, (8) cash awards, (9) substitute awards and (10) performance awards. The total number of shares reserved for
issuance under the LTIP that may be issued pursuant to incentive stock options (which generally are stock options that meet the requirements of Section 422 of
the Code) is 1,637,399. The LTIP is and will continue to be administered by the Board, except to the extent the Board elects a committee of directors to
administer the LTIP. Class A common stock subject to an award that expires or is cancelled, forfeited, exchanged, settled in cash or otherwise terminated
without delivery of shares (including forfeiture of restricted stock awards) and shares withheld to pay the exercise price of, or to satisfy the withholding
obligations with respect to, an award will again be available for delivery pursuant to other awards under the LTIP.

2025 Awards

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2025, the Board approved the grant of 152,072 performance-based restricted stock units, which represents
100% of the target award. Performance-based restricted stock units provide an opportunity for the recipient to receive a number of shares of our common stock
based on our performance goals. A performance-based restricted stock unit equals one share of common stock of the Company. The performance-based
restricted stock units vest in three equal annual installments commencing on October 1, 2025. As of September 30, 2025, the Company achieved 152% of the
performance target.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2025, the Board approved the grant of 211,978 time-based restricted stock units. Of this amount, 36,596
restricted stock units fully vest on October 1, 2025 and the remaining 175,382 restricted stock units vest in three equal annual installments commencing on
October 1, 2025.

Compensation cost for time-based restricted stock units is based on the closing price of our common stock on the date immediately preceding the grant and
is recognized on a graded basis over the applicable vesting periods. Compensation cost for performance share units is based on the closing price of our
common stock on the date immediately preceding the grant and the ultimate performance level achieved and is recognized on a graded basis over the applicable
vesting period. The Company recognized $10.0 million, $7.9 million and $8.2 million of compensation expense for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2025,
2024 and 2023, respectively, which includes $5.1 million, $2.9 million, and $3.5 million of compensation expense for the fiscal years ended September 30,
2025, 2024 and 2023, respectively, for performance-based units.

The following table further summarizes activity related to restricted stock units for the years ended September 30, 2025 and 2024:

Restricted Stock Unit Awards

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair
Number of Shares Value ($)
Unvested at September 30, 2023 524,785 $ 28.86
Awarded 346,481 25.62
Vested (318,934) 28.22
Forfeited (10,213) 27.19
Unvested at September 30, 2024 542,119 27.20
Awarded 364,050 2391
Vested (243,352) 27.48
Forfeited (4,999) 25.19
Unvested at September 30, 2025 657,818 $ 25.29

As of September 30, 2025, the total unrecognized compensation expense related to outstanding equity awards was $5.0 million, which the Company
expects to recognize over a weighted-average period of 1.2 years.

We issue shares of our Class A common stock upon the vesting of performance-based restricted stock units and time-based restricted stock units. These
shares are issued from our authorized and not outstanding common stock. In addition, in connection with the vesting of restricted stock units, we repurchase a
portion of shares equal to the amount of employee income tax withholding. We recognize forfeitures of performance-based restricted stock units and time-
based restricted stock units as the forfeitures occur.
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Net Loss Per Share

Basic and diluted net loss per share of Class A common stock is computed by dividing net loss attributable to OneWater Inc by the weighted-average
number of shares of Class A common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted net loss per share is computed by giving effect to all potentially dilutive
shares.

The following table sets forth the calculation of net loss per share for the years ended September 30, 2025, 2024, and 2023 (in thousands, except per share
data):

Net loss per share: 2025 2024 2023
Numerator:

Net loss attributable to OneWater Inc $ (114,582) $ (5,705) $ (38,592)
Denominator:

Weighted-average number of unrestricted outstanding common shares used to
calculate basic net loss per share 15,869 14,585 14,328

Effect of dilutive securities:
Restricted stock units — _ _

Employee stock purchase plan — — -

Diluted weighted-average shares of Class A common stock outstanding used to

calculate diluted net loss per share 15,869 14,585 14,328
Net loss per share of Class A common stock — basic $ (7.22) $ (0.39) $ (2.69)
Net loss per share of Class A common stock — diluted $ (7.22) $ 0.39) $ (2.69)

Shares of Class B common stock and unvested restricted stock units do not share in the income (losses) of the Company and are therefore not participating
securities. As such, separate presentation of basic and diluted net loss per share of Class B common stock under the two-class method has not been presented.

The following number of weighted-average potentially dilutive shares were excluded from the calculation of diluted net loss per share because the effect of
including such potentially dilutive shares would have been antidilutive upon conversion (in thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
September 30, 2025 September 30, 2024 September 30, 2023
Class B common stock 446 1,430 1,430
Restricted stock units 347 577 598
Employee Stock Purchase Plan 7 30 4
800 2,037 2,032

On March 30, 2022, the Board approved a share repurchase program up to $50.0 million. No shares of Class A common stock were repurchased by the
Company during the year ended September 30, 2025. As of September 30, 2025 the Company has repurchased and retired 73,487 shares of Class A common
stock under the repurchase program for a purchase price of approximately $1.9 million. As of September 30, 2025, approximately $48.1 million remained
available for future purchase under the repurchase program. The repurchase program does not have a predetermined expiration date.

Any such share repurchases may be subject to a U.S. federal excise tax. Subject to certain exceptions and adjustments, the amount of the excise tax is
generally 1% of the aggregate fair market value of the shares of stock repurchased by the corporation during a taxable year, net of the aggregate fair market
value of certain new stock issuances by the repurchasing corporation during the same taxable year. In the past, there have been proposals to increase the
amount of the excise tax from 1% to 4%; however, it is unclear whether such a change in the amount of the excise tax will be enacted and, if enacted, how soon
any change would take effect.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

At the Company’s 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Annual Meeting”), held on February 23, 2021, the Company’s stockholders approved the
OneWater Marine Inc. 2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”), which was approved and adopted by the Board as of January 13, 2021 (the
“Adoption Date”), subject to stockholder approval at the Annual Meeting. The effective date of the ESPP is February 23, 2021, and, unless earlier terminated,
the ESPP will expire on the twentieth anniversary of the Adoption Date. The ESPP will be administered by the Board or by one or more committees to which
the Board delegates such administration.
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The ESPP enables eligible employees to purchase shares of the Company’s Class A common stock at a discount through participation in discrete offering
periods. The ESPP is intended to qualify as an employee stock purchase plan under section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Up to a
maximum of 510,145 additional shares of the Company’s Class A common stock may be issued under the ESPP as of September 30, 2025, subject to certain
adjustments as set forth in the ESPP. On the first day of each fiscal year during the term of the ESPP, beginning on October 1, and ending on (and including)
September 30, the number of shares of Class A common stock that may be issued under the ESPP will increase by a number of shares equal to the least of (i)
1% of the outstanding shares on the Adoption Date, or (ii) such lesser number of shares (including zero) that the administrator determines for purposes of the
annual increase for that fiscal year. The number of shares of Class A common stock that may be granted to any single participant in any single option period
will be subject to certain limitations set forth in the plan.

The Company recorded equity-based compensation for the ESPP of $0.5 million, $0.6 million and $0.7 million during the years ended September 30,
2025, 2024 and 2023, respectively. As of September 30, 2025 and 2024, we had current liabilities of $0.2 million and $0.3 million. respectively, for future
purchases of shares under the ESPP. During the year ended September 30, 2025, 93,477 shares were issued under the ESPP at an average price per share of
$12.69. During the year ended September 30, 2024, 59,089 shares were issued under the ESPP at an average price per share of $25.72.

We used a Black-Scholes model to estimate the fair value of the options granted to purchase shares issued pursuant to the ESPP. Volatility is based on the
historical volatility of our common stock. The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual term of the options is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in

effect at the time of grant.

The following are the assumptions used for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023:

2025 2024 2023
Dividend yield 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 %
Risk-free interest rate 43-54% 52-55% 4.8-55%
Volatility 55.0 - 68.0% 37.6 - 62.7% 37.6 - 45.6%
Expected life Six months Six months Six months

Distributions
During the fiscal years ended September 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023, OneWater LLC made distributions to its members for certain permitted tax payments.
Non-Controlling Interest

As discussed in Note 1, OneWater Inc consolidates the financial results of OneWater LLC and its subsidiaries. Prior to March 31, 2025, OneWater Inc
reported non-controlling interests attributable to the portion of OneWater LLC Units not owned by OneWater Inc. Holders of OneWater LLC Units could
exchange their LLC Units, together with the cancellation of an equal number of shares of Class B common stock of OneWater Inc, for shares of Class A
common stock of OneWater Inc on a one-for-one basis or, at OneWater LLC’s election, cash. During the year ended September 30, 2025, the remaining
OneWater LLC Units were exchanged for 1,429,940 shares of Class A common stock of OneWater Inc., and the corresponding remaining 1,429,940 shares of
Class B common stock of OneWater Inc. were cancelled. As of September 30, 2025, OneWater Inc owns 100.0% of the economic interest of OneWater LLC
and, accordingly, going forward will no longer report a non-controlling interest related to OneWater LLC Units.

As discussed in Note 4, the Company acquired an 80% economic interest in Quality Boats during the year ended September 30, 2022. The Company had
the exclusive right, but not obligation, to acquire the remaining 20% economic interest at any time before January 1, 2027. On October 31, 2023, the Company
exercised the right to acquire the remaining 20% economic interest in Quality Boats.

14. Retirement Plan

The Company offers a 401(k) retirement plan to its full-time employees over the age of 21. The Company currently makes discretionary matching
contributions of 50.0% for the first 4.0% of employee salary deferrals. The Company made discretionary contributions of $2.9 million, $2.7 million and $2.6
million for the years ended September 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

15. Fair Value Measurements

In determining fair value, the Company uses various valuation approaches including market, income and/or cost approaches. FASB standard “Fair Value
Measurements” (Topic 820) establishes a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use
of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be used when available. Observable inputs are inputs that market participants would use in
pricing the asset or liability developed based on market data obtained from independent sources. Unobservable inputs are those that reflect the Company’s
expectation of the assumptions market participants
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would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information available in the circumstances. The hierarchy is broken down into three
levels based on the reliability of inputs as follows:

Level 1 — Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access. Assets utilizing
Level 1 inputs include marketable securities that are actively traded.

Level 2 — Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 — Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement. Asset and liability measurements utilizing
Level 3 inputs include those used in estimating fair value of non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities in purchase acquisitions, those used in
assessing impairment of property and equipment and other intangibles, and those used in the reporting unit valuation in the annual goodwill impairment
evaluation and contingent consideration.

The availability of observable inputs can vary and is affected by a wide variety of factors. To the extent that valuation is based on models or inputs that are
less observable or unobservable in the market, the determination of fair value requires more judgment. Accordingly, the degree of judgment required in
determining fair value is greatest for assets and liabilities categorized in Level 3. In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different
levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure purposes, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is
disclosed is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Fair value measurements can be volatile based on
various factors that may or may not be within the Company’s control.

The following tables summarize the Company’s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as
of September 30:

2025
($ in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Investment in equity securities $ 67 $ — 3 — 3 67
Derivative and hedging instruments — 532 532
Liabilities:
Contingent consideration — — 6,684 6,684
Derivative and hedging instruments — 1,448 — 1,448
2024
($ in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Investment in equity securities $ 128 $ — — 3 128
Derivative and hedging instruments — 1,560 1,560
Liabilities:
Contingent consideration — — 15,161 15,161
Derivative and hedging instruments — 3,626 — 3,626

There were no transfers between the valuation hierarchy Levels 1, 2, and 3 for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2025, and 2024.
We measure all equity investments that do not result in consolidation and are not accounted for under the equity method at fair value with the change in

fair value included in other expense (income), net, in the consolidated statements of operations. The fair value of equity investments is measured using quoted
prices in its active markets. The investment in equity securities balance is recorded in other long-term assets in the consolidated balance sheets.
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The portion of unrealized losses recognized related to equity securities still held as of September 30 consists of the following:

Year Ended September Year Ended September Year Ended September
30, 30, 30,
($ in thousands) 2025 2024 2023

Net losses recognized during the period on equity securities $ 61 $ 198 § 446

Less: net losses recognized during the period on equity securities sold
during the period — — _

Unrealized losses recognized during the reporting period on equity
securities still held at the reporting date $ 61 § 198 $ 446

We estimate the fair value of contingent consideration using a probability-weighted discounted cash flow model based on forecasted future earnings or
other agreed upon metrics including the production of acquisition leads. The acquisition contingent consideration liability has been accounted for based on
inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement (Level 3). The contingent consideration balance is recorded in other payables
and accrued expenses and other long-term liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. Changes in fair value and net present value of contingent consideration
are recorded in change in fair value of contingent consideration in the consolidated statements of operations. The fair value of contingent consideration is
reassessed on a quarterly basis.

The following table sets forth the changes in fair value of our contingent consideration for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2025 and 2024:

($ in thousands) Contingent Consideration
Balance as of September 30, 2023 $ 21,181
Additions from acquisitions —
Settlement of contingent consideration (10,268)
Change in fair value, including accretion 4,248
Balance as of September 30, 2024 15,161
Additions from acquisitions —
Settlement of contingent consideration (6,344)
Change in fair value, including accretion (2,133)
Balance as of September 30, 2025 $ 6,684

We determined the carrying value of our cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, other payables and accrued expenses, floor plan
notes payable, term note payable with Truist Bank, seller notes payable and company vehicle notes payable approximate their fair values because of the nature
of their terms and current market rates of these instruments. Derivative and hedging instruments are recorded at fair value as discussed in Note 12.
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16. Restructuring and Impairment

During year ended September 30, 2025, the Company recorded impairment charges to adjust the carrying value of the goodwill and identifiable intangible
assets to fair value (the "2025 Impairment") as discussed in Note 8. Additionally, during year ended September 30, 2025, the Company underwent various
restructuring actions, primarily a reduction of headcount, closure of certain locations and inventory adjustments related to the cancellation of certain dealer
agreements. As a result of the 2025 Impairment and the restructuring activities, the Company recognized $149.7 million of restructuring and impairment
charges during the year ended September 30, 2025, of which $148.1 million is recorded in restructuring and impairment and $1.6 million is recorded in new
boat cost of sales in the consolidated statement of operations. Of the $149.7 million of restructuring charges, $50.0 million and $99.7 million is reported in the

Dealership and Distribution reporting segments, respectively. See Note 8 for more information about the impairment of goodwill and identifiable intangible
assets.

In March 2024, the Company evaluated its operations and decided to undergo a restructuring plan (the "2024 Restructuring") which resulted in the
reduction of headcount and retail locations, cancellation of certain dealer agreements, and the cancellation of certain in-progress information and technology
related projects. As a result of the 2024 Restructuring, during the year ended September 30, 2024 the Company recognized $15.3 million of charges, of which
$12.4 million is recorded in restructuring and impairment, $1.8 million is recorded in new boat cost of sales and $1.1 million is recorded in service, parts &
other cost of sales in the consolidated statement of operations. Of the $15.3 million of charges related to the 2024 Restructuring, $13.0 million and $2.3 million

is reported in the Dealerships and Distribution reporting segment, respectively. No charges related to the 2024 Restructuring were recorded during the years
ended September 30, 2025 and 2023.

During the year ended September 2023, the Company recorded impairment charges to adjust the carrying value of the goodwill and identifiable intangible
assets to fair value (the "2023 Impairment"). As a result of the 2023 Impairment, during the year ended September 30, 2023 the Company recognized a loss of
$147.4 million, which is recorded in restructuring and impairment on the consolidated statement of operations. Of the $147.4 million impairment loss, $6.5
million and $140.9 million is reported in the Dealerships and Distribution reporting segment, respectively.

17. Income Taxes

The Company is a corporation and, as a result is subject to U.S. federal, state and local income taxes. OneWater LLC is treated as a pass-through entity for
U.S. federal tax purposes and in most state and local jurisdictions. As such, OneWater LLC’s members, including the Company, are liable for federal and state
income taxes on their respective shares of OneWater LLC’s taxable income.

The components of income tax (benefit) expense are:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30,
($ in thousands) 2025 2024 2023
Current:
Federal $ 93 § (424) $ 16,184
State 457 601 3,434
Foreign = = =
550 177 19,618
Deferred:
Federal (30,411) (152) (19,171)
State (5,440) (182) (3,859)
Foreign — — —
(35,851) (334) (23,030)
Income tax (benefit) expense $ (35,301) (157) $ (3,412)
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A reconciliation of the United States statutory income tax rate to the Company’s effective income tax rate is as follows:

For the Years Ended September 30,

2024 2023

Statutory federal tax rate 21.0 % 21.0 % 21.0 %
Income attributable to non-controlling interests and nontaxable income 0.2) (1.3) 0.2)
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 34 2.4) 33
Non-deductible items (1.1) (23.3) —
Federal and state credits 0.4 10.1 —
Loss on impairment — — (11.4)
Other 0.1) (1.7) “4.7)

Effective income tax rate 23.4% 2.4 % 8.0 %

Details of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

($ in thousands) September 30, 2025 September 30, 2024
Deferred tax assets:

Investment in partnerships $ 51,030 24,496

Tax receivable agreement 9,265 10,071

Net operating loss 8,130 1,216

Other 4,162 1,495

Total 72,587 37,278

Valuation allowance — —
Total deferred tax assets 72,587 37,278
Deferred tax liabilities:

Fixed assets $ — —

Intangibles — —

Other — —
Total deferred tax liabilities — —
Deferred tax assets, net $ 72,587 37,278

The Company had federal net operating loss carryforwards from underlying corporate entities of approximately $32.0 million and $4.3 million resulting in
a deferred tax asset of $6.7 million and $0.9 million as of September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards have
no expiration but can only be used to offset up to 80% of future taxable income annually. As a result of various state net operating loss carryforwards, the
Company had deferred tax assets of $1.4 million and $0.3 million as of September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The state net operating loss carryforward
period varies by state, as well as conformity to the 80% limitation. The Company projects to fully utilize the net operating losses in subsequent fiscal years.

The Company has IRC Section 163(j) interest expense carryforward of approximately $9.7 million and $3.7 million as of September 30, 2025 and 2024,
respectively, resulting in a deferred tax asset of $2.4 million and $0.9 million as of September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The Company also recorded an
additional deferred tax asset of $0.2 million related to state 163(j) interest expense carryforwards as of September 30, 2025. The Section 163(j) interest expense
carryforward has no expiration.

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets to the extent it believes these assets are more-likely-than-not to be realized. In making such a determination,
the Company considers all available positive and negative evidence, including future reversals of existing temporary differences, projected future taxable
income, tax planning strategies and recent results of operations. Based on our cumulative earnings history and forecasted future sources of taxable income, we
believe that we will fully realize our deferred tax assets in the future. The Company has not recorded a valuation allowance.

As of September 30, 2025 and 2024, the Company has not recognized any uncertain tax positions, penalties, or interest as management has concluded that
no such positions exist. The Company is subject to examination in the US Federal and certain state tax jurisdictions for the tax years beginning with the year
ended December 31, 2020. In November 2024, the Company received notification that the Florida Department of Revenue intended to commence a corporate
income tax audit of OneWater Inc for the tax years ended September 30, 2021, 2022 and 2023. The Company received a letter from the Florida Department of
Revenue in September 2025 noting the audit was complete with no significant adjustments.
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Tax Receivable Agreement

In connection with the IPO, the Company entered into a tax receivable agreement (the “Tax Receivable Agreement”) with certain of the owners of
OneWater LLC. As of September 30, 2025 and 2024, our undiscounted liability under the Tax Receivable Agreement was $37.5 million and $40.6 million,
respectively, representing 85% of the calculated net cash savings in U.S. federal, state and local income tax and franchise tax that OneWater Inc anticipates
realizing in future years from the result of certain increases in tax basis and certain tax benefits attributable to imputed interest as a result of OneWater Inc’s
acquisition of OneWater LLC Units pursuant to an exercise of the Redemption Right or the Call Right (each as defined in the fourth amended and restated
limited liability company agreement of OneWater LLC (the “OneWater LLC Agreement”)).

The projection of future taxable income involves significant judgment. Actual taxable income may differ from our estimates, which could significantly
impact our ability to make payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement. We have determined it is more-likely-than-not that we will be able to utilize all of
our deferred tax assets subject to the Tax Receivable Agreement; therefore, we have recorded a liability under the Tax Receivable Agreement related to the tax
savings we may realize from certain increases in tax basis and certain tax benefits attributable to imputed interest as a result of OneWater Inc’s acquisition of
OneWater LLC Units pursuant to an exercise of the Redemption Right or Call Right (each as defined in the OneWater LLC Agreement). If we determine the
utilization of these deferred tax assets is not more-likely-than-not in the future, our estimate of amounts to be paid under the Tax Receivable Agreement would
be reduced. In this scenario, the reduction of the liability under the Tax Receivable Agreement would result in a benefit to our consolidated statements of
operations.

18. Commitments and Contingencies
Employment Agreements

The Company is party to employment agreements with certain executives, which provide for compensation, other benefits and severance payments under
certain circumstances. The Company also has consulting and noncompete agreements in place with previous owners of acquired companies.

Claims and Litigation

The Company is involved in various legal proceedings as either the defendant or plaintiff. Due to their nature, such legal proceedings involve inherent
uncertainties including, but not limited to, court rulings, negotiations between the affected parties and other actions. Management assesses the probability of
losses or gains for such contingencies and accrues a liability and/or discloses the relevant circumstances as appropriate. In the opinion of management, it is not
reasonably probable that the pending litigation, disputes or claims against the Company, as of September 30, 2025, will have a material adverse effect on its
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. However, the outcome of any matter cannot be predicted with certainty, and an unfavorable resolution
of one or more matters presently known or arising in the future could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, liquidity or results
of operations.

Risk Management

The Company is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions and natural disasters
for which the Company carries commercial insurance. There have been no significant reductions in coverage from the prior year and settlements have not
exceeded coverage in past years.

19. Leases

The Company leases real estate and equipment under operating lease agreements. Leases with an initial term of 12 months or less are not recorded on the
balance sheet. We recognize lease expense for these leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term. For leases with terms in excess of 12 months, we record
a right-of-use (“ROU”) asset and lease liability based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term. We do not have any significant leases that
have not yet commenced that create significant rights and obligations for us. The Company has elected the practical expedient not to separate lease and non-
lease components for all leases that qualify.

Our real estate and equipment leases often require payment of maintenance, real estate taxes and insurance. These costs are generally variable and based
on actual costs incurred by the lessor. These amounts are not included in the consideration of the contract when determining the ROU asset and lease liability
but are reflected as variable lease payments.

Most leases include one or more options to renew, with renewal terms that can extend the lease from one to ten or more years. The exercise of the lease
renewal option is typically at our sole discretion. If it is reasonably certain that we will exercise the option to renew, the period covered by the options are
included in the lease term and are recognized as part of our ROU assets and lease liabilities. Certain leases include the option to purchase the leased property.
The depreciable life of assets and leasehold improvements are limited by the expected lease term, which includes renewal options reasonably certain to be
exercised. As of September 30, 2025, our weighted-average lease term on operating leases was 8.7 years.
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Certain of our lease agreements include rental payments based on percentage of retail sales over contractual levels and others include rental payments
adjusted periodically based on index rates. Our lease agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees or material restrictive covenants.

When available, the implicit rate is utilized to discount lease payments to present value; however, none of our leases provide a readily determinable
implicit rate, therefore we use our incremental borrowing rate to discount the lease payments based on information available at lease commencement. The
incremental borrowing rate represents an estimate of the interest rate we would incur at lease commencement to borrow an amount equal to the lease payments
on a collateralized basis over the term of the lease. As of September 30, 2025, our weighted average discount rate on operating leases was 5.7%.

The following table provides certain information related to lease costs for operating leases:

For the Years Ended September 30,

($ in thousands) 2025 2024 2023

Operating lease cost $ 24,675 $ 23,336 $ 21,332

Short-term and variable lease cost 8,265 6,415 6,062
$ 32,940 $ 29,751 $ 27,394

The following table presents supplemental cash flow information for leases:

For the Years Ended September 30,

($ in thousands) 2025 2024 2023
Cash paid for amounts included in measurement of lease liabilities:

Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 17,652 $ 17,168 $ 20,704
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities $ 7,801 $ 20,330 $ 27,128

The following table provides the maturities of our operating lease liabilities as of September 30, 2025:

($ in thousands) Operating Leases
Year ending September 30,
2026 $ 23,233
2027 22,196
2028 22,292
2029 19,962
2030 17,247
Thereafter 65,440
Total minimum lease payments 170,370
Less:
Present value adjustment (37,778)
Operating lease liabilities $ 132,592

20. Related Party Transactions

In accordance with agreements approved by the Board, we purchased inventory, in conjunction with our retail sale of the products, from certain entities
affiliated with the Company. For the years ended September 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023, $136.6 million, $124.4 million and $94.3 million, respectively, in total
purchases were incurred under these arrangements.

In accordance with agreements approved by the Board, certain entities affiliated with the Company receive fees for rent of commercial property. For the
years ended September 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023, $3.6 million, $2.5 million and $2.1 million, respectively, in total expenses were incurred under these
arrangements. Additionally, see Note 4 for information regarding a sale and leaseback transaction with an entity affiliated with the Company in connection with
an acquisition by the Company.

In accordance with agreements approved by the Board, the Company received fees from certain entities and individuals affiliated with the Company for

goods and services. For the years ended September 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023, $3.5 million, $4.0 million and $1.1 million, respectively, were recorded under
these arrangements.
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In accordance with agreements approved by the Board, the Company made payments to certain entities and individuals affiliated with the Company for
goods and services. For the years ended September 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023, $0.2 million, $0.1 million and $0.1 million, respectively, were recorded under
these arrangements.

In connection with transactions noted above, the Company owed $4.9 million and $6.0 million as recorded within accounts payable on the consolidated
balance sheets at September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

In connection with the Tax Receivable Agreement, the Company made payments to certain entities and individuals affiliated with the Company. For the
years ended September 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023, $2.4 million, $2.4 million and $2.2 million, respectively, in total payments were made under the agreement.
In connection with the Tax Receivable Agreement, the Company owed $33.5 million and $36.2 million as recorded within current portion of tax receivable
agreement liability and tax receivable agreement liability on the consolidated balance sheets at September 30, 2025 and 2024 respectively. See further
discussion of our Tax Receivable Agreement in Note 17.

21. Segment Information

We report our operations through two reportable segments: (1) Dealerships and (2) Distribution. See Note 2 for more information about our segments. The
Company evaluates performance and allocates resources for all of its reportable segments based on metrics such as segment revenues and segment income.
These segment profit metrics are consistent across all segments. The significant expense categories and amounts align with the segment-level information that

is regularly provided to the CODM.

Reportable segment financial information for the years ended September 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023 is as follows:

Dealerships: For the Year Ended September 30,
2025 2024 2023
Revenues:
New boat $ 1,158,165 $ 1,118,292 § 1,223,691
Pre-owned boat 363,906 312,193 334,477
Finance & insurance income 54,959 51,494 56,325
Service, parts & other 147,951 134,591 140,734
Total revenues 1,724,981 1,616,570 1,755,227

Cost of sales:

New boat (1) 973,411 919,596 955,222
Pre-owned boat 298,361 248,068 258,524
Service, parts & other 72,924 65,479 65,927
Total cost of sales 1,344,696 1,233,143 1,279,673
Selling, general and administrative expenses (2) 283,215 276,113 286,426
Interest expense - floor plan 28,469 34,087 25,080
Segment income $ 68,601 $ 73227 $ 164,048

(1) Cost of sales - new boat excludes restructuring and impairment charges.

(2) Selling, general and administrative expenses exclude equity-based compensation.

Distribution: For the Year Ended September 30,
2025 2024 2023

Revenues:

Service, parts & other $ 147353 §$ 156,060 $ 181,083
Cost of sales:

Service, parts & other (1) 96,271 98,706 118,621
Selling, general and administrative expenses 49,571 48,124 50,137
Segment income $ 1,511 $ 9,230 $ 12,325

(1) Cost of sales - Service, parts & other excludes depreciation and amortization and restructuring and impairment charges
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For the Year Ended September 30,

Reconciliation of segment income: 2025 2024 2023
Dealership segment income 68,601 $ 73,227 $ 164,048
Distribution segment income 1,511 9,230 12,325
Segment income 70,112 82,457 176,373
Interest expense - other (36,183) (37,050) (34,557)
Restructuring and impairment (149,678) (15,318) (147,400)
Change in fair value of contingent consideration 2,133 (4,248) 1,604
Equity-based compensation (10,499) (8,443) (8,962)
Transaction costs (1,547) (1,530) (1,839)
Depreciation and amortization (24,440) (22,187) (26,789)
Other expense, net (1,429) (14) (953)
Net (loss) income before income tax (benefit) expense (151,531) $ (6,333) $ (42,523)
For the Year Ended September 30,
Interest expense - other: 2025 2024 2023
Dealership segment 36,183 $ 37,050 $ 34,557
Distribution segment — — —
Total interest expense - other 36,183 $ 37,050 $ 34,557
As of September 30,
Assets: 2025 2024
Dealership segment $ 1,276,806 $ 1,357,638
Distribution segment 127,019 232,351
Total Assets $ 1,403,825 $ 1,589,989

22. Subsequent events

Management evaluated events occurring subsequent to September 30, 2025 and other than as noted below determined that no material recognizable
subsequent events occurred.

On November 17, 2025, Company entered into Amendment No. 7 to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and Amendment to Pledge and Security
Agreement to, among other things, (i) modify certain definitions, terms and conditions, (ii) modify the maturity date to be July 31, 2027, and in connection
therewith, the repayment schedule, including certain adjustments to applicable interest rates, (iii) adjust the minimum fixed charge coverage ratio, (iv) adjust
the maximum leverage ratio measures, and (v) adjust the minimum liquidity measure.

On November 17, 2025, the Company entered into the Third Amendment to, among other things, (i) modify certain definitions, terms and conditions, (ii)
adjust the maximum funded debt to EBITDA ratio, (iii) adjust the minimum fixed charge coverage ratio, (iv) adjust the minimum liquidity measure, (v) permit
certain consignment agreements entered into in the normal course of business, (vi) modify the termination date of the Third Agreement to be March 1, 2027
and (vii) adjust the maximum borrowing capacity to $497.1 million and permit an additional $38.7 million in availability for overtrade capacity.

On November 25, 2025, the Company's Board of Directors approved a plan to sell certain operations of the Distribution reporting segment. The sale is
subject to working capital and other adjustments and is expected to close prior to March 31, 2026. Proceeds from the transaction will be used for a payment on
the A&R Credit Facility. These operations met the criteria to be classified as held for sale during the first fiscal quarter of 2026 which will require the related
assets and liabilities to be recorded at the lower of carrying value or fair value less any costs to sell based on the expected purchase price. The Company is
currently in the process of evaluating the potential impact the sale will have on the consolidated financial statements.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including the Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer, we
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on this evaluation, our Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of such date. No system of controls, no matter how well designed and operated, can
provide absolute assurance that the objectives of the system of controls are met, and no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that the system of
controls has operated effectively in all cases. Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the objectives of
disclosure controls and procedures are met and to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to management, including the Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-
15(f) and 15(d)-15(f) under the Exchange Act. The Company’s management assessed the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2025. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013). Based on this assessment, management has concluded that, as of September 30, 2025,
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) during the three months ended
September 30, 2025 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm
The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting has been audited by Grant Thornton LLP, an independent registered public
accounting firm, as stated in their attestation report appearing below, which expresses an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2025.
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
Board of Directors and Stockholders
OneWater Marine Inc.

Opinion on internal control over financial reporting

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of OneWater Marine Inc. (a Delaware corporation) and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
September 30, 2025, based on criteria established in the 2013 Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as
of September 30, 2025, based on criteria established in the 2013 Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”), the consolidated

financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended September 30, 2025, and our report dated December 15, 2025, expressed an unqualified
opinion on those financial statements.
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Basis for opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered
with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules
and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and limitations of internal control over financial reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s GRANT THORNTON LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
December 15, 2025

Item 9B. Other Information.
Insider Trading Arrangements and Policies.

The Company has an insider trading policy and procedures that govern the purchase, sale and other dispositions of its securities by directors, officers and
employees. We believe these policies and procedures are reasonably designed to promote compliance with insider trading laws, rules and regulations and
applicable listing standards.

Disclosure of 10b5-1 Plans

During the three months ended September 30, 2025, no director or officer of the Company adopted or terminated a "Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement" or
"non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement," as each term is defined in Item 408(a) of Regulation S-K.

Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections.

None.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information that will be contained in our proxy statement related to the
2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which we intend to file with the SEC within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year pursuant to General Instruction G(3)
of Form 10-K.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information that will be contained in our proxy statement related to the
2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which we intend to file with the SEC within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year pursuant to General Instruction G(3)
of Form 10-K.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information that will be contained in our proxy statement related to the
2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which we intend to file with the SEC within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year pursuant to General Instruction G(3)
of Form 10-K.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information that will be contained in our proxy statement related to the
2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which we intend to file with the SEC within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year pursuant to General Instruction G(3)
of Form 10-K.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.
The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information that will be contained in our proxy statement related to the

2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which we intend to file with the SEC within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year pursuant to General Instruction G(3)
of Form 10-K.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.
(a) The following documents are filed as part of the report:
(1) Financial Statements

See the table of contents under “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K above for the list of
financial statements filed as part of this report.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules have been omitted as they are either not required or not applicable or the required information is included in the Consolidated Financial
Statements or notes thereto.

(3) See Item 15(b) (b) Exhibits:

Exhibit
Number Description

NS

.1 Master Reorganization Agreement, dated as of February 11, 2020, by and among One Water Marine Holdings, LLC, One Water Assets &
Operations, LLC, OneWater Marine Inc. and the other parties thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on February 18, 2020).

2.2¥% Agreement and Plan of Merger, by and among Ocean Bio-Chem, Inc., OneWater Marine Inc. and OBCMS, Inc., dated as of June 21, 2022
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission
on June 22, 2022).

3.1 Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of OneWater Marine Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on February 27, 2023).

32 Third Amended and Restated Bylaws of OneWater Marine Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report
on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on March 2, 2023).

4.1 Description of OneWater Marine Inc.’s Class A common stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Annual Report
on Form 10-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on December 14, 2023).

4.2 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of February 11, 2020, by and among OneWater Marine Inc. and the stockholders named therein
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission
on February 18, 2020).

10.1% OneWater Marine Inc. 2020 Omnibus Incentive Plan (as amended on February 23, 2023) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on February 27, 2023).

10.2F Indemnification Agreement, dated as of February 6, 2020, by and between the Company and Austin Singleton (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on February 11, 2020).

10.3 Indemnification Agreement, dated as of February 6, 2020, by and between the Company and Anthony Aisquith (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on February 11, 2020).

10.4 Indemnification Agreement, dated as of February 6, 2020, by and between the Company and Jack Ezzell (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on February 11, 2020).

10.5% Indemnification Agreement, dated as of February 6, 2020, by and between the Company and Christopher W. Bodine (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on February 11,
2020).

10.6F Indemnification Agreement, dated as of February 6, 2020, by and between the Company and Jeffrey B. Lamkin (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on February 11, 2020).

10.7 Indemnification Agreement, dated as of February 6, 2020, by and between the Company and John F. Schraudenbach (incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on February 11,
2020).
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Exhibit
Number Description

10.8% Indemnification Agreement, dated as of February 6, 2020, by and between the Company and John G. Troiano (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on February 11, 2020).

10.9% Indemnification Agreement, dated as of May 12, 2020, by and between the Company and Bari A. Harlam (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on December 14, 2023).

10.10% Indemnification Agreement, dated effective as of August 12, 2022, by and between the Company and J. Steven Roy (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on December
15, 2022).

10.11% Indemnification Agreement, dated effective as of March 1, 2023, by and between the Company and Carmen R. Bauza (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on May 8,
2023).

10.12 Tax Receivable Agreement, dated as of February 11, 2020, by and among OneWater Marine Inc. and the TRA Holders and the Agents
named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with
the Commission on February 18, 2020).

10.13 Fourth Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of One Water Marine Holdings, LLC, dated as of February 11, 2020
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission
on February 18, 2020).

10.14% Employment Agreement, dated as of September 25, 2025, effective as of February 12, 2024, between One Water Marine Holdings, LLC and
Philip A. Singleton, Jr. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed
with the Commission on September 30, 2025).

10.15+ Employment Agreement, dated as of September 25, 2025, effective as of February 12, 2024, between One Water Marine Holdings, LLC and
Anthony Aisquith (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with
the Commission on September 30, 2025).

10.161 Employment Agreement, dated as of September 25, 2025, effective as of February 12, 2024, between One Water Marine Holdings, LLC and
Jack Ezzell (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the
Commission on September 30, 2025).

10.17 Fifth Amended and Restated Guaranty, dated November 14, 2023, entered into by Anthony Aisquith, for the benefit of Wells Fargo
Commercial Distribution Finance, LLC, as Agent to the A&R Inventory Financing Facility (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
amendment to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on November 17, 2023).

10.18 Fifth Amended and Restated Guaranty, dated November 14, 2023, entered into by Philip Austin Singleton, Jr., for the benefit of Wells Fargo
Commercial Distribution Finance, LLC, as Agent to the A&R Inventory Financing Facility (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
amendment to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on November 17, 2023).

10.19 Non-Competition and Non-Solicitation Agreement, dated as of October 28, 2016, by and among Anthony Aisquith, One Water Marine
Holdings, LLC, One Water Assets & Operations, LLC, Goldman, Sachs & Co. and OWM BIP Investor, LLC (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.13 to the amendment to the Registrant’s Form S-1 Registration Statement (File No. 333-232639), originally filed with the
Commission on July 12, 2019).

10.20 Non-Competition and Non-Solicitation Agreement, dated as of October 28, 2016, by and among Philip Austin Singleton, Jr., One Water
Marine Holdings, LLC, One Water Assets & Operations, LLC, Goldman, Sachs & Co. and OWM BIP Investor, LLC (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the amendment to the Registrant’s Form S-1 Registration Statement (File No. 333-232639), originally filed
with the Commission on July 12, 2019).

10.21 Consignment Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2019, by and between Bosuns Assets & Operations LLC and Global Marine Finance, LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the amendment to the Registrant’s Form S-1 Registration Statement (File No. 333-232639),
originally filed with the Commission on July 12, 2019).

10.22 Consignment Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2019, by and between Midwest Assets & Operations LLC and Global Marine Finance, LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the amendment to the Registrant’s Form S-1 Registration Statement (File No. 333-232639),
originally filed with the Commission on July 12, 2019).

10.23 Consignment Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2019, by and between Legendary Assets & Operations LLC and Global Marine Finance, LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the amendment to the Registrant’s Form S-1 Registration Statement (File No. 333-232639),
originally filed with the Commission on July 12, 2019).

10.24 Consignment Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2019, by and between Singleton Assets & Operations LLC and Global Marine Finance, LLC

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the amendment to the Registrant’s Form S-1 Registration Statement (File No. 333-232639),
originally filed with the Commission on July 12, 2019).
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Number Description
10.25 Consignment Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2019, by and between South Florida Assets & Operations LLC and Global Marine Finance,

LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, File No. 001-39213, filed with the
Commission on August 1, 2025).

10.26 Consignment Agreement, dated June 30, 2025 by and between Midwest Assets & Operations LLC, Singleton Assets & Operations LLC,
South Florida Assets & Operations LLC, Legendary Assets & Operations LLC, Bosun's Assets & Operations LLC, Northpoint Commercial
Finance LLC and Global Marine Finance LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on August 1, 2025).

10.27% Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the amendment to the
Registrant’s Form S-1 Registration Statement (File No. 333-232639), originally filed with the Commission on July 12, 2019).

10.28% Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the amendment to the Registrant’s Form S-1
Registration Statement (File No. 333-232639), originally filed with the Commission on July 12, 2019).

10.29¥ Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of July 22, 2020, and as amended and restated on August 9, 2022, by and among One

Water Assets & Operations, LLC, One Water Marine Holdings, LLC, OneWater Marine Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries from time to
time, the lenders from time to time party thereto, Truist Bank, Truist Securities, Inc., Keybank National Association, Synovus Bank,
Hancock Whitney Bank, Pinnacle Bank and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on August 9, 2022).

10.30 Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of February 10, 2023, by and among One Water Assets &
Operations, LLC, One Water Marine Holdings, LLC, OneWater Marine Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries from time to time, the lenders
from time to time party thereto, and Truist Bank as Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on May 8§, 2023).

10.31 Amendment No. 2 to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of September 29, 2023, by and among One Water Assets &
Operations, LLC, One Water Marine Holdings, LLC, OneWater Marine Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries from time to time, the lenders
from time to time party thereto, and Truist Bank as Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on February 2, 2024).

10.32 Amendment No. 3 to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of January 29, 2024, by and among One Water Assets &
Operations, LLC, One Water Marine Holdings, LLC, OneWater Marine Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries from time to time, the lenders
from time to time party thereto, and Truist Bank as Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on February 2, 2024).

10.33 Amendment No. 4 to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of August 7, 2024, by and among One Water Assets &
Operations, LLC, One Water Marine Holdings, LLC, OneWater Marine Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries from time to time, the lenders
from time to time party thereto, and Truist Bank as Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on August 8, 2024).

10.34 Amendment No. 5 to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of September 25, 2024, by and among One Water Assets &
Operations, LLC, One Water Marine Holdings, LLC, OneWater Marine Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries from time to time, the lenders
from time to time party thereto, and Truist Bank as Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to the Registrant's
Annual Report on Form 10-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on December 10, 2024).

10.35 Amendment No. 6 to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and Waiver and Amendment No. 1 to Pledge and Security Agreement,
dated as of November 13, 2024, by and among One Water Assets & Operations, LLC, One Water Marine Holdings, LLC, OneWater Marine
Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries from time to time, the lenders from time to time party thereto, and Truist Bank as Administrative Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission
on November 13, 2024).

10.36¥§ Amendment No. 7 to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and Amendment to Pledge and Security Agreement, dated as of November
17, 2025, by and among One Water Assets & Operations, LLC, One Water Marine Holdings, LLC, OneWater Marine Inc. and certain of its
subsidiaries from time to time, the lenders from time to time party thereto, and Truist Bank as the Administrative Agent. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on November 21,
2025).
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https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001772921-25-000077.html?hash=e783168ba3adfd1bdd56e691737ef32c693caa4582af286a9d46cb2d230fd1fb&dest=onew-7thamendmenttoarcredi_htm
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Exhibit
Number Description

10.37¥ Eighth Amended and Restated Inventory Financing Agreement, dated as of November 14, 2023, between Wells Fargo Commercial
Distribution Finance, LLC as Agent for the several financial institutions that may from time to time become party thereto and Dealers that
may from time to time become party thereto. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on November 17, 2023).

10.38 First Amendment to the Eighth Amended and Restated Inventory Financing Agreement, dated as of August 7, 2024, between Wells Fargo
Commercial Distribution Finance, LLC as Agent for the several financial institutions that may from time to time become party thereto and
Dealers that may from time to time become party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on August 8, 2024).

10.39 Consent, Waiver and Second Amendment to the Eighth Amended and Restated Inventory Financing Agreement, dated as of November 13,
2024, between Wells Fargo Commercial Distribution Finance, LLC as Agent for the several financial institutions that may from time to time
become party thereto and Dealers that may from time to time become party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on November 13, 2024).

10.40¥#§ Third Amendment to Eighth Amended and Restated Inventory Financing Agreement, Omnibus Amendment to Collateralized Guarantees,
and First Amendment to Consent Agreement, dated as of November 17, 2025, between Wells Fargo Commercial Distribution Finance, LLC
as Agent for the several financial institutions that may from time to time become party thereto and Dealers that may from time to time
become party thereto. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-39213, filed
with the Commission on November 21, 2025).

10417 OneWater Marine Inc. 2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Company’s Proxy Statement,
File No. 001-39213, filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on January 13, 2021).

10.42¥ Equity Purchase Agreement, by and between One Water Assets & Operations, LLC, Peter G. Dornau and Maureen Dornau, dated June 21,
2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, File No. 001-39213, filed with the
Commission on August 5, 2022).

10.43¥ Real Estate Sales Contract, by and between One Water Assets & Operations, LLC and PEJE, Inc., dated June 21, 2022 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on August 5,
2022).

*19.1 OneWater Marine Inc. Insider Trading Policy

*21.1 List of subsidiaries of OneWater Marine Inc.

*23.1 Consent of Grant Thornton LLP.

*31.1 Certification of the Principal Executive Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).

*¥31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).

**32.1 Certification of the Principal Executive Officer required by Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. 1350.

**32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. 1350.

97.1 OneWater Marine Inc. Policy Regarding the Recoupment of Incentive Compensation (Claw-back) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
97.1 to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K, File No. 001-39213, filed with the Commission on December 14, 2023).

101.INS(a) Inline XBRL Instance Document.

101.SCH(a) Inline XBRL Schema Document.

101.CAL(a) Inline XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document.

101.DEF(a) Inline XBRL Definition Linkbase Document.

101.LAB(a) Inline XBRL Labels Linkbase Document.

101.PRE(a) Inline XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document.

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101).

*  Filed herewith.

**  Furnished herewith.

1 Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

#  Specific terms in this exhibit (indicated therein by asterisks) have been omitted because such terms are both not material and would likely cause
competitive harm to the Company if publicly disclosed.
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¥  Certain schedules and exhibits to this agreement have been omitted in accordance with Item 601(a)(5) of Regulation S-K. A copy of any omitted schedule
and/or exhibit will be furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission on request.

§  Certain portions of this exhibit have been redacted pursuant to Item 601(b)(10)(iv) of Regulation S-K. An unredacted copy of the exhibit will be furnished
to the Securities and Exchange Commission on request.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

ONEWATER MARINE INC.
Date: December 15, 2025 By: /s/ Philip Austin Singleton, Jr.
Name: Philip Austin Singleton, Jr.
Title: Founder and Executive Chairman

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this Report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of
the Registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date

/s/ Philip Austin Singleton, Jr. December 15, 2025

Founder, Executive Chairman and Director

Philip Austin Singleton, Jr. (Principal Executive Officer)
fs/ Jack Ezzell Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer December 15, 2025
Jack Ezzell (Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)
/s/ Anthony Aisquith Chief Executive Officer and Director December 15, 2025
Anthony Aisquith
/s/ Carmen Bauza Director December 15, 2025

Carmen Bauza

/s/ Christopher W. Bodine Director December 15, 2025
Christopher W. Bodine

/s/ Bari A. Harlam Director December 15, 2025

Bari A. Harlam

/s/ Jeftrey B. Lamkin Director December 15, 2025
Jeffrey B. Lamkin

/s/ J. Steven Roy Director December 15, 2025
J. Steven Roy

/s/ John F. Schraudenbach Lead Independent Director December 15, 2025
John F. Schraudenbach

/s/ John G. Troiano Director December 15, 2025

John G. Troiano
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Exhibit 19.1

ONEWATER MARINE INC.
INSIDER TRADING POLICY
Amended and Revised as of March 1, 2023

This Insider Trading Policy (this “Policy”) provides guidance to directors, officers, employees and consultants of OneWater Marine
Inc. (the “Company”) with respect to transactions in the Company’s securities (such as common stock, options to buy or sell
Company securities, warrants, convertible securities and debt securities) and derivative securities relating to the Company’s common
stock, whether or not issued by the Company (such as exchange-traded options) for the purpose of promoting compliance with
applicable securities laws.

This Policy applies to all directors, officers and other employees of the Company, and any consultants who receive or are aware of
Material, Non-Public Information (as defined below) regarding the Company and obtained in the course of employment or
association with the Company. The people to whom this Policy applies are referred to in this Policy as “insiders.” All insiders must
comply strictly with this Policy.

The Company reserves the right to amend or rescind this Policy or any portion of it at any time and to adopt different policies and
procedures at any time. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between this Policy and any other materials distributed by the
Company, this Policy shall govern. If a law conflicts with this Policy, you must comply with the law.

The Company’s Chief Financial Officer (after, to the extent the Chief Financial Officer deems it advisable, his or her consultation
with outside compliance legal counsel) will serve as the “Compliance Officer” for purposes of this Policy. You should read this
Policy carefully, ask questions of the Compliance Officer, and promptly sign and return the certification attached as Annex A
acknowledging receipt of this Policy to:

OneWater Marine Inc.
6275 Lanier Islands Parkway
Buford, Georgia 30518
Attention: Director of Human Resources

The Company’s directors, officers and other employees must promptly sign and return the attached certification acknowledging
receipt of this Policy when requested to do so by the Company’s Director of Human Resources (which term includes any person
whom the Director of Human Resources designates to administer the responsibilities described in this Policy). Questions or
comments for the Compliance Officer should be sent to the Director of Human Resources.
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I. Definitions and Explanations
A. Material, Non-Public Information
1. What Information is “Material’?

It is not possible to define all categories of material information. However, information should be regarded as material
if there is a substantial likelihood that it would be considered important to an investor in making an investment
decision regarding the purchase, sale or holding of the Company’s securities. Information that is likely to affect the
price of a company’s securities (whether positive or negative) is almost always material. It is also important to
remember that either positive or negative information may be material.

While it may be difficult under this standard to determine whether particular information is material, there are various
categories of information that are particularly sensitive and, as a general rule, should always be considered material
information. Common examples of material information include:

Unpublished financial results (annual, quarterly or otherwise);
Unpublished projections of future earnings or losses;

News of a pending or proposed merger or joint venture;

News of a significant acquisition or a sale of significant assets;
Impending announcements of bankruptcy or financial liquidity problems;
Impending restructuring of the Company;

Gain or loss of a substantial customer or supplier;

Changes in the Company’s distribution or dividend policy;

Stock splits;

Changes in the Company’s or its subsidiaries’ credit ratings, if applicable;
New equity or debt offerings;

Significant developments in litigation or regulatory proceedings;
Significant corporate events, including material cyber, data or personnel matters; and

Major personnel changes, particularly departures or elections of executive officers or certain directors.



The above list is for illustration purposes only.
2. What Information is “Non-Public”?

Information is “non-public” if it has not been previously disclosed to the general public and is otherwise not generally
available to the investing public. In order for information to be considered “public,” it must be widely disseminated in
a manner making it generally available to the investing public and the investing public must have had time to absorb
the information fully. Generally, one should allow two full Trading Days following publication as a reasonable
waiting period before information is deemed to be public. Depending on the particular circumstances, the Company
may determine that a longer or shorter period should apply to the release of specific Material, Non-Public
Information.

B. Related Person
“Related Person” means, with respect to the Company’s insiders:

Any family member living in the insider’s household (including a spouse, minor child, minor stepchild, parent, stepparent,
grandparent, sibling, in-law) and anyone else living in the insider’s household;

Family members who do not live in the insider’s household but whose transactions in Company securities are directed by
the insider or subject to the insider’s influence or control;

Partnerships in which the insider is a general partner;

Trusts of which the insider is a trustee;

Estates of which the insider is an executor; and

Other equivalent legal entities that such insider controls.
C. Trading Day

“Trading Day” means a day on which national stock exchanges or the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board Quotation System
are open for trading, and a “Trading Day” begins at the time trading begins.

II. General Policy

This Policy prohibits insiders from (i) transacting in or (ii) “tipping,” either directly or indirectly, others who may trade in the
Company’s securities, in each case while aware of Material, Non-Public Information about the Company. These activities are
commonly referred to as “insider trading.”
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A. Trading on Material, Non-Public Information

Except as otherwise specified in this Policy, no insider or Related Person shall engage in any transaction in the Company’s
securities, including making any offer to purchase or offer to sell or giving any gift of the Company’s securities, during any
period commencing with the date that he or she is aware of Material, Non-Public Information concerning the Company, and
ending after two full Trading Days following the date of public disclosure of the Material, Non-Public Information, or at the
time that the information is no longer material.

B. Tipping Others of Material, Non-Public Information

No insider shall disclose or tip, either directly or indirectly, Material, Non-Public Information about the Company to any
other person (including Related Persons) where the Material, Non-Public Information about the Company may be used by
that person to his or her profit by trading in the securities of the Company, nor shall the insider or the Related Person make
recommendations, either directly or indirectly, or express opinions on the basis of Material, Non-Public Information about
the Company as to trading in the Company’s securities. Insiders are not authorized to recommend the purchase or sale of the
Company’s securities to any other person (other than Related Persons) regardless of whether the insider is aware of Material,
Non-Public Information about the Company.

C. Confidentiality of Material, Non-Public Information

Material, Non-Public Information relating to the Company is the Company’s property and the unauthorized disclosure of
Material, Non-Public Information is prohibited. If an insider receives any inquiry from outside the Company (such as a
securities analyst) for information (particularly financial results and projections) that may be Material, Non-Public
Information, the inquiry should be referred to the Compliance Officer, who will work with the individual coordinating and
overseeing the release of that information to the investing public, securities analysts and others in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations.

D. Special and Prohibited Transactions
It is the Company’s policy that its insiders may not engage in any of transactions specified below.

1. Transactions in Company Debt Securities. Insider transactions in Company debt securities, whether or not those
securities are convertible into Company common stock, are prohibited by this Policy.

2. Hedging Transactions and Other Transactions Involving Company Derivative Securities. Hedging or
monetization transactions, whether direct or indirect, involving the Company’s securities are completely
prohibited, regardless of whether you are in possession of Material, Non-



>

Public Information. A “short sale,” or sale of securities that the seller does not own at the time of sale or, if
owned, that will not be delivered within 20 days of the sale, is an example of a prohibited hedging transaction.
Additionally, Section 16(c) of the Exchange Act expressly prohibits directors and officers from engaging in
short sales.

Transactions involving Company-based derivative securities are completely prohibited, whether or not you are
in possession of Material, Non-Public Information. “Derivative securities” are options, warrants, stock
appreciation rights, convertible notes or similar rights whose value is derived from the value of an equity
security, such as Company securities. Transactions in derivative securities include, but are not limited to,
trading in Company-based option contracts, transactions in straddles or collars, and writing or buying puts or
calls. Transactions in debt that may be convertible into Company securities would also constitute a transaction
in derivative securities prohibited by this Policy. This Policy does not, however, restrict holding, exercising, or
settling awards such as options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, or other derivative securities granted
under a Company equity incentive plan as described in more detail below under “Exempted Transactions.”

Purchases of Company Securities on Margin. Any of the Company’s securities purchased in the open market
should be paid for in full at the time of purchase. Purchasing the Company’s securities on margin (e.g.,
borrowing money from a brokerage firm or other third party to fund the stock purchase) is prohibited by this
Policy.

Pledges of Company Securities. Pledging Company securities as collateral, including shares held in a margin
account, is prohibited; except that Philip Austin Singleton Jr., Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and
Anthony Aisquith, President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company, each of whom are founders and
significant shareholders of the Company, may pledge no more than 15% of their aggregate beneficial
ownership of Company securities each year, unless previously approved by a majority of members of the
Company’s board of directors (the “Board”).

Short Term Trading. Directors and officers who purchase Company securities in the open market may not sell any
Company securities in the open market during the six months following the purchase (or vice versa).

Standing and Limit Orders. Standing and limit orders (except standing and limit orders under approved
Rule 10b5-1 Plans (as defined below) should be used only for a very brief period of time.
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E. Exempted Transactions

This Policy does not apply in the case of the following transactions (if applicable to the Company), except as specifically
noted:

1. Stock Option Exercises. This Policy does not apply to the exercise of an employee stock option acquired pursuant
to the Company’s plans, or to the exercise of a tax withholding right or net settlement pursuant to which a
person has elected to have the Company withhold shares subject to an option to satisfy tax withholding
requirements or the exercise price. This Policy does apply, however, to any sale of stock in the market as part
of a broker-assisted cashless exercise of an option, or any other market sale for the purpose of generating the
cash needed to pay the exercise price of an option.

2. Restricted Stock Awards. This Policy does not apply to the vesting of restricted stock, or the exercise of a tax
withholding right pursuant to which the insider elects to have the Company withhold shares of stock to satisfy
tax withholding requirements upon the vesting of any restricted stock. The Policy does apply, however, to any
market sale of restricted stock.

3. 401(k) Plan. This Policy does not apply to purchases of Company securities in the Company’s 401(k) plan
resulting from an insider’s periodic contribution of money to the plan pursuant to the insider’s payroll
deduction election. This Policy does apply, however, to certain elections the insider may make under the
401(k) plan, including:

(a) an election to increase or decrease the percentage of the insider’s periodic contributions that will be
allocated to the Company stock fund;

(b)  an election to make an intra-plan transfer of an existing account balance into or out of the Company
stock fund;

(©) an election to borrow money against the insider’s 401(k) plan account if the loan will result in a
liquidation of some or all of the insider’s Company stock fund balance; and

(d)  an election to pre-pay a plan loan if the pre-payment will result in allocation of loan proceeds to the
Company stock fund.

4. Employee Stock Purchase Plan. This Policy does not apply to purchases of Company securities in an employee
stock purchase plan resulting from the insider’s periodic contribution of money to the plan pursuant to the
election the insider made at the time of the insider’s enrollment in the
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plan. This Policy also does not apply to purchases of Company securities resulting from lump sum
contributions to such a plan, provided that the insider elected to participate by lump sum payment at the
beginning of the applicable enrollment period. This Policy does apply, however, to the insider’s election to
participate in such a plan for any enrollment period, and to the insider’s sales of Company securities
purchased pursuant to that plan.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan. This Policy does not apply to purchases of Company securities under a dividend

reinvestment plan of the Company resulting from the insider’s reinvestment of dividends paid on Company
securities. This Policy does apply, however, to voluntary purchases of Company securities resulting from
additional contributions the insider chooses to make to such a dividend reinvestment plan, and to the insider’s
election to participate in the plan or increase the insider’s level of participation in the plan. This Policy also
applies to the insider’s sale of any Company securities purchased pursuant to such a plan.

Mutual Funds. Transactions in mutual funds that are invested in Company securities are not transactions subject

to this Policy.

Other Similar Transactions. Any other purchase of Company securities from the Company or sales of Company

securities to the Company are not subject to this Policy.

Rule 10b5-1 Plans. Trades made pursuant to a “Rule 10b5-1 Plan.” A Rule 10b5-1 Plan is a written plan for

selling the Company securities that, at the time it is adopted, conforms to all of the requirements of Rule 10b5-
1 as then in effect and any other restrictions applicable to your trading of the Company stock (e.g., Rule 144.
Insiders must obtain authorization from the Compliance Officer before entering into or modifying a Qualified
Trading Plan, except if the insider is a Section 16 officer or a director, such insider must obtain authorization
from the Board.

Other Transactions. Any transaction specifically approved in advance by the Compliance Officer, except if the

transaction is made by a Section 16 officer or a director, in which case the transaction much be specifically
approved in advance by the Board.



FE  Post-Termination Transactions

The policies set forth in this Section II continue to apply to transactions in the Company’s securities even after the insider has
terminated employment or other service relationship with the Company as follows: if the insider is aware of Material, Non-
Public Information when his or her employment or service relationship terminates, the insider may not transact in the
Company’s securities until that information has become public or is no longer material.

III. Additional Trading Policies and Requirements for Certain Insiders
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A. Restrictive Period and the Window Group

All directors, Section 16 officers (as defined below) and others as identified by the Company and who have been notified that
they have been so identified (the “Window Group”) are prohibited from trading in Company securities during the period
beginning at the close of market on the 10" calendar day prior to the end of each fiscal quarter and ending after two full
Trading Days following the date of public disclosure of the financial results for that fiscal quarter (the “Restrictive Period”).
Insiders who have not been identified as being in the Window Group should adhere to the general prohibitions set forth in
this Policy. The restriction on trading while in possession of Material, Non-Public Information applies to each insider
whether or not the Company has provided such notice.

From time to time, the Company may also prohibit some or all of its directors, officers, employees or consultants from
trading the Company’s securities because of developments known to the Company and not yet disclosed to the public. In this
event, the Company will notify the affected persons, and those persons may not engage in any transaction involving the
purchase or sale of the Company’s securities until the Company notifies them that such event-specific Restrictive Period is
over. In addition, those persons should not disclose to others the fact of the trading suspension.

Trading in the Company’s securities outside of the Restrictive Period should not be considered a “safe harbor.”
B. Pre-Clearance of Trades

The Company has determined that some or all of its directors, Section 16 officers, and others as identified by the Company
and who have been notified that they have been so identified (collectively, the “Pre-Clearance Group) must not transact in
the Company’s securities, even outside of a Restrictive Period, without first complying with the Company’s “pre-clearance”
process. Each member of the Pre-Clearance Group should contact and receive pre-clearance from the Compliance Officer
prior to commencing any transactions in the Company’s securities (whether or not listed in the Exempted Transactions
specified in Section II, Subsection E). Pre-Clearance Group members must obtain written clearance (which may include

clearance via email) from the Compliance



Officer; oral pre-clearance is not sufficient. After you receive permission to engage in a transaction, you must complete your
transaction within (i) five Trading Days or (ii) such shorter period as is designated by the Compliance Officer at the time of
your request for permission, or make a new request for clearance.

Please note that clearance of a proposed transaction by the Compliance Officer does not constitute legal advice
regarding or otherwise acknowledge that a member of the Pre-Clearance Group does not possess Material, Non-
Public Information. Employees must ultimately make their own judgments regarding, and are personally responsible
for determining, whether they are in possession of Material, Non-Public Information.

C. Exceptions

The Restrictive Period trading restrictions do not apply to those transactions to which this Policy does not apply, as described
above under the headings “Exempted Transactions.” Further, the requirement for pre-clearance and the Restrictive Period
trading restrictions do not apply to transactions conducted pursuant to Rule 10b5-1 plans that have already been properly
approved, described under the heading “Planned Trading Programs.”

“Section 16 officer” means the Company’s president, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer (or if none, the

controller), any vice-president of the Company in charge of a principal business unit, division or function (such as sales,
administration or finance), and any other officer who performs a policy-making function, as determined from time to time by the

Board,
Board.

or any other person who performs similar policy-making functions of the Company, as determined from time to time by the
Officers of the Company’s subsidiaries shall also be deemed officers of the Company if they perform policy-making

functions for the Company, as determined from time to time by the Board.

IV. Potential Criminal and Civil Liability and/or Disciplinary Action
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A. SEC Enforcement Action

The adverse consequences of insider trading violations include, without limitation, the following:

1. For individuals who trade on Material, Non-Public Information (or tip information to others):
A civil penalty of up to three times the profit gained or loss avoided resulting from the violation;
A criminal fine of up to $5.0 million (no matter how small the profit); and/or

A jail term of up to 20 years.



2. For a company (as well as possibly any supervisory person) that fails to take appropriate steps to prevent illegal trading:

A civil penalty of up to the greater of $2.48 million or three times the profit gained or loss avoided as a result of the
insider’s violation;

A criminal penalty of up to $25.0 million; and/or

The civil penalties may extend personal liability to the Company’s directors, officers and other supervisory
personnel if they fail to take appropriate steps to prevent insider trading.

B. Disciplinary Action by the Company

Persons who violate this Policy may be subject to disciplinary action by the Company, which may include termination or
other appropriate action.

k ok ok ok

This document states a policy of OneWater Marine Inc. and is not intended to be regarded as the rendering of legal advice.

ANNEX A
INSIDER TRADING POLICY
CERTIFICATION

I have read and understand the Insider Trading Policy (the “Policy”) of OneWater Marine Inc. (the “Company”). I agree that I will
comply with the policies and procedures set forth in the Policy. I understand and agree that, if I am a director, officer or employee of
the Company or one of its subsidiaries or other affiliates, my failure to comply in all respects with the Company’s policies, including
the Policy, is a basis for termination for cause of my employment or service with the Company and any subsidiary or other affiliate
to which my employment or service now relates or may in the future relate.

I am aware that this signed Certification will be filed with my personal records in the Company’s human resources department.

Signature

Type or Print Name

Date
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Name

Bosun’s Assets & Operations, LLC
Legendary Assets & Operations, LLC
Midwest Assets & Operations, LLC
One Water Assets & Operations, LLC
One Water Marine Holdings, LLC
Singleton Assets & Operations, LLC
South Florida Assets & Operations, LLC

South Shore Lake Erie Assets & Operations, LLC

Central Assets & Operations, LLC
T-H Marine Supplies, LLC

CMC Marine, LLC

Innovative Plastics, LLC

Norfolk Marine Company, LLC
Norfolk Marine Holdings, Inc.
Quality Assets & Operations, LLC
Yachting Assets & Operations, LLC
Ocean Bio-Chem Holdings, Inc.

Ocean Bio-Chem Intermediate Holdings, Inc.

Star Brite Europe, LLC

Ocean Bio-Chem LLC

Star-Brite Distributing, LLC

Star Brite Distributing (Canada), LLC
Kinpak, LLC

Starbrite Sta-Put, LLC

OdorStar Technology, LLC

All Oceans Closings LLC

Denison Yachting, LLC

Denison Europe SARL

Yachting Partners

Revver Digital, LLC

One Water Brands Workforce Solutions, LLC
One Water Workforce Solutions, LLC

OneWater Marine Inc.
List of Subsidiaries
Jurisdiction of Organization

Delaware
Florida
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Georgia
Florida
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Florida
Florida
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Florida
Delaware
Delaware
Monaco
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

Exhibit 21.1



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our reports dated December 15, 2025, with respect to the consolidated financial statements and internal control over financial reporting included
in the Annual Report of OneWater Marine Inc. on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2025. We consent to the incorporation by reference of said
reports in the Registration Statements of OneWater Marine Inc. on Forms S-8 (File No. 333-236362 and 333-255907) and on Form S-3 (File No. 333-281976).

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
December 15, 2025



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13A-14(a) OR RULE 15D-14(a)
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Philip Austin Singleton, Jr., certify that:

L. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of OneWater Marine Inc. (the “registrant”) for the year ended September 30, 2025;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

S. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Dated: December 15, 2025 By: /s/ Philip Austin Singleton, Jr.
Philip Austin Singleton, Jr.

Executive Chairman
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13A-14(a) OR RULE 15D-14(a)
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jack Ezzell, certify that:

L. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of OneWater Marine Inc. (the “registrant”) for the year ended September 30, 2025;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

S. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Dated: December 15, 2025 By: /s/ Jack Ezzell
Jack Ezzell
Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. § 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of OneWater Marine Inc. (the “Company”) for the year ended September 30, 2025, as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Philip Austin Singleton, Jr., Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

Dated: December 15, 2025 By: /s/ Philip Austin Singleton, Jr.
Philip Austin Singleton, Jr.
Executive Chairman
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. § 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of OneWater Marine Inc. (the “Company”) for the year ended September 30, 2025, as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Jack Ezzell, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
2. the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
Dated: December 15, 2025 By: /s/ Jack Ezzell

Jack Ezzell
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)



